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Financial Highlights Bi &=

FINANCIAL SUMMARY B E
2012 2013 2014
—E——F —E-=F —E-mE
(RMB million) (RMB million)  (RMB million)
(AREBETL) (AREFET) (AREBEER)
Revenue A 36,122 32,517 28,495
Gross Profit EF 1,164 1,004 1,368
EBITDA' HRFTSE - BT -
WEREHEAEF 1,595 1,615 1,721
Profit before income tax BTSSR E 326 249 245
Profit for the year FERF 146 63 66
Profit attributable to owners of NARERFEE
the Company iyl 126 102 67
Basic earnings per Share (RMB) BRERYE(ARBT) 0.04 0.03 0.02
Net Assets FEEM 9,555 9,711 9,772
Total Assets BEE 24,752 23,751 23,743
Net Assets value per Share BRFEEMB(RBRIEE
(excluding non-controlling interests) HIERERS)
(RMB) (AR¥TT) 3.09 3.14 3.16
1 The Company defines EBITDA as profit for the year before finance 1 N FEEBITDARE & AR B 1505

RA - iSHER EREESEN - 1
Eri iR - E - I
BEEMNIEE MBRES LA FER
Fe AEE-ZF—NFE+=-_A=+—H

costs-net, income tax expense, amortisation of intangible assets,
amortisation of leasehold land and land use rights, depreciation, non-
recurring items and share-based payments. Non-recurring items for
the year ended 31 December 2014 included RMB 89.9 million as

2

impairment of property, plant and equipment.

EEER  FREHENERBREAR
%@8,990%7?@2%%% B KR

Revenue Profit Attributable to owners of the Company
L'ON KRR B EHGEEEGER
RMB million RMB million
ARBEET ARBEET
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Financial Highlights 81 i@ =

AVERAGE SELLING PRICE AND GROSS PROFIT PER BITEENHEELREWEYEEEE
TONNE OF SELF-MANUFACTURED STEEL PRODUCTS EHER
2012 2013 2014
—T—F —E—=F —ZE-mE
(RMB) (RVB) (RMB)
(AR#TT) (ARETT) (AR¥ET)
Average Selling Price per Tonne FWE I HEEE 3,327 3,054 2,657
Gross Profit/(Loss) per Tonne EWEF(FE)
H-section steel products H AU 8 2= 170 152 174
Strips and strip products A i K A AR EE S 113 111 167
Billets EiE2N (16) 29 10
Cold rolled sheets and R BLIR I 8 R
galvanised sheets (138) (154) (124)
Rebar R LU 81 6 65
Steel pile sheet SR A - - 180
Combined TE 99 100 131
Average Selling Price per Tonne Gross Profit per Tonne
- WP HEER . SMEF
ARMIT AR
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Financial Highlights Bi &=

SALES VOLUME OF SELF-MANUFACTURED STEEL

PRODUCTS AND CLASSIFIED BY PRODUCTS

H-section steel products

Strips and strip products

Billets

Cold rolled sheets and
galvanised sheets

Rebar

Steel pile sheet

Combined

| Billets #5£

HEY 2

o 80 K e S AR A R
i
RELIR B SEEFAR

25
R

=)
R

BITEENRSERZERERE D2

HEE
2012 2013 2014
—E-CF —E—=F —E-MF
('000 tonnes) (‘000 tonnes) (’000 tonnes)
(Fm8) (Fmg) (Fmg)
3,288 3,084 3,062
3,800 3,752 4,025
1,424 926 668
484 316 503
422 587 1,074
- - 39
9,418 8,665 9,371

Sales Volume of Self-manufactured Steel Products

BITEENHESERNHER

. H-section steel products HZEY §ff &= &
I Strips and strip products #5 i K& % i 48 &= &

3.6%

6.8%

5.4%

11.5%

. Cold rolled sheets and galvanised sheets /% &4 & # £ 1R

I Rebar 12 £ #ff
‘ Steel pile sheet $0#R &
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Corporate Information AT &R

NOMINATION COMMITTEE
Mr. Han Jingyuan (Chairman)
Mr. Wong Man Chung, Francis
Mr. Wang Tianyi

Mr. Zhou Guoping

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Wong Man Chung, Francis (Chairman)
Mr. Han Jingyuan

Mr. Wang Tianyi

Mr. Zhou Guoping

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVE
Mr. Zhu Hao
Mr. Au Yeung Siu Kei

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. Au Yeung Siu Kei

REGISTERED OFFICE
Clarendon House

2 Church Street

Hamilton HM11

Bermuda
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Corporate Information AR &R

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG
Suites 901-2 & 10, 9th floor, Great Eagle Centre

23 Harbour Road

Wanchai, Hong Kong

BERMUDA PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE
MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE
Tricor Investor Services Limited

AUDITOR
PricewaterhouseCoopers

COMPANY’S WEBSITE
www.chinaorientalgroup.com

LIST OF PRINCIPAL BANKERS (IN ALPHABETICAL ORDERS)
ABN AMRO

Agricultural Bank of China

Bank of China

Bank of Communications

China CITIC Bank

China Construction Bank

Nanyang Commercial Bank

Natixis

Rabobank

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited

ERETELEME
BEET

B EE 23 55
[BEHLIEII-2X10E
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MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited
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Chairman’s Statement =E#H%E

The Group will improve efficiency and
reduce procurement costs and market risks
through the implementation of innovative

REVIEW OF YEAR 2014

OPERATING ENVIRONMENT

As the economic growth of the Mainland China slowed down in
2014 and affected by regulation and control of the real estate
market, the imbalance of demand and supply of the steel industry in
2014 has yet to improve, which together with the fluctuation in raw
material prices and the increase in stockpiles of steel in Mainland
China resulted in a significant decline of approximately 13.0% in
the average selling price of self-manufactured steel products of the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2014 as compared with
that of prior year and certain assets of the Group were impaired.
Facing such difficulties of the steel industry, the Group still managed
to record revenue and profit attributable to owners of the Company
of approximately RMB 28.5 billion and approximately RMB 67
million for 2014 respectively, a decrease of approximately 12.4%
and 34.3% respectively, through development and optimization
of products and improvement and control of production cost.
The net profit of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2014
amounted to approximately RMB 66 million, a slightly increase of
approximately 5.5%.

China Oriental Group Company Limited V23 Jy 52 [ % B A FR 2 7]

marketing model and strengthening the
management on the procurement process.

REBGEBRAIFMEHEX BB
BRREE - DURA M K ERE R A
MG Rk o

T — YA A B KR A A 1S R AR K
XEMWEREMAETZE  URKHEE
TERRKKENBERE_T—NFNE
WE N ERMEHER B R B AR
R EFIEN  BERAEBEET
—NE+-_A=+—BILEFERETE
EMiEERFHHEEBRAFHEE
TEK#13.0% kA EBE TEED RIE °
EHMETEN LS ERYE  XEESE
BB AR L EE G AN 2R I 2 i) A A AR
K RZE—MFNEDRISESRAR
RAREEREEERMENDOAR
K085 B T R AR 6,700 8 7T 5 7
B H12.4% N 34.3% c REBRESR
—E-NE+-A=+—BItFENLE
FlAEHANREG,6008 T EHMIERLY
5.5% °



Chairman’s Statement = E#H%E

OPERATING ENVIRONMENT (continued)

With respect to the steel business, the Group has invested
substantial resources and endeavored to enhance the
competitiveness of its products and reduce production cost
so as to achieve better economic effect. These efforts include
improvement of production facilities to enhance efficiency,
differentiation of products and reduction of emission. The self-
generated electricity proportion of the Group in 2014 increased
to approximately 40% from approximately 30% in 2013, which
further reduced the production cost of the Group. Furthermore, the
Group has been actively conducting research and development of
new products and successfully launched steel pile sheet in 2013.
This new product recorded sales of approximately 39,000 tonnes
and generated revenue of approximately RMB 135 million in 2014.
The Group also successfully developed, produced and sold hot
rolled round bar and rebar product series which are mainly used
in manufacture of machinery spare parts and large construction.

RERIT )

RMBEEBEM S AEEDHRBRAESR
B BAORSEMNBESF I RBEEE
RA BREFNLESZ - 2P
WELEERBEUIRSBEE  ERZ L
MBS - MAEENBEELAE
BT —=FM430% tAE-F—N
FRH40%  #E— T REANEEBNEE
A BE  AEBE—EREBWHETN
B WERZZE—=FINHEL MK
e BHEHEME T —IFHREIHE
RBUSOBWE BASEERNHARK
1.35B LR - NEBEITKIFAE - £
E N 56 0L [B) SR AN IR 80U R Y1 E
FTERAREERBSHRARRESRZ -
FEFBHAEAEEERBIRENBE -
RETARNEEEREEEE R B
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Chairman’s Statement = E#H%E

OPERATING ENVIRONMENT (continued)

Riding the tide of infrastructure investment in Mainland China, we
believe that such products can bring development opportunities
and remarkable revenue to the Group. Also, new products such
as H-section steel and steel pile sheet developed by the Group
can be used in foundation construction, etc. with broader market
prospect. The Group sold approximately 3 million tonnes of self-
produced H-section steel products in 2014, continuing to secure
its leading position in the H-section steel market of Mainland China.

With respect to the real estate business, the Group completed
gross floor area (“GFA”) of 124,169 m? of the second phase of
the property development project namely “Donghu Bay” which is
located in Tangshan City, Hebei Province, the PRC. The Group
recorded revenue and operating profit from real estate business of
approximately RMB 239 million and approximately RMB 23 million
respectively for the year ended 31 December 2014. The whole of the
third phase of the Donghu Bay project and the Xintiandi project are
expected to be completed in 2016. In addition, the Group will also
actively promote the usage of environmental friendly construction
and development. In 2014, the Group successfully bided a land
located at Huashan Road of Suzhou (namely the “Meishu Hall” )
with a total construction GFA of approximately 82,000 m? which
will provide land reserve for the sustaining development of our real
estate business. Preliminary development has commenced for
Meishu Hall, and it is expected that the main structure and the
structural construction of the project will be completed in 2016.

China Oriental Group Company Limited B 5y 4 B % B A B A 7]

RERIT ()

Ao RSN B ANER [ B R ) HAY 8 K 5
REBENERAEANEREZESZTE
BERERANTSAR - AEER_-F
—MEREEBTEENHEHERD
300 &M - ARG P B ARREHA TS
HMBEENE -

REMEEBRME @ NEBLAF R
EEBLTH [RNE ] MEFREBEE X
F_HERIMEEAZEEBE(RER
1) R124,169F 7K - BEZ-_T—MF
T-AZ1+—HULEFE AEEFEHE
EBRARLLE BN RBEEHOARE
2.39 BT AR 23008 T - BHHE
HEREE =B RFRAMIEE BEHR
T—RFERT o It AEETEKRN
HEFEASEEERER - RZF—N
F o REEKINES —EA R BRI EE L
P& 4R 3 SETE R 40 5 82,000 F 7 K Ay 1o 358
(BARTEZEE ] ARE T HREEEFE
BREMEX  EEIEH MG
HIZE R - MEFREERIMUREEK
TEPTBHR T —NF5K o



Chairman’s Statement X E#H%E

During 2014, the Group continued its the trading business of steel
products and iron ore. For the year ended 31 December 2014, the
revenue and gross profit arising from trading of steel products and
iron ore were approximately RMB 3,105 million (2013: approximately
RMB 5,736 million) and approximately RMB 60 million (2013:
approximately RMB 100 million) respectively.

The Group also engages in financing industry through its
subsidiaries, Oriental Fullhero Leasing Company Limited (“Fullhero
Leasing”), Oriental Evertrust Finance Leasing Co., Ltd. (“Oriental
Evertrust”) and Tianjin Oriental Huitong Microcredit Company Limited
(“Oriental Huitong”). As at 31 December 2014, Fullhero Leasing,
Oriental Evertrust and Oriental Huitong provided loans totaling RMB
347 million to independent third parties with interest ranging from
12.0% to 24.0% per annum.

Since the Group introduced the world’s largest steel corporation
ArcelorMittal as its strategic shareholder in 2008, ArcelorMittal has
appointed experienced executives to the Board of the Group to
participate in decision making for the Group’s business development
and provide professional advice.

REER-_T—NFHEEREMNBERR
HEAEHER HE-_ZT—NF+=
A=+—BLFE WHEEREREER
BOEEZWAREND R ABHARE
31.05BT(ZE—=%F : HAR57.36
B RHARKEG600ET(ZT—=
F:HARE1.00187T) °

AEENEBEMNBAR  RAHRER
EERAR(HREHE]) RAFER
BEHEBRAR(RAFEEDRKER
FEBNEERERAR(RFER])
NEBREEBE - R-_T—NF+=A
=+ —H REHEE FHEEEE
FERBABYE=ZFIREAHARK
BATETHER  FMENF12.0%E
24.0% °

AEEBE T N\F3ARKEAN
3 8 1> % ArcelorMittal B RS ILER 1% -
ArcelorMittal B &Ik T ERITIRA B INA
REBEER S2EASEEBERR
KMEHEEER -
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Management Discussion and Analysis B Ez &k 247

BUSINESS REVIEW

Sales analysis from sale of self-manufactured steel products

Sales Volume

In 2014, the total sales volume was 9,371,000 tonnes (2013:
8,665,000 tonnes), representing an increase of approximately 8.1%.

The sales volume breakdown during the year was as follows:

H-section steel products

Strips and strip products

Billets

Cold rolled sheets and
galvanised sheets

Rebar

Steel pile sheet

Total

HA#ZEm
TRLEREER
RELIR R 3E R

iR 1E

ait

E 3 {E)
HEBTEENMBEER 2 HEDT
HEE

T -MFHIEEER9,371,000M (=
T — =% :8,665,000[8) + #EHN4I8.1% °

REBFEHEEHAMT :

2014 2013
—E-NEF “T-=F Changes in
Sales volume Sales volume Sales volume
HEE HEE HEEE(
Increase/
('000 tonnes) (000 tonnes) (decrease)
() (Fug) /(i)
3,062 32.7% 3,084 35.6% (0.7%)
4,025 42.9% 3,752 43.3% 7.3%
668 7.1% 926 10.7% (27.9%)
503 5.4% 316 3.6% 59.2%
1,074 11.5% 587 6.8% 83.0%
39 0.4% - - -
9,371 100% 8,665 100% 8.1%

During the year of 2014, the Group’s production capacity is 11

million tonnes per annum.

China Oriental Group Company Limited B 5y 4 B % B A B A 7]
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Management Discussion and Analysis &2 E&ti# Kk 247

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued) ES B8

Sales analysis from sale of self-manufactured steel products HEATTAEENNBEBERZIEES T &)
(continued)

Revenue Hg A

Revenue in 2014 was RMB 24,894 million (2013: RMB 26,466 ZE—FRABARK248.9418L(=

million), representing a decrease of approximately 5.9%. T—=F: AR¥E264.661870) @ T4
5.9% o

The sales breakdown and average selling price by product (excluding FERNEDOEERMNEEEEESE(

value added tax) during the year were as follows: SIER )T ¢
2014 2013 Changes
—Z-mE “E-=F 21
Average Average Average
selling selling selling
Revenue price Revenue price Revenue price
KA HEER WA HEEE WA HEBE
(RMB million) (RMB/tonne) (RMB million) (RMB/tonne) Increase/(decrease)
(N\R®EER) (AR%T/H) (AREEER) (ARET/B) &/ (d)
H-section steel products HAHER 8,480 2,769 9,897 3,209 (14.3%) (13.7%)
Strips and strip products i R R E R 10,184 2,530 10,993 2,930 (7.4%) (13.7%)
Billets D7) 1,563 2,341 2,540 2,743 (38.5%) (14.7%)
Cold rolled sheets and RO RIEFER
galvanised shests 1,877 3,734 1,326 4,196 41.6% (11.0%)
Rebar 240 2,655 2,472 1,710 2913 55.3% (15.1%)
Steel pile sheet MiRiE 135 3,512 - - - -
Total/combined At/ A 24,894 2,657 26,466 3,054 (5.9%) (13.0%)

The decrease in revenue was mainly due to the slowdown of the WA TR X E 2 B KR S AR 1T %
investment in steel related industries and the imbalance between the HI1% & h AR B S A RE e sk 1 - B
demand and the supply of the steel production capacity in Mainland FAREENFHHEESEER_T—=F
China which led to a decrease in the Group’s average selling price by B EHEA R 3,054 L FFE13.0% 2=
13.0% to RMB 2,657 per tonne in 2014 from RMB 3,054 per tonne —MFHENEA R 2,657 7T

in 2013.

Annual Report 2014 —F—PU4E4EH 13



Management Discussion and Analysis B Ez &k 247

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued) E4 {16

Sales analysis from sale of self-manufactured steel products HERTAEEMMNBERZIHES T &)

(continued)

Cost of Sales and Gross Profit HEKARREF

The consolidated gross profit in 2014 was RMB 1,228 million (2013: —E-NEFENEHENRBARK12.28(E
RMB 868 million), representing an increase of approximately 41.5%. T(ZE—=F: ARKS8.68187T) * 3B

#941.5% °

Average unit cost per tonne, gross profit per tonne and gross profit NEMBEEEWIEHKAER - FHEE

margin during the year were as follows: FEEMZRIT
2014 2013
—E2-mF —E-=fF
Gross Gross Gross Gross
Average profit/(loss) profit/(loss) Average  profit/loss)  profit/(loss)
unitcost  per tonne margin unit cost per tonne margin

13 =L | £/ 9 BWER/ 5/
RAEE £8/(EH) (EB)E  HAKEE (£H) (£B)%

(RMB/tonne) (RMB) (RMB/tonne) (RMB)
(AR¥7,/®) (AR%R) (AR¥7,/8) (AR%n)
H-section steel products H A 2 mm 2,595 174 6.3% 3,057 152 4.7%
Strips and strip products R AEREED 2,363 167 6.6% 2,819 111 3.8%
Billets D2y 2,331 10 0.4% 2,714 29 1.1%
Cold rolled sheets and RELR RIF R
galvanised sheets 3,858 (124) (3.3%) 4,350 (154) (3.7%)
Rebar 2405 2,407 65 2.6% 2,907 6 0.2%
Steel pile sheet HiRiE 3,332 180 5.1% - - -
Total CE 2,526 131 4.9% 2,954 100 3.3%

Gross profit per tonne of the Group’s products increased to RMB RZE—NF  AEBEKNESBEEF
131 in 2014 from RMB 100 in 2013, reflecting an increase of AT —=FMAREI00OTEAZEA
31.0%. Gross profit margin increased to 4.9% in 2014 from 3.3% RH¥A817T » #EHI31.0% c A= ZF — Y
in 2013. The increase in gross profit margin was primarily due to FENNEHT—=FM33% LHAZE
the magnitude of decrease in the iron ore price, one of the major 49%° EFEENFEERA=-F—W
raw materials for production of steel products, was higher than the FHNEERBEREIERME —#ER
magnitude of the decrease in the average selling price of the steel B8 T P4 /18 & R 70 2 5 13 3 82 72 o 9
products of the Group in 2014. FHHEEEE TRAEE

14 China Oriental Group Company Limited B 5y 4 B % B A B A 7]
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Management Discussion and Analysis B Ez &k 247

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued) E4 {16
Property Development EHEE BT

In 2014, the Group had completed GFA of 124,169 m2. The status MN-ZZE—NF AKEED B ITEEMmME

of the completed GFA by project is set out as follows: B124,169F K « LM T AZIEEND R
TREEHEBEBR -
No. City Property project Phase of project Total GFA
FFa W MEEE HEMER REEEE
(m?)
(FFFK)
1 Tangshan Donghu Bay Phase 2 and Villa 124,169
EL RO ZHARRIE

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the revenue from real estate HE-_Z—NF+_A=+—HItHF
business of the Group amounted to approximately RMB 239 million. B AEEEWEERUAGARE
The GFA of properties delivered was 54,283 m2. The average selling 23T EXTUMEMEEMER
price of properties delivered was approximately RMB 4,400 per m?. 54,283 K - ERXMENFHERE
REFFRHOAREE4,4007T ©

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had the following projects RZE—WNF+_A=+—8 ' ' ~&£E
under construction with a GFA of approximately 273,000 m?: ETIERERE EENEEEREY
273,000 F 75K :

GFA under Estimate time

No. City Property project Phase of project Construction of completion
FFek W L/E 30 HE KR EEMNEEER TR TR
(m?)
(FHK)
1 Tangshan Donghu Bay Phase 3 85,250  December 2016
ELL RO =5 —E-RF+=A
2 Suzhou Xintiandi Residential and basement 39,691 August 2015
# M Eripai) FERMTE —ET—-R1FN\AH
3 Suzhou Xintiandi Commercial and office 65,670 October 2016
&N R [SEISE¥NES —ZE-RET+A
4 Suzhou Meishu Hall Foundation construction 82,455  September 2016
&N FEE BEMET —ZE-RENA

Annual Report 2014 —F—PU4E4EH 15



Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Property Development (continued)

The above projects are expected to be completed from 2015 to
2016 and will contribute stable revenue and profits to our Group.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Liquidity and Financial Resources

In order to sustain a stable financial status, the Group closely
monitors its liquidity and financial resources.

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had unutilised banking facilities
of approximately RMB 7.3 billion (2013: RMB 12.5 billion).

As at 31 December 2014, the current ratio of the Group,
representing current assets divided by current liabilities, was 1.2
(20183: 1.5) and the gearing ratio, representing total liabilities divided
by total assets, was 58.8% (2013: 59.1%).

As at 31 December 2014, the cash and cash equivalents of
the Group amounted to approximately RMB 849 million (2013:
approximately RMB 968 million).

After considering its cash and cash equivalents as well as the
banking facilities currently available to the Group, it is believed that
the Group has sufficient capital to fund its future business operations
and for general business expansion and development.

China Oriental Group Company Limited B 5y 4 B % B A B A 7]

BEEENWR DT
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JE I (4

FRIBEREEHAER T —RFEZ
—NEFEK WA %m%%i”&
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gy e
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MR RIRTTIRIEREANARETIIET
(ZZ—=F : ARK1251E0L) °
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MRS E(RBEERURSDEE) A
125 (ZE—=ZF 15 )REEAR
LEER(BEERNEBEE)RS88%(=ZF
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Management Discussion and Analysis B Ez &k 247

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Capital Structure

During the period from November 2014 to December 2014, the
Company purchased a total of US$5,175,000 in principal amount of
the 2017 Senior Notes via open market. As at 31 December 2014,
the outstanding principal amount of the 2015 Senior Notes and the
2017 Senior Notes was US$490,183,000 and US$207,585,000
respectively.

As at 31 December 2014, borrowings of RMB 6,456 million of the
Group bore fixed interest rates ranged from 1.1% to 8.0% per annum
and borrowings of RMB 1,713 million of the Group bore floating rates
ranged from 1.5% to 3.9% per annum. The Group’s exposure to
changes in market interest rates was considered to be limited. The
Group did not use any derivatives to hedge its exposure to interest
rate risk for the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013.

The Group monitors its capital on the basis of the debt-to-capital
ratio. This ratio is calculated as total debt divided by total capital.
Total debt includes current and non-current borrowings and
borrowings from related parties. The Group regards its non-current
borrowings, non-current portion of borrowings from related parties
and its equity attributable to owners of the Company as its total
capital. As at 31 December 2014, the debt-to-capital ratio of the
Group was 77.3% (2013: 58.9%).

The consolidated interest expenses and capitalised interest in 2014
amounted to RMB 482 million (2013: RMB 495 million). The interest
coverage (divide profit for the year before finance cost — net and
income tax expenses by total interest expenses) was 1.1 times
(2013: 1.1 times).
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Commitments

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had total commitments of
RMB 1,098 million (2013: RMB 1,062 million). It is estimated the
commitments will be financed by the Group’s internal resources and
unutilised banking facilities.

Guarantee and Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2014, the Group’s contingent liabilities
amounted to approximately RMB 13 million (2013: RMB 21 million),
which was the provision of guarantee for bank borrowings in favor of
a third party.

Pledge of Assets

As at 31 December 2014, the net book value of the Group’s
inventories amounting to approximately RMB 112 million (2013:
approximately RMB 283 million), notes receivable amounting to
approximately RMB 804 million (2013: approximately RMB 1,297
million) and restricted bank balances amounting to approximately
RMB 1,625 million (2013: approximately RMB 1,583 million) had
been pledged as security for the Group’s notes payable issuing,
banking borrowings and letter of credit issuing.

As at 31 December 2014, the net book value of the Group’s
inventories amounting to approximately RMB 17 million (2013:
RMB 41 million), notes receivable amounting to approximately RMB
10 million (2013: nil) and restricted bank balances amounting to
approximately RMB 2 million (2013: RMB 33 million) were withheld
by and in custody of the courts.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Exchange Risks

Foreign exchange risk is the risk to the Group’s financial conditions
and results of operations arising from movements of foreign
exchange rates. The Group mainly operates in the Mainland China
with most of the transactions denominated and settled in RMB. The
Group’s foreign exchange risk primarily arises from the procurement
of iron ores and the relevant products from overseas suppliers and
the Group’s senior notes, which is denominated and settled in USD.
Foreign exchange rates fluctuates in reaction to the macro-economic
performance of different countries and fund flows between countries
arising from trade or capital commitments. The Group has not used
any derivatives to hedge its exposure to foreign exchange risk for the
years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013.

Iron Ore Swaps

In view of the significant fluctuation of iron ore price in 2014, the
Group has entered into iron ore swap contracts so as to reduce the
impact of the volatility of the iron ore price on the Group. The Group
uses a combination of iron ore derivatives to achieve the above
purpose.

Final Dividend

The Board did not recommend the payment of any final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2014,

Post Balance Sheet Events

Save as disclosed in this report, there are no events to cause material
impact on the Group from the balance sheet date to the date of this
report.

During the period from January 2015 to February 2015, the
Company purchased a total of US$12,400,000 in principal amount
of the 2015 Senior Notes and a total of US$3,250,000 in principal
amount of the 2017 Senior Notes via open market.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Post Balance Sheet Events (continued)

On 9 February 2015, the Company commenced the offer to
repurchase for cash any and all of its outstanding 2015 Senior Notes
and 2017 Senior Notes.

The offer expired on 9 March 2015. A total of US$125,933,000 in
principal amount of the 2015 Senior Notes and US$65,067,000 in
principal amount of the 2017 Senior Notes had been repurchased
and cancelled by the Company.

Following the completion of the repurchase, as of the date of this
report, the outstanding aggregate principal amount of the 2015
Senior Notes is US$351,850,000 and the outstanding aggregate
principal amount of the 2017 Senior Notes is US$139,268,000.

ACCREDITATION FOR THE COMPANY AND ITS
MANAGEMENT

For the year ended 31 December 2014, Hebei Jinxi Iron and Steel
Group Company Limited, a subsidiary of the Company is awarded
the “Hebei Innovative Leading Enterprise”, the “Hebei Credible
Enterprise”, “Tangshan Model Enterprise for Implementation of
Trademark Strategy” and so on, and awarded as “Non-profit
Research Project Pilot Demonstration Unit” by National Technical
Committee for Steel Standardization. Its steel sheet pile products
upgrading project even awarded the “Champion of Tangshan
Excellent Technical Transformation and Innovation Projects”. Hebei
Jinxi Iron and Steel Group Dafang Heavy Industry Science and
Technology Company Limited, another subsidiary of the Company,
was named as the “2" Top 100 Integrated Enterprises of China
Foundry Industry” and awarded the “Gold Award on Quality Castings
of 2014 China International Foundry Expo”.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company plans to distribute not less than 20% of the Group’s
distributable profit as dividend after its listing. However, the actual
amount of dividend and as a percentage to profit will be at the
discretion of the Board and will depend upon the Company’s future
operation and earnings, capital requirement and surplus, general
financial condition, contractual restrictions, and other factors that the
Board considers relevant. In addition, pursuant to the relevant PRC
laws, the distributable profit of the PRC respective subsidiaries of the
Company should not be higher than its net profit, after appropriation
to the statutory reserve as determined by the generally accepted
accounting principles in the PRC.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company maintained close contact with its investors during the
year of 2014. The Company not only made timely disclosures of the
Company’s information through the website of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) for increasing the
transparency of the Company, but also held meetings with investors,
updating them on the Group’s business development and industrial
trend.

This helped to promote investors’ understanding of the Group while
allowing us to understand more about the opinions and expectations
of investors. In future, the Group will further its effort to maintain close
contact and effective interactive communication with investors.

HUMAN RESOURCES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had a workforce of
approximately 13,600 and temporary staff of approximately 4,000.
The staff cost included basic salaries and benefits. Staff benefits
included discretionary bonus, medical insurance plans, pension
scheme, unemployment insurance plan, maternity insurance plan
and the fair value of the share options, etc.. Effective from July 2008,
the Group implemented a workers’ injury insurance scheme and
contributed 1.5% of the workers’ wages to the Social Insurance
Bureau. According to the Group’s remuneration policy, employees’
package is based on productivity and/or sales performance, and is
consistent with the Group’s quality control and cost control targets.
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FUTURE PROSPECTS

It is expected that the global economy will continue to fluctuate
in 2015, while the growth of the domestic economy of Mainland
China will be expected to be slower than last year and the problem
of overcapacity in steel production will be prominent, resulting in a
more severe condition for the steel industry in Mainland China. In
addition, the implementation of the new “Production Safety Law” and
“Environmental Protection Laws” of Mainland China and the policy
of suppressing and reducing capacity will generate greater pressure
on steel enterprises in respect of safety, environmental protection
and transformation and upgrade. The Group will use creative
marketing mode, develop international sales through e-commerce
platform and establish a global sales network to expand its market
coverage, which will provide strong assurance and support for the
enhancement of the Group’s efficiency. Furthermore, the Group will
deepen the adjustment of its customer mix and focus on services
and production. It will also improve its system by closely monitoring
changes in production demand and strengthening purchase
management to ensure a low stock level and reduce purchasing cost
and market risks.

The Group will continue to keep an eye on state projects which
will consume large volume of steel, collect more information about
market shortages and product information to guide its new product
development. In addition, it will strengthen the control of operating
risks to ensure its robust operation.

Since its listing in 2004, the Group has continued to expand
its business, diversify its steel product categories and business
portfolio. During the last eleven years (since being listed), the
Group’s overall crude steel production capacity has reached 11.0
million tonnes per annum from 3.1 million tonnes per annum at the
time of the listing. Its product portfolio has grown from billets to a
variety of steel product series — each in a comprehensive range of
products and is available in different specifications. These product
series include H-section steel products, steel pile sheet products,
strips and strip products, billets, cold rolled sheets and galvanised
sheets and rebar. Moreover, the H-section steel products of the
Group commands a leading position in China. The Group has
been gradually diversifying its business. In addition to expanding
its supply chain through upstream and downstream integration,
the Group has also expanded horizontally by tapping into other
business sectors. The Group will strive to take full advantage of the
current solid financial condition and efficient management to intensify
the continuous development of the Group and to maximise the
Shareholders’ value.
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APPRECIATION

The Board would like to extend its heartfelt gratitude to all of our
staff for their hard work and dedication to the Group, and to our
Shareholders for their continuous support and trust in the Company.

By order of the Board
China Oriental Group Company Limited

HAN Jingyuan
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 19 March 2015
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Han Jingyuan, aged 58, is the Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer of the Company (appointed on 13 November 2003), and also
serves as a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Han
graduated from the People’s University in 1994 with a degree in
management. Mr. Han began his career in Metallurgy in 1984 when
he was employed as a deputy mine manager and mine manager of
Han’erzhuang Iron Mine. Mr. Han has in-depth industry knowledge
and 29 years of extensive operational and managerial experience
in the iron and steel industry. Mr. Han was awarded the honorary
title of “Hebei Metallurgy Top Ten Man”, “Outstanding Entrepreneur
of Hebei Province”, “Excellent Privately-owned Enterprises
Entrepreneur in Hebei Province” and “Economic Top Ten Men of
Honesty and Credibility in China” etc.. Mr. Han is the Vice Chairman
of the Metallurgy Chamber of All-China Federation of Industry
and Commerce, the Honorary Chairman of Hong Kong Tong San
Chamber of Commerce and the Vice Chairman of Tangshan Charity
Federation. Mr. Han was also the 9" and 11" representative of the
People’s Congress of Hebei Province, PRC. Mr. Han is the director
and the controlling shareholder of Wellbeing Holdings Limited, the
controlling shareholder of the Company. Mr. Han Jingyuan is the
father of Mr. Han Li, the Executive Director of the Company.

Mr. Zhu Jun, aged 51, is an Executive Director (appointed on
23 December 2003), Executive Deputy General Manager of the
Company, and also serves as the Chief Operating Officer of the
Company and a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company.
Mr. Zhu graduated in 2001 from a graduate programme of the
Communist Party School in Hebei Province with a diploma in
management. Prior to working in the steel industry, Mr. Zhu worked
for 10 years as deputy director of Qianxi County Chemical Fertilizer
Factory which was based in Qianxi County, Hebei Province. Mr. Zhu
joined Jinxi Iron Factory in 1992 and later served as deputy director.
Mr. Zhu has had 21 years of working experience in the iron and steel
industry.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (continued)

Mr. Shen Xiaoling, aged 54, is an Executive Director (appointed on
1 July 2005), Deputy General Manager and Chief Financial Officer
of the Company and also serves as a director of certain subsidiaries
of the Company. He obtained a diploma in management from the
Hebei Province Communist Party School in 2001. Before joining the
Group, Mr. Shen was the head of China Construction Bank Luanxian
Sub-branch. Mr. Shen also had 5 years experience acting as the
Head of China Construction Bank Qianxi Sub-branch and more than
6 years of experience as the deputy head of Bank of China Qianxi
Sub-branch. Mr. Shen has been the deputy general manager of Jinxi
Limited since January 2002.

Mr. Zhu Hao, aged 48, is an Executive Director of the Company
(appointed on 21 November 2007). Mr. Zhu graduated at Tianjin
Nankai University and obtained his Master degree in accounting from
the University of New South Wales in Australia. Mr. Zhu is a senior
economist in China.

Mr. Han Li, aged 27, is an Executive Director of the Company
(appointed on 7 February 2012). Mr. Han joined the Group in 2009
as the assistant to the Financial Controller of the Company. He is
currently the executive assistant to Chief Executive Officer of the
Company and also serves as a director of certain subsidiaries of
the Company. He assists the Chief Executive Officer and Chief
Operating Officer of the Company managing the daily operations
of the Group. Currently, Mr. Han is the 12" representative of the
People’s Congress of Hebei Province, PRC and 17" representative
of People’s Congress of the Communist Youth League of China;
he was awarded ¥ MmEEFZAFHREBAY (Enterprise Brand
Special Contribution Character) and Fz&EHE 2012 FEFE N A
) - P EIER BEIRR BRI 1+ K EIFTIR £ (The Harmonious China 2012
Influential People’s Award in Energy Saving). Mr. Han is the son of
Mr. Han Jingyuan, the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer and
the substantial shareholders (within the meaning of the Part XV of
the SFO) (holding approximately 45.04% of the issued shares of the
Company) of the Company.
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Directors’ and Senior Management’s Biographical Information EERSREBASHBEEER

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Ondra Otradovec, aged 46, is a Non-executive Director of
the Company (re-appointed on 16 January 2015). Mr. Otradovec
graduated from State University of New York in Stony Brook with
a Bachelor degree in Finance. Mr. Otradovec is the Global Head of
Mergers & Acquisitions at ArcelorMittal (a substantial shareholder
of the Company). Since 2003, Mr. Otradovec has been responsible
for Mergers & Acquisitions at ArcelorMittal and has closely been
involved in a large number of acquisitions, mergers and divestments
undertaken by the company. Mr. Otradovec was also involved in the
acquisition of Hunan Valin Steel Tube & Wire Company and since
18 November 2005 has served as a director of Hunan Valin Iron
and Steel Company Limited (a company listed in Shenzhen Stock
Exchange). Previously, he worked at HSBC Investment Bank, and
was responsible for corporate finance work in emerging markets.
During this period, he worked with Mittal Steel on the acquisition
of Nova Hut in Czech Republic and other steel companies. Mr.
Otradovec acted as a Non-executive Director of the Company from
2 January 2009 to 15 July 2013.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (continued)

Mr. Vijay Kumar Bhatnagar, aged 67, is a Non-executive
Director of the Company (appointed on 24 February 2012). Mr.
Bhatnagar holds a bachelor’s degree in Metallurgical Engineering
and is an alumnus of AMP of Harvard Business School. He was the
executive vice president and member of management committee
of ArcelorMittal (a substantial shareholder of the Company, a
company listed on the stock exchange of Amsterdam, Paris,
Luxembourg, Madrid and New York) and the chief executive officer
of ArcelorMittal in India and China. He was also the chief executive
officer of ArcelorMittal Eastern Europe (Poland, Czech Republic
and Romania). Previously, he served as the chief executive officer
of Mittal Steel Poland and the chief operating officer of Mittal Steel
Temirtau, Kazakhstan and the managing director of Mittal Steel
Lazaro Cardenas, Mexico. Mr. Bhatnagar has over 38 years of
experience in line and staff functions in aluminum and electronics
industries in India. Mr. Bhatnagar was also appointed as a director
of Hunan Valin Iron and Steel Company Limited, a listed company in
the PRC, since January 2011.

Mr. Vijay Kumar Bhatnagar resigned as a Non-executive Director of
the Company on 1 January 2015.
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Directors’ and Senior Management’s Biographical Information EZRSRERASHBEEER

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wong Man Chung, Francis, aged 50, is an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company (appointed on 25 August
2004). He is a Certified Public Accountant (Practising) and has
over 26 years of experience in auditing, taxation, management
and financial advisory. Mr. Wong is currently an independent non-
executive director of Digital China Holdings Limited, Integrated
Waste Solutions Group Holdings Limited and Wai Kee Holdings
Limited whose shares are listed on the main board of the Stock
Exchange. He was once the independent non-executive director
of Sys Solutions Holdings Limited, a company listed on the growth
enterprise market of the Stock Exchange, the independent non-
executive director of Yardway Group Limited and eForce Holdings
Limited, companies listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange
and the independent non-executive director of Lightscape
Technologies Inc., a company with its shares listed and traded in
the OTC Bulletin Board of the United States of America. Mr. Wong
is a director of both Union Alpha C.P.A. Limited and Union Alpha
CAAP Certified Public Accountants Limited, both are professional
accounting firms. He is also a founding director and member of
Francis M.C. Wong Charitable Foundation Limited, a charitable
institution. Previously, Mr. Wong worked for KPMG, an international
accounting firm for 6 years and the Hong Kong Securities Clearing
Company Limited for 2 years. Mr. Wong is a fellow member of Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants of the United Kingdom, a Certified
Tax Advisor of Taxation Institute of Hong Kong. Mr. Wong is also an
associate member of Institute of Chartered Accountants in England
and Wales and a member of the Society of Chinese Accountants
& Auditors, Hong Kong. Mr. Wong holds a Master Degree in
Management conferred by Guangzhou Jinan University.
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Directors’ and Senior Management’s Biographical Information EZREREBEASHBEEER

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (continued)

Mr. Wang Tianyi, aged 68, is an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company (appointed on 7 February 2012). He is
currently the executive vice president of The Chinese Society For
Metals. Mr. Wang has over 41 years of extensive experience in
the steel industry. Mr. Wang studied metallurgical machinery in 1t
FIMEERT (Beijing Institute of Iron and Steel Engineering) (now
known as 1t R EHE K University of Science and Technology of
Beijing) from 1965 and graduated in 1970. He then worked at HB&5
3 £ E AR S L2 7 (Handan Iron and Steel Group Company
Limited) (“Handan IS Group”) from 1970 to 1995 and held various
management and professional positions, included the position of a
technician, deputy factory manager and executive deputy general
manager. From 1995 to 2008, Mr. Wang re-designated and worked
at EILAEEBE AR E (A7) (Tangshan Iron and Steel Group
Company Limited) (“Tangshan IS Group”) as the chairman and
managing director. From 2005 to 2011, he was also the deputy
chairman and managing director of & il = /E il & # & BRETA
7] (Shougang Jingtang Iron and Steel Company Limited). From July
2008 to August 2011, he acted as the vice chairman of a1t 3]
£ B BREE/AF] (Hebei Iron and Steel Group Company Limited)
(“HBIS Group”). HBIS Group was established after the merger of
Tangshan IS Group and Handan IS Group on 30 June 2008.
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Directors’ and Senior Management’s Biographical Information EERSREBASHBEEER

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (continued)

Mr. Zhou Guoping, aged 68, is an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company (appointed on 1 December 2012). Mr.
Zhou graduated from China University of Political Science and Law
(former known as The Peking College of Political Science and Law)
in 1969. Mr. Zhou started his career since 1970, he had been acted
as the Deputy Director of Public Security Bureau of Jilin City, Jilin
Province of China (FRIEMEEMM AL BEEIFK), and the
Deputy Director of the State Security Bureau in Jilin City (&K
BxR%Z 2 BEIHE). He had also been in charge of the Jilin City
Forestry Security Bureau (& MM ME AL ER). Mr. Zhou was the
Deputy Director of Municipal Justice Bureau of Changchun City,
Jilin Province of China (Bl & #& K& alAZREIHEK), and the
Deputy Director of Public Security Bureau of Changchun City (&
AN AL BE|HEK) and the Deputy Secretary of Politics and Law
Committee of Changchun City (K&EMEBUAZBIZER) from 1994
to December 1997. During the period, Mr. Zhou was awarded the
title of Police Commissioner, Class Il (Deputy Bureau Level)( — % Z
EEEZAT (BIBAR)). Since December 1997, Mr. Zhou was appointed
as the Deputy Director and the Secretary of Committee for Discipline
Inspection of Beijing Traffic Management Bureau (1t R A% 3258
ERBEIBRFALZER) il his retirement in 20086.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Yu Lifeng, aged 38, is the general manager of Hebei Jinxi Iron
and Steel Group Company Limited. Mr. Yu began his career in 1995
when he was employed as the sales supervisor of Han’s erzhuang
I[ron Mine, and joined the Group in 1996. Mr. Yu has been awarded
the honorary title of Workers’ Model in Qianxi Country (38785 45 &)
245), Ten Outstanding Youths in Tangshan City (BT +AEF
A1), Success New Entrepreneur of Hebei Province (A1t 4 8l 2£1h
E).
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Directors’ and Senior Management’s Biographical Information EZREREBEASHBEEER

SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)

Mr. Yu Jianshui, aged 47, is a general manager of Hebei Jinxi Iron
and Steel Group Zhengda Iron and Steel Company Limited. Mr. Yu
was graduated at Hebei Polytechnic University in steel metallurgy
and obtained a MBA from University of Northern Virginia in June
2009. He joined the Group after graduation until May 2005 and
was employed as the deputy general executive manager of Shanxi
Province Xiaoyi City Chengcai Iron and Steel Company in May 2005.
He then re-joined the Group in April 2006. He has been awarded
County Technological Selected Talent (BRI AL ), Ten
Outstanding Youths in the County (81 A& & 4F ), Outstanding
Youth in Post of Tangshan City (& LLITH & FMEAIEF ), Workers’
Model in Hebei Province (Al 1t & 45 #)1540), The First Class Honour
of Technological Improvement in Tangshan City (B LT R &
—%1%), The Third Class Honour of Technological Improvement in
Hebei Province (JAJ b & Bl 26 = &£ 48),

Mr. Au Yeung Siu Kei, aged 39, is the Financial Controller and
Company Secretary of the Company. Mr. Au Yeung is a fellow
member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
and a fellow member and Certified Public Accountant (Practising)
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Au
Yeung holds a bachelor degree in professional accountancy from
the Chinese University of Hong Kong and bachelor degree in laws
from the University of London. Mr. Au Yeung has over 16 years of
experience in auditing, accounting and financial management.
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The Company is committed to sound corporate governance
practices designed to promote greater transparency, investor
confidence and the continued development of the Company and
its subsidiaries (the “Group”) with the best long term interest of the
Group and value enhancement for all shareholders as our ultimate
goal. The Company also believes that sound corporate governance
practices benefit the Group’s employees and the community in
which the Group operates.

CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES
(“CG CODE”)

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company has complied the
Principles and Code Provisions with the CG Code set out in
Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) throughout the year ended 31
December 2014, except for the deviation with explanation disclosed
below.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (THE “BOARD”)

During the year under review, the Board comprised the following
Directors and the composition is set out as follows:

Executive Directors
Mr. Han Jingyuan (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Zhu Jun (Executive Deputy General Manager

and Chief Operating Officer)
Mr. Shen Xiaoling

(Deputy General Manager and Chief Financial Officer)
Mr. Zhu Hao
Mr. Han Li

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Vijay Kumar Bhatnagar
(resigned on 1 January 2015)
Mr. Ondra Otradovec
(re-appointed on 16 January 2015)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Wong Man Chung, Francis

Mr. Wang Tianyi

Mr. Zhou Guoping

China Oriental Group Company Limited B3y 4 B % B A FR A 7]
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (THE “BOARD”) (continued)

ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

The Board assumes responsibility for leadership and control of the
Company and is collectively responsible for promoting the success
of the Company by directing and supervising the Company’s affairs.
It should act in the best interest of the Company and its Shareholders
at all times. The Board sets strategies for the Company and monitors
the performance and activities of the senior management.

The Executive Directors of the Company are responsible for the day
to day operations of the Company whereas the Independent Non-
executive Directors of the Company are responsible for ensuring a
high standard of financial and management reporting to the Board
and shareholders of the Company as well as to provide a balanced
composition in the Board so that there is a strong independent
element on the Board.

BOARD COMPOSITION

The composition of the Board is reviewed regularly to ensure that it
has a good balance of expertise, skills and experience, which can
meet the requirements of the business of the Group. The Directors’
biographical information is set out on pages 24 to 30.

There is a clear division of responsibilities between the Board and
the management. The Board is responsible for providing high-level
guidance and effective oversight of the management while day-to-
day management of the Group is delegated to the management
team of each respective subsidiary. Generally speaking, the Board is
responsible for:

»  Formulating the Group’s long-term strategy and monitoring the
implementation thereof;

Approval of dividends;

Reviewing and approving the interim and annual reports;
Ensuring good corporate governance and compliance;
Monitoring the performance of the management;

Reviewing and approving any material acquisition and disposal
of assets and other material transactions.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (THE “BOARD”) (continued)

Except for Mr. Han Li, who is the son of Mr. Han Jingyuan, to the
best knowledge of the Directors, there is no financial, business,
family relationship among the other Directors. All of them are free to
exercise their independent judgments.

The Board authorises the management to carry out the strategy
that have been approved. During the year under review, seven
Board meetings were held and the principal business transacted
included approving interim and annual results and reports,
assessing business development and business performance and
implementation. The attendance record of each Director for the year
ended 31 December 2014 is set out as follows:

Board

BEER

Mr. Han Jingyuan BHURST A
Mr. Zhu Jun RESLE
Mr. Shen Xiaoling LB A
Mr. Zhu Hao =it
Mr. Han Li BhEE

Mr. Vijay Kumar Bhatnagar
(resigned on 1 January 2015)
Mr. Ondra Otradovec
(re-appointed on 16 January 2015)

Ondra Otradovec e 4

Mr. Wong Man Chung, Francis B REL
Mr. Wang Tianyi FREEE
Mr. Zhou Guoping BB S A

All Directors have access to the Company Secretary who is
responsible for ensuring that Board procedures are complied with
and all applicable rules and regulations are followed.

China Oriental Group Company Limited B3y 4 B % B A FR A 7]

Vijay Kumar Bhatnagar 54
(R=F—AF—HA—HFHT)

BEER(EERD®
BREBHEEBBUURLENR TN B
BEEMAER HthES2EMETMET

B XBANRBREE - EFHEHmE
B S H

EERREEEERITCH/ENRE -
REOBEFERN EERAEARALRE
o CREZIZFHERMEFTHR
FEXEMRS  FEEBERMRA
NREEA@ES BEFRHBE_T—NOF
TZA=tT—BLFEZHERRET

Number of Board Meeting
Attended/Eligible Attended
BEsREERLE
BERHERH

3/7
s
s
6/7
s
4/7

NA/ A 3

(R=F—aF—HF NABBEZE)

777
6/7
6/7

PIEERYAEARMERITHE M
NREAMERERREZRZEFENARE
Fr M8 ST R BB R AR A R AR o



Corporate Governance Report ¥ &8#E

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (THE “BOARD”) (continued)

The Board ensures that its members are supplied, in a timely
manner, with all necessary information in a form and of a quality
appropriate to enable the Board to discharge its duties.

The minutes of Board meetings recorded all the details of the matters
considered by the Board and the decisions reached, including any
concerns raised by Directors or dissenting views expressed. Minutes
of Board meetings are kept by the Company Secretary and are
available for inspection by any Director.

A.  Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the
role of the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer should be
separate and should not be performed by the same individual.
The Board has Chairman to provide leadership to the Board
in terms of establishing policies and business directions and
monitor the daily operation of the Group.

Mr. Han Jingyuan currently serves as the Chairman and the
Chief Executive Officer of the Company. The Board believes
that there is no immediate need to separate the roles of
Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company
because the role of chief executive officer/general manager of
the Company’s major operating subsidiaries are performed by
other persons.

The Board will consider the segregation of the roles of the
Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company in
light of the future development of the operating activities or
businesses of the Group.

B.  Independent Non-executive Directors

During the year under review, the Company had three
Independent Non-executive Directors of whom Mr. Wong Man
Chung, Francis has appropriate professional qualifications
and experience in financial matters in compliance with Rules
3.10(1) and 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (THE “BOARD”) (continued)

B.

Independent Non-executive Directors (continued)

The Company has received, from each of the Independent
Non-executive Directors, an annual confirmation of their
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
The Company considers all the Independent Non-executive
Directors to be independent.

Appointment, Re-election and Removal of Directors

According to the Bye-laws of the Company, any Director
appointed to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the
Board shall hold office only until the next following annual
general meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for
re-election. At each annual general meeting, one-third of the
Directors for the time (or if their number is not a multiple of
three, the number nearest to but not greater than one-third)
shall retire from office by rotation provided that notwithstanding
anything therein, the Chairman and/or the Managing Director
of the Company shall not, whilst holding such office, be
subject to the retirement by rotation or be taken into account
in determining the number of the Directors to retire in each
year and the Director appointed to fill a casual vacancy or
as an addition to the Board shall not be taken into account
in determining which particular Directors or the number of
Directors who are to retire by rotation. The Company will
consider amending the Bye-laws to comply with the Code
Provision A.4.2 of the CG Code in the future.

Taking the Code Provision A.4.2 of the CG Code into
consideration, Mr. Han Jingyuan, the Chairman of the
Company, is willing to retire at the forthcoming annual general
meeting and being eligible, offer himself for re-election.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (THE “BOARD”) (continued)

C.

Appointment, Re-election and Removal of Directors
(continued)

All the Directors of the Company are appointed for a specific
term and subject to re-election. Currently, Mr. Han Jingyuan,
Mr. Zhu Jun, Mr. Shen Xiaoling, Mr. Zhu Hao and Mr. Han
Li being the Executive Directors are appointed for a fixed
term of three years. Mr. Ondra Otradovec being the Non-
executive Director is appointed for a fixed term of two years.
All Independent Non-executive Directors, including, Mr. Wong
Man Chung, Francis, Mr. Wang Tianyi and Mr. Zhou Gouping
are appointed for a fixed term of one year. All the Directors
are still subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the
annual general meeting of the Company in accordance with
the provisions of the Company’s bye-laws.

Except for the change in the Board as mentioned above,
during the year under review, no other Director was appointed
to fill any causal vacancy or otherwise.

Responsibilities of Directors and Company Secretary

All Directors fully appreciate their role and duties as Directors
of the Company.

New Director will be given an introduction to the Group’s major
business activities, induction into their responsibilities and
duties, and other regulatory requirements.

The Company Secretary is responsible for keeping all Directors
updated on the Listing Rules and other relevant regulatory
requirements.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (THE “BOARD”) (continued)

E.

Directors’ and Officers’ liability

Appropriate insurance cover on Directors’ and Officers’
liabilities has been provided by the Company to cover potential
legal actions against Directors and Officers.

Training and Support for Directors and Company Secretary

Each newly appointed Director will be received comprehensive,
formal and tailored induction on the first occasion of his
appointment, so as to ensure that he has appropriate
understanding of the business and operations of the Group and
that he is fully aware of his responsibilities and obligations under
the Listing Rules and relevant regulatory requirements.

There are also arrangements in place for providing continuing
briefing and professional development to Directors at the
Company’s expenses whenever necessary.

The Company provides regular updates relating to the Group’s
business and the legislative and regulatory environments in
which the Group conducts its business to the Directors.

The Directors are committed to comply with the Code
Provision A.6.5 of the CG Code. All Directors have participated
in continuous professional development to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills to ensure that their contribution to
the Board remains informed and relevant for the year ended
31 December 2014. The Company will arrange internally-
facilitated briefings for Directors and reading material on
relevant topics will be issued to Directors where appropriate.
All Directors are encouraged to attend relevant training courses
at the Company’s expenses.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (THE “BOARD”) (continued)

Training and Support for Directors and Company Secretary
(continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Company has
provided reading materials on corporate governance matters
and update on the Listing Rules to all Directors for their
reference and studying. Besides, Mr. Vijay Kumar Bhatnagar
and Mr. Wong Man Chung, Francis also attended other
seminars and training sessions arranged by other professional
firms/institutions. Record of training each Director has received
for the year ended 31 December 2014 were kept by the
Company.

During the year under review, Mr. Au Yeung Siu Kei, the
Financial Controller and Company Secretary of the Company,
undertook 43 hours of professional training to update his skills
and knowledge in compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing
Rules.

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”) as its own
code for dealing in securities of the Company by the Directors.

The Company has made specific enquiry of all Directors and
all Directors have confirmed that they have complied with the
required standard as set out in the Model Code during the year
under review.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (THE “BOARD”) (continued)

H.  Board Committees

As an integral part of sound corporate governance, the Board
has established the following committees whose authorities
and functions, compositions and duties are set out below:

(1) Audit Committee

The audit committee of the Company (“Audit
Committee”) has been established since 2005 with
specific written terms of reference. The terms of
reference of the Audit Committee (which was available
on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company) have included those specific duties as set
out in the Code Provision C.3.3 of the CG Code, with
appropriate modifications when necessary. Pursuant to
its terms of reference, the Audit Committee is required,
amongst other things, to consider and recommend
to the Board the appointment, re-appointment and
removal of the external auditors and to approve their
remuneration, to review the interim and annual financial
statements, to review the Group’s financial controls,
internal controls and risk management system including
the adequacy of resources, qualification and experience
of staff of the accounting and financial reporting function
and their training programmes and budget, and to
consider any findings of major investigation of internal
control matters as delegated by the Board or on its
own initiative and management’s response. The Audit
Committee should meet at least twice each year and
when the need arises.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Audit
Committee comprised three Independent Non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Wong Man Chung, Francis as the
Chairman of the Audit Committee during the year under
review and Mr. Wang Tianyi and Mr. Zhou Guoping as
the members of the Audit Committee, in compliance with
Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (THE “BOARD”) (continued) EER(ESER D
H.  Board Committees (continued) H ZEELE2@
(1) Audit Committee (continued) (1) FEEZEZ#H)
For the year ended 31 December 2014, two meetings of BE—_E—NE+_-_B=+—
Audit Committee were held. The attendance record for HIFEE BT EeHBR;T
each member is set out as follows: MREE » JE Z HFECEE
zzw :
Number of Audit
Committee Meeting
Audit Attended/
Committee members Eligible Attended
BEREZEEERHE

EREEERE BERHERE
Mr. Wong Man Chung, Francis EIRAEAE 2/2
Mr. Wang Tianyi FRELE 1/2
Mr. Zhou Guoping BB S A 2/2
The Audit Committee has reviewed the Group’s EREEBe D BEAEEEHE
consolidated financial statements for the year ended —FE—NE+—_F=+—HIF
31 December 2014 and has also discussed the FEZEHMBRE - MR
internal control, the accounting principles and practices p,m MNEIESITE T - NEE TR
adopted by the Group. The Audit Committee is of S EBRIER - BAZE
the opinion that the consolidated financial statements BeRA  5EASHBKSRE
have been prepared in accordance with the applicable ThizERest L) - EmRal
accounting standard, the Listing Rules and the statutory EETFTHTFRE - WERER
requirements and that adquate disclosures have been KYEE 75 2 H55E

made in the annual report.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (THE “BOARD”) (continued)

H.  Board Committees (continued)

@

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee has been established
since 2005 with specific written terms of reference. The
terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee
(which was available on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company) have included the duties
which are set out in the Code Provision B.1.2 of the
CG Code, with appropriate modifications when
necessary. The terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee was amended on 23 March 2012 in order to
comply with the amendment of the Listing Rules.

Pursuant to its terms of reference, the Remuneration
Committee is required, amongst other things, (i) to
determine, with delegated responsibility from the
Board, the remuneration packages of individual
Executive Directors and senior management; (i) to make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
of Non-executive Directors; (iii) to review and approve
performance-based remuneration by reference to
corporate goals and objectives resolved by the Board
from time to time; (iv) to review and approve the
compensation payable to the Executive Directors,
Non-executive Directors and senior management in
connection with any loss or termination of their office
or appointment to ensure that such compensation is
determined in accordance with relevant contractual
terms and that such compensation is otherwise fair
and not excessive for the Company; and (v) to ensure
that no Director is involved in deciding his/her own
remuneration. The Remuneration Committee should
meet at least once a year and when the need arises.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (THE “BOARD”) (continued)

H.  Board Committees (continued)

)

Remuneration Committee (continued)

During the year under review, the Remuneration
Committee comprised Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company, Mr. Wong Man Chung,
Francis, as the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee, Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of
the Company, Mr. Han Jingyuan and the remaining
Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company
namely, Mr. Wang Tianyi and Mr. Zhou Guoping as the
members of the Remuneration Committee in compliance
with the Rule 3.25 of the Listing Rules.

For the year ended 31 December 2014, one meeting
of Remuneration Committee was held. The attendance
record of each member is set out as follow:

Remuneration
Committee members

FMZEEERE

Mr. Wong Man Chung, Francis BEXREAE
Mr. Han Jingyuan BRI A
Mr. Wang Tianyi FREEE
Mr. Zhou Guoping B S

Details of the remuneration of each Director for the year
ended 31 December 2014 are set out in the Note 31(b)
to the consolidated financial statements in this annual
report.

AW E

EsR(EER D
H EEfZ8gw
o) FWNZEEE)
REBEFERN  HFHEEEE

EARRBIUYIERITESE
T%E(%M@,\m}_r) PN

RABEERTIEREFENTE
BERIUR L AR R H 8078
SIEHITES I RERAE
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oK 8 - A& EmMRAIES.25
R IRE ©
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HIEFE  HFMEagHET
//\Elﬂ?ﬂ% X@Z,\Zﬂjfnﬂfi
U
Number of

Remuneration Committee
Meeting Attended/
Eligilbe Attended
FHEEEERLE
BFERHERH

11
11
11
11

EEERBE_T—NF+=
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (THE “BOARD?”) (continued) EER(EER] @
H.  Board Committees (continued) H ZEEZE=2@
2)  Remuneration Committee (continued) ©2) FHWEE@ @)

The biographies of members of the senior management MNAREHAEHN SR EIEE K

team at the date of this annual report are disclosed in the ENERENAFRIEENS

section headed “Directors’ and Senior Management’s TREBAENEREER] —&)

Biographical Information” in this annual report. Pursuant NI EE - RIEPEEATAIZ

to the Code Provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, the STANEX EBASIEATE, - EE

emoluments of the senior management (excluding —E-NE+=—_A=+—H1t

Directors) for the year ended 31 December 2014 are FEYNFEAEEE(TE

within the following bands: HES)NHFMNFATESE :

Number of individuals
AE

2014 2013

—E-mF —E-=F

RMBY1 - RMB¥1,000,000 ARE1TEARE1,000,0007 1 1

(approximately HK$1 to HK$1,269,761) (#11LE 1,260,761 BT

RMBY1,000,001 - RMBY2,000,000 ARE1,000001 TEAR 200000070 2 2
(approximately HK$1,269,762 0 HK$2539,521)  (£)1,260,762 BT % 2,639,521 L)

RMBY2,000,001 - RMBY3,000,000 AR2,000,001 T2 ARE 3,000,000 0 0
(approximately HK$2,530,522 to HK$3,809.282)  (#)2,530,522/870% 3,809,282t

(3)  Nomination Committee (B) BEZEE

The Nomination Committee has been established on 23
March 2012 with specific written terms of reference. The
terms of reference of the Nomination Committee (which
was available on the websites of the Stock Exchange
and the Company) have included the duties which are
set out in the Code Provision A.5.2 of the CG Code, with
appropriate modifications when necessary.

The duties of the Nomination Committee are mainly
to (i) review the Board composition, developing and
formulating relevant procedures for the nomination and
appointment of directors; (i) make recommendations to
the Board on the appointment and succession planning
of directors; (jii) assess the independence of independent
non-executive directors; and (iv) recommend the
measurable objectives for achieving diversity of the
Board.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (THE “BOARD”) (continued)

H.  Board Committees (continued)

©)

Nomination Committee (continued)

The Nomination Committee, will take into consideration
a candidate’s qualification, experience, expertise and
knowledge, the requirements applicable to the Company
and the structure and composition of the Board,
identifies, reviews and nominates with diligence and care
candidates suitably qualified as Board members before
making recommendations to the Board for their final
appointment.

During the year under review, the Nomination Committee
comprised Mr. Han Jingyuan, Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer of the Company, as the chairman of
the Nomination Committee and the Independent Non-
executive Directors of the Company namely, Mr. Wong
Man Chung, Francis, Mr. Wang Tianyi and Mr. Zhou
Guoping as the members of the Nomination Committee
in compliance with Code Provision A.5.1 of the CG
Code.

For the year ended 31 December 2014, one meeting of
Nomination Committee was held. The attendance record
of each member is set out as follows:

Nomination
Committee members

REEZEBKE

Mr. Han Jingyuan BRUREA
Mr. Wong Man Chung, Francis |mYXORAEAE
Mr. Wang Tianyi FREEE
Mr. Zhou Guoping B S

AW E

EER(EEZERD#®
H ZEELE2@
(b)) HEZEZ#®)
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FIEAR

Number of
Nomination Committee
Meeting Attended/
Eligible Attended
REZEEERLE
BFERHERH

11
11
11
11
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company has adopted the board diversity policy (the “Board
Diversity Policy”) on 30 August 2013 with a view to achieving a
sustainable and balanced development of the Group. The Company
sees increasing diversity at the Board level as an essential element
in supporting the attainment of its strategic objectives and its
sustainable development.

In designing the Board’s composition, Board diversity has been
considered from a number of aspects, including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. All
Board appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates
will be considered against objective criteria, having due regard for the
benefits of diversity on the Board.

Measurable Objectives

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. The ultimate decision will be based
on merit and contribution that the selected candidates will bring to
the Board.

Monitoring and Reporting

The Nomination Committee will review the Board’s composition
under diversified perspectives and monitor the implementation of
the Board Diversity Policy annually. During the year under review,
the Nomination Committee has reviewed the Board’s composition
(including the gender, age, cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of
service) which has been disclosed on pages 24 to 30 in this report
and considered the current Board’s composition is appropriate.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is dedicated to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance and the Board is responsible for performing
the corporate governance duties as stipulated in the Listing Rules.

During the year under review, the Board had developed and
reviewed the Company’s policies and practices on corporate
governance and review the compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Financial Reporting

The Board acknowledges that it is its responsibility to prepare
financial statements of the Company for each financial period which
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and
ensure that financial statements are prepared in accordance with
statutory and regulatory requirements and applicable accounting
standards. The Board also ensures the timely publication of the
financial statements of the Company.

The Board confirms that, to the best of its knowledge and, having
made appropriate enquires, it considers that the Company has
adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the
foreseeable future and has prepared the financial statements on a
going concern basis accordingly.

Internal Controls

The Board recognises that constant changes taking place in the
business environment call for periodical reviews of the system of
internal controls. Well-managed internal controls enable effective
and efficient operations, ensure the reliability of internal and external
reporting and assist in the compliance with applicable laws and
regulations.

The Board recognises that it has overall responsibility for the Group’s
system of internal controls and for reviewing its effectiveness.
Pursuant to the Group’s framework, senior management is primarily
responsible for designing and implementing the policies and
procedures of the internal controls, which the Board and the Audit
Committee oversee the actions of senior management and monitor
the effectiveness of the controls previously established.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (continued)
Internal Controls (continued)

The Company’s internal audit function is performed by the internal
audit department of the Group which reports to the Chief Operating
Officer and the Chief Financial Officer and has direct access to
the Chairman of the Audit Committee. The Chief Operating Officer
and the Chief Financial Officer report directly to the Chief Executive
Officer. The internal audit functions include (i) review and report on
internal and operational controls; (i) follow-up on the suggestions
made by external auditors; (i) ongoing monitoring and reviews on
different operating cycles; and (iv) special review of areas of concern
identified by senior management.

However, internal control can only provide reasonable but not
absolute assurance against errors or deliberate attempt to defraud
the Company. The Board and the Audit Committee devote to
closely monitor the efficiency and effectiveness of the system of
internal control of the Group. Periodical meetings will be held and
guidance notes and training will be issued and provided to the senior
management where appropriate, to ensure an efficient and effective
system of internal control is in place.

In December 2014, the Company had engaged a professional firm
to conduct a review on the system of internal control regarding the
procedures on identifying and reporting on notifiable transactions
and connected transactions under the Chapter 14 and 14A of
the Listing Rules respectively. The Company is in the process of
taking appropriate actions to address the findings identified by
the professional firm during its review, which is expected to be
completed in April 2015. Afterwards, the professional firm will
conduct a follow-up review in assessing whether those appropriate
actions are taken by the Company and issue a follow-up review
report to the Company in May or June 2015.

External Auditor

For the year ended 31 December 2014 and up to the date of this
report, the external auditor of the Group is PricewaterhouseCoopers.
Fees of auditing services and non-auditing services (including interim
review and taxation services) provided by PricewaterhouseCoopers
and its member firms of the same international network for the year
ended 31 December 2014 were RMB 5.4 million and RMB 0.14
million respectively.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (continued)

External Auditor (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2014 and up to the date of this
report, PricewaterhouseCoopers and its member firms of the same
international network provided non-audit services mainly on interim
review and taxation services. These non-audit services are engaged
only as they are more effective or economical than those available
from other service providers and will not constitute adverse impact
on the independence of the external auditor. The nature and ratio of
annual fees to external auditor for non-audit services and for audit
services in 2014 have been scrutinized by the Audit Committee.

Risk Management

The Group’s business, financial conditions and results of operation
may be affected by risk and uncertainties pertaining to the Group’s
business. The factors set out below are those that the Company
believes could result in the Group’s financial conditions or results
of operations differing materially from expected or historical results.
There may be other risks in addition to those mentioned below which
are unknown to the Group or which may not be material now but
could turn out to be material in the future.

Operation Risk

The Group’s results are affected by trends in the industry in which
it operates. Income from the operations is dependent upon the
conditions in global iron and steel market and the real estate
business in the PRC. Therefore there can be no assurance that
changes in these conditions will not adversely affect the Group’s
financial conditions and results of operations.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (continued)

Market Risk

Over 90% of the Group’s consolidated sales and contribution to
results are derived from the Mainland China. The Group operates in
highly competitive and rapidly changing market. The intensification
of price competition by existing competitors, product innovation or
technical advancement could adversely affect the Group’s financial
conditions and results operations.

Credit Risk and Interest Rate Risk

Credit risk arises from a number of areas. These include the
possibility that a counter-party in a transaction may default during the
settlement process. It also arises from lending, settlement, treasury,
transaction and other activities undertaken by the Group. During the
year under review, the Group entered into iron ore swap contracts
S0 as to reduce the impact of the volatility of the iron ore price on
the Group. The Group uses a combination of iron ore derivatives to
achieve the above purpose. The day-to-day credit management is
performed by the management of the respective subsidiaries with
reference to the creditworthiness, the type and value of collateral
available, the length of business relationship with the counter-parties
and the receipt of bank acceptance notes from customers.

Exchange Risk

Foreign exchange risk is the risk to the Group’s financial conditions
and results of operations arising from movements of foreign
exchange rates. The Group mainly operates in the Mainland China
with most of the transactions denominated and settled in RMB. The
Group’s foreign exchange risk primarily arises from the procurement
of iron ores and the relevant products from overseas suppliers and
the Group’s Senior Notes, which is denominated and settled in USD.
Foreign exchange rates fluctuate in reaction to the macro-economic
performance of different countries and fund flows between countries
arising from trade or capital commitments. The Group has not used
any derivatives to hedge its exposure to foreign exchange risk for the
years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company
shall at all times have the right, by written requisition sent to the
Company’s registered office and its principal office in Hong Kong
for the attention of the Board or the Company Secretary, to require
a special general meeting (the “SGM”) to be called by the Board
for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition;
and such meeting shall be held within two (2) months after the
deposit of such requisition. The written requisition must state the
purposes of the SGM, signed by the Shareholder(s) concerned
and may consist of several documents in like form, each signed
by one or more of those Shareholders. If the requisition is in
order, the Company Secretary will ask the Board to convene a
SGM by serving sufficient notice in accordance with the statutory
requirements to all the registered Shareholders. On the contrary, if
the requisition is invalid, the Shareholders concerned will be advised
of this outcome and accordingly, a SGM will not be convened as
requested. Shareholder(s) of the Company holding (i) not less than
one-twentieth of the total voting rights of all Shareholders having
the right to vote at the general meeting; or (i) not less than 100
Shareholders, can submit a written request stating the resolution
intended to be moved at the annual general meeting (the “AGM”)
or a statement of not more than 1,000 words with respect to the
matter referred to in any proposed resolution or the business to
be dealt with at a particular general meeting. The written request/
statements must be signed by the Shareholder(s) concerned and
deposited at the Company’s registered office and its principal office
in Hong Kong for the attention of the Company Secretary, not less
than six weeks before the AGM in the case of a requisition requiring
notice of a resolution and not less than one week before the general
meeting in the case of any other requisition. If the written request
is in order, the Company Secretary will ask the Board (j) to include
the resolution in the agenda for the AGM; or (ii) to circulate the
statement for the general meeting, provided that the Shareholder(s)
concerned have deposited a sum of money reasonably determined
by the Board sufficient to meet the Company’s expenses in
serving the notice of the resolution and/or circulating the statement
submitted by the Shareholder(s) concerned in accordance with
the statutory requirements to all the registered Shareholders.
On the contrary, if the requisition is invalid or the Shareholder(s)
concerned have failed to deposit sufficient money to meet the
Company’s expenses for the said purposes, the Shareholder(s)
concerned will be advised of this outcome and accordingly, the
proposed resolution will not be included in the agenda for the AGM
or the statement will not be circulated for the general meeting.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (continued)

Shareholders and other stakeholders may at any time send their
enquiries and concerns to the Board by addressing them to the
Company Secretary by post to the Hong Kong office.

IMPACT ON NEW LEGISLATION, POLICY AND
PROCEDURES

As mentioned before, over 90% of the operations of the Group
are carried in the Mainland China. Any change in the policy and
procedure in the Mainland China may have adverse effects on the
Group’s operation and results.

Also, the introduction of new legislation and rules by the Stock
Exchange, Securities and Futures Commission and other regulatory
bodies in Hong Kong and overseas may induce changes in market
conditions that in turn adversely affect the operating results of the
Company.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board recognises the importance of good communication with
the Shareholders of the Company. A Shareholders Communication
Policy was adopted on 23 March 2012 to ensure that Shareholders
are provided with ready, equal and timely access to balanced and
understandable information about the Company. The policy is
posed on the Company’s website. The Company has established
various channels of communications with its Shareholders such
as publication of interim and annual reports, press release and
announcement of the latest development of the Company in a
timely manner. To promote effective communications, the Company
also maintains a website at www.chinaorientalgroup.com, where
updated information on the Company’s business developments
and operations and other information are posted, including all the
regulatory announcements relating to the Company and the poll
results on the business day following the general meeting (if any).

The general meeting of the Company provides a forum for exchange
of views between the Shareholders of the Company and the Board.
The Chairman of the Board, the Directors (including Independent
Non-executive Directors) and senior management of the Group and
where applicable are available to answer questions at the general
meeting of the Company.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS (continued)

The rights of the Shareholders of the Company and the procedures
for demanding a poll on resolution at general meeting are contained
in the Company’s Bye-laws. Details of such right to demand a
poll and the poll procedure are included in all circulars to the
Shareholders of the Company which will call for a general meeting
and will be explained during the proceedings of the meeting.

Upon the implementation of the amendments of the Listing Rules
with effect from 1 January 2009, all resolutions proposed at general
meeting will be voted by poll. The poll voting results will be posted
on the websites of the Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk) and
the Company (www.chinaorientalgroup.com) immediately after the
relevant general meetings.

Under the Code Provision E.1.2 of the CG Code, the Chairman of the

Board should attend the annual general meeting of the Company.

The attendance record of the 2014 AGM held on 17 June 2014 for
each of the individual Director was as follows:
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS (continued) HERRZ2BEZ)

Board Attendance of

BER i RE %
2014 AGM
—E-mF

BRRBFAE

Executive Directors

HITES

Mr. Han Jingyuan BHURTE 1/1

Mr. Zhu Jun KELEE 0/1

Mr. Shen Xiaoling LR LA 0/1

Mr. Zhu Hao RERE 1/1

Mr. Han Li BhEE 0/1

Non-executive Directors

HPITES

Mr. Vijay Kumar Bhatnagar Vijay Kumar Bhatnagar 7t 4 1/1

(resigned on 1 January 2015) (R=ZF—HF—H—HEHT)
Mr. Ondra Otradovec Ondra Otradovec %t 4 NA/ 8
(re-appointed on 16 January 2015) (R-ZF—RF—HA+ NHEBEZF)

Independent Non-executive Directors

BYkHTES

Mr. Wong Man Chung, Francis BN REE 11

Mr. Wang Tianyi ITRERE 0/1

Mr. Zhou Guoping JEIBF e 0/1

The Company will continue to enhance communication and
relationship with its Shareholders. Enquiries from the Shareholders of
the Company are dealt with in an informative and timely manner.
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The Board presents their annual report and the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2014,

INCORPORATION AND LISTING OF THE COMPANY

The Company was incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted
company with limited liability on 3 November 2003 under the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and the shares of the Company
(the “Shares”) were listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”) on 2 March 2004.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the Company’s principal
activities are investment holding and trading of steel products and
iron ore. The principal activities of the Group are manufacture and
sales of iron and steel products, trading of steel products and iron
ore and real estate business.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Over 90% of the Group’s consolidated sales and contribution to
results are derived from the PRC and mainly from the production
and sales of iron and steel products and real estate business for
the year ended 31 December 2014 and are set out in Note 5 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group’s consolidated income statement for the year ended 31
December 2014 and its consolidated balance sheet as at that date,
together with the balance sheet of the Company as at 31 December
2014, are set out in the financial statements on pages 83 to 88.

At a Board meeting held on 19 March 2015, the Board did not
recommend the payment of any final dividend in respect of the year
ended 31 December 2014.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from Friday,
22 May 2015 to Wednesday, 27 May 2015 (both dates inclusive),
during which period no transfer of Shares may be registered, for
the purposes of ascertaining shareholders’ entitlement to attend
and vote at the annual general meeting. The record date for the
annual general meeting shall be 27 May 2015. In order to be eligible
to attend and vote at the forthcoming annual general meeting of
the Company, all transfer documents accompanied by the relevant
share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s branch share
registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at Level 22,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong not later than
4:30 p.m. on Thursday, 21 May 2015.

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the consolidated financial results and assets, liabilities
and non-controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial
years, is set out on page 244.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND INVESTMENT
PROPERTIES

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment and
investment properties of the Group and the Company during the year
are set out in Notes 7 and 8 to the consolidated financial statements
respectively.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the Company’s issued share capital
during the year are set out in Note 21 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group during the year
are set out in Note 22 to the consolidated financial statements.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 December 2014, the Company’s accumulated losses
amounted to RMB 923 million (2013: RMB 792 million) and the
Company did not have distributable reserves.

At 31 December 2014, the Group’s retained earnings amounted to
RMB 5,128 million (2013: RMB 5,100 million).

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-laws or the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, which would
oblige the Company to offer new Shares on a pro rata basis to
existing shareholders of the Company.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The sales attributable to the five largest customers of the Group
accounted for less than 30% of the Group’s consolidated total
revenue for the year.

The purchases attributable to the five largest suppliers of the Group
accounted for less than 30% of the Group’s consolidated total
purchases for the year.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year ended 31 December 2014 and up to
the date of this report were as follows:

Executive Directors
Mr. Han Jingyuan
Mr. Zhu Jun

Mr. Shen Xiaoling
Mr. Zhu Hao

Mr. Han Li
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DIRECTORS (continued)

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Vijay Kumar Bhatnagar
(resigned on 1 January 2015)
Mr. Ondra Otradovec
(re-appointed on 16 January 2015)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Wong Man Chung, Francis

Mr. Wang Tianyi

Mr. Zhou Guoping

In accordance to the Bye-laws 87 of the Company and the Code
Provision A.4.2 of the CG Code, Mr. Han Jingyuan, Mr. Zhu Hao,
Mr. Wong Man Chung, Francis and Mr. Zhou Guoping will retire
from office by rotation and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-
election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

In accordance to the Bye-law 86(2) of the Company, Mr. Ondra
Otradovec being eligible, will offer himself for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

The Directors’ fee specified in each of the existing service contracts
of Mr. Han Jingyuan, Mr. Zhu Hao, Mr. Ondra Otradovec, Mr.
Wong Man Chung, Francis and Mr. Zhou Guoping is HK$600,000,
HK$400,000, HK$400,000, HK$400,000 and HK$400,000
respectively. The basis of determining the Directors’ fee was based
on the mutual negotiation between level of the Directors with
reference to the range of prevailing directors’ fee for directors of
listed companies in Hong Kong. Other than Mr. Han Jingyuan is the
father of Mr. Han Li, the Executive Director of the Company and Mr.
Ondra Otradovec is the Global Head of Mergers & Acquisitions at
ArcelorMittal (a substantial shareholder of the Company), Mr. Zhu
Hao, Mr. Wong Man Chung, Francis and Mr. Zhou Guoping do not
have any relationships with any directors, senior management or
substantial or controlling shareholders of the Company.

The Company has received, from each of the Independent Non-
executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers
all of the Independent Non-executive Directors are independent.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, no Director had a material
interest in any contract of significance to the business of the Group
to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party during
the year.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
BIOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION

Biographical details of the Directors and senior management of the
Company are set out on pages 24 to 31 of the annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

The Executive Directors have service contracts with the Company
for a fixed term of three years. The Non-executive Director has
service contract with the Company for a fixed term of two years. The
Independent Non-executive Directors have service contracts with
the Company for a fixed term of one year. All the service contracts
with the Executive Directors and the Non-executive Director may be
terminated by either party giving not less than three months’ notice
in writing.

Apart from the Director service contracts, Mr. Han Jingyuan, Mr.
Zhu Jun, Mr. Shen Xiaoling and Mr. Han Li also have other service
contracts with the Company and its subsidiaries. The emoluments
specified in other service contracts with them are determined by
the remuneration committee of the Company with reference to
their respective qualification and experience, responsibilities to be
undertaken, and the prevailing market level of remuneration of similar
position.

Save as disclosed above, no Director has a service contract with
the Company which is not determinable by the Company within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.
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BORROWINGS WITH COVENANTS RELATING TO
SPECIFIC PERFORMANCE OF THE CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDER

Pursuant to the covenants of the 2015 Senior Notes and 2017
Senior Notes of the Company, there are specific performance
obligations imposed on the Company’s controlling shareholders
which require that each of Mr. Han Jingyuan and ArcelorMittal
should directly or indirectly retain at least 20% of the total voting
power of the voting stock of the Company. As at 31 December
2014, the outstanding aggregate principal of the 2015 Senior Notes
and the 2017 Senior Notes amounting to US$490,183,000 and
US$207,585,000 respectively will be matured on 18 August 2015
and 17 November 2017 respectively.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2014, the interest and short positions of the
Directors, chief executives and their associates of the Company in
the Shares, underlying Shares or debentures of the Company or any
of its associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)) which (i) were required
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and
short positions which they were taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO); or (i) were required, pursuant to section
352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein;
or (i) were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10 of
the Listing Rules and adopted by the Company were as follows:
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN EENESNERRKRE D)
SECURITIES (continued)

() Interest in the Shares and underlying Shares of the Company: () RARERDAEBEARD 8RS

Interests in
underlying Percentage
shares of the
pursuant to Company’s
Interests in Shares share issued share
RipER options capital
Corporate Personal RIBHAE K27 Long/Short
Interest Interest HEEERG BEITRE position
ARER BARR MR MBS /%R
Mr. Han Jingyuan (Notes 1)
BHUREE (1) 1,317,502,849 - - 44.94% Long (4F)
- 2,800,000 28,500,000 1.07% Long (4F)
Mr. Zhu Jun
KERE - 2,400,000 7,800,000 0.35% Long (1)
Mr. Shen Xiaoling
ER T E - 2,400,000 7,800,000 0.35% Long (1)
Mr. Zhu Hao
ERE - - 7,800,000 0.27% Long (4F)
Mr. Han Li
BHKE - - 5,400,000 0.18% Long (1)
Mr. Vijay Kumar Bhatnagar
(resigned on 1 January 2015)
Vijay Kumar Bhatnagar % &
(R=F—HF—FA—HE) - - 2,000,000 0.07% Long (4F)
Mr. Wong Man Chung, Francis
BENTRRE - - 6,600,000 0.23% Long (&)
Mr. Wang Tianyi
FRERE - - 2,000,000 0.07% Long (47)

Mr. Zhou Guoping
BT %&£ - - - - _
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SECURITIES (continued)

U

(i)

Interest in the Shares and underlying Shares of the Company:

(continued)

Note:

At 31 December 2014, Mr. Han Jingyuan beneficially
owned 63.15% of the issued share capital of Wellbeing
Holdings Limited (“Wellbeing Holdings”) and held 16.09%
of the issued share capital of Wellbeing Holdings on trust
for the benefit of certain employees of the subsidiary of
the Company. Wellbeing Holdings beneficially owned
1,255,849,124 Shares, representing approximately 42.84%
of the issued share capital of the Company. Mr. Han also
beneficially owns 100% of the issued share capital of
Chingford Holdings Limited (“Chingford Holdings”) which
beneficially owned 61,653,725 Shares, representing
approximately 2.10% of the issued share capital of the
Company.

At 31 December 2014, Mr. Han Jingyuan beneficially owns
2,800,000 Shares, representing approximately 0.10% of the
issued share capital of the Company.

Interest in the debentures of the Company:

Mr. Han Jingyuan (Note 1)
SRR A (BRE)

Notes:

©

At 31 December 2014, Mr. Han Jingyuan beneficially owned
US$7,000,000 and US$4,400,000 of the 2015 Senior Notes
and 2017 Senior Notes of the Company respectively.
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BEERESNEZERAE®

R BRI A7 A0 AE B A (D O A 2

(#&)
sk

1. RZITE—WNF+_A=+—81"
FE AIUR ST 4 B 2 % B Wellbeing
Holdings Limited ([Wellbeing
Holdings]) B # 77 & 4~63.15%
gz WAEEARARAEAR
AffE AR E T ERENN GRS
Wellbeing Holdings 2 % 77 B¢ A
#916.09% %5 ° Wellbeing Holdings
B A 1,255,849,124 f% A% 1% -
AR R BB BITIRAE) 42.84%
g o BRI ENE &P A Chingford
Holdings Limited ([Chingford
Holdings])) K & &8 2 B 1T AR AN
il Chingford Holdings & &5 # &
61,653,725 %15 - AMEAREIR
BATIRARR) 2.10% ©

R_ZE—NE+=-_A=+—8"
BUUR ST EE A 2,800,000 %
B HEARRREBEITRAK
0.10% °

RARBHEZFRIES

Personal
Interest

BAED

US$11,400,000
11,400,000 37T

#

m

M RZZT—WF+—A=+—8"
BUREEEREREARTINC
Z-HEEEEBRR-_T—+F
1B 5 A 7,000,000 7T &
4,400,0003 7T °
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SECURITIES (continued)

Save as disclosed above and in the section of “Equity-settled
Share Option Scheme” below, at 31 December 2014, none
of the Directors, chief executives and their associates of the
Company had any interest and short positions in the Shares,
underlying shares and Senior Notes of the Company or any
of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept
under Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code.

EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted three share option schemes approved by
the Shareholders at the annual general meeting held on 17 May
2006 (“2006 Share Option Scheme”), approved by the Shareholders
at the special general meeting held on 20 December 2010 (“2010
Share Option Scheme”) and approved by the Shareholders at the
special general meeting held on 15 May 2013 (“2013 Share Option
Scheme”) respectively (collectively referred to as “Share Option
Schemes”) for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to
eligible participants who are regarded as valuable human resources
of the Group or who have contributed to the growth and success
of the Group with their performance and other factors (e.g. their
years of service with the Company and/or work experience and/or
knowledge in the industry etc.) to contribute further to the Company.

The Share Option Schemes do not specify any minimum holding
period and/or performance targets as a condition for the exercise
of an option but subject to the rules of the Share Options Schemes.
The Board is empowered with the authority to determine granting of
an option on a case by case basis taking into account of the relevant
factors as the Board in its sole discretion considers appropriate.

BEENBENERRAR @

B £SO Tt 0 [ AP s B RO BB AR
fEET 8 | —EnpTIERS) _T r
FT-A=1+—H #MESEE K

”ﬂIEﬁﬁAE&E%%A%$
RAESEAAREREE (EE R E
KEIEGRPIE XV ER) BBt ~ 1HE

B RERRETHERBREZ

KEAERPIE 352 1R PAFE R IR

&M FrRCEk - SARIRIE ST RIZA A

RN A B AP R e A el oK

AN

E o
LUR S R A RB R At &

RN BB RN = (BB BT 80 5 &
RZZFZRNFRATEARITHRRE
FRE LhRRIENBRETSI( =
TEAFRREFE]) BT —FF
tT-AZ-+HET m&%%%ﬁ@tm
BERAENBERETE( 2 —FFE
Pt El ) RE= “—_$£H+£E
[ITHRRFHAS EARRAENE
Rt 8([ —T—=FBERETE ) (B
R B8 DERAER2RER
THERE BNECEABMEBAER
28HE  RERR/AKENEEAN
BRINEF 2 RAREMBAZRE A E
B BRI EL BB (BN FEAR
REMRBFH R LITAN TIEER
R/ SMHBE)  WHARRHELESE
& o

BRETET AR ERAFANREH
Mk, SITEERERERORRA
= HRBEBRESENGR BTE
ERAENETSEEMNERNELE
BREGTELEZENERSBEENA
AR -
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EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The maximum number of Shares issuable under the Share Option
Schemes to each eligible participant within any 12-month period is
limited to 1% of the Shares in issue at any time. Any further grant
of share options in excess of this limit is subject to Shareholders
approval in a general meeting.

Subject to earlier termination by the Company in general meeting or
by the Board, the Share Option Schemes shall be valid and effective
for a period of ten years from their respective dates of adoption.

The subscription price shall be such price determined by the Board
at its absolute discretion and shall be no less than the highest of: (a)
the closing price of Shares as stated in the daily quotations sheet
of the Stock Exchange on the date of grant; (b) the average closing
price of the Shares as stated in the daily quotations sheet of the
Stock Exchange for the 5 business days immediately preceding the
date of grant; and (c) the nominal value of a Share on the date of
grant.

The consideration payable on acceptance of the options granted to
an grantee under the respective Share Option Schemes is HK$1.00.

The total number of Shares available for issue under the Share
Option Schemes upon exercising of all outstanding share options
granted and yet to be exercised is 293,020,000 Shares, representing
approximately 10% of the issued share capital of the Company as at
31 December 2014.

Pursuant to the 2006 Share Option Scheme, the Company can
issue options so that the total number of Shares that may be
issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under the 2006
Share Option Scheme are 290,500,000 Shares, representing
approximately 9.91% of the issued share capital of the Company as
at 31 December 2014. Eligible participants of the 2006 Share Option
Scheme includes all Directors (whether Executive or Non-executive
and whether independent or not) and any employees (whether full-
time or part-time) of any company in the Group or any entity in
which any member of the Group holds an equity interest (whether
on an employment or contractual or honorary basis or otherwise and
whether paid or unpaid). Details of the share options outstanding
under 2006 Share Option Scheme were as follows:

China Oriental Group Company Limited V23 Jy 52 [F % B A FR 2 7]
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EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Date of grant
St
Mr. Han Jingyuan 2009/2/24
EHER
201011/26
Mr. Zhu Jun 2009/2/24
RELE
Mr. Shen Xiaoling 2009/2/24
i3y
Mr. Zhu Hao 2009/2/24
RERAE

Exercisable
period

T

2000/2/24

to

ES

2019/2/23

201012/20

to

ES

2016/5/16

2009/2/24

to

ey
==

2019/2/23

2000/2/24

to

oy
==d

2019/2/23

2000/2/24

to

S

2019/2/23

Exercise
price

i
HKS
BT

139

300

Closing price
per Share
immediately
before the
date of grant

2
BT RA
SREHE
HK$
BT

1.24

300

No. of

options
outstanding
at

1 January 2014

i
“E-mE
-B-H
AR
BERERE

2,900,000

6,000,000

2,600,000

2,600,000

2,600,000

LRGSR BRER &)

No. of

No. of options
options  exercised/ No. of
granted  cancelled/ options
during the lapsed during  outstanding
year ended the year ended at
31December 31 December 31 December
2014 2014 2014

REE
REE ZE-mE i

“%-mE t=h  Z%-BF

= =t-ft =
=t-AL EEASAR/  =1-A
FEART HE/AMG RGEN
WEREHR  BRESE  MREMA

- - 2,900,000

- - 6,000,000

- - 2,600,000

- - 2,600,000

- - 2,600,000

Approximate
shareholding
percentage of
the underlying
Shares for
the options

in the share
capital of

the Company

BRERE
BtERDE
BAtiRRE
L

0.10%

0.20%

0.09%

0.09%

0.09%
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EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Date of grant
sils

Mr. Han Li 200912129
Ly ki
Mr. Wong Man 2009/2/24
Chung, Francis
EY G
Employees 2009/2/24
[E8
Employees 200912129
[E8
Qther Participants 2009/2/24
Ay

China Oriental Group Company Limited B3y 4 B % B A FR A 7]

Exercisable
period

AT

20101329

to

ey
T

2019/12/28

200072124

to

S

2019/2/23

2000/2/24

to

S

2019/2/23

2010/3/29

to

S

2019/12/28

2000/2/24

to

S

2019/2/23

Exercise
price

e
HKS
BT

2.84

2.84

Closing price
per Share
immediately
before the

No. of
options
outstanding
at

date of grant 1 January 2014

B
RFHAH
SRYHE
HK$
BT

211

2.1

B
“%-p
-5
Kt
B e

1,600,000

2,000,000

1,200,000

140,060,000

4,600,000

No. of
options
granted

during the
year ended
31 December
2014

REZ
ZE-mE
+=R
=t+-At
FERRT
WERESR

No. of
options
exercised/
cancelled/
lapsed during
the year ended
31 December
2014

REE
“E-pE
t=8
=t-Bt
EERBHE/
i/ XuH
FEHE

(2,000,000)
(Note 1)
(#it1)

DR R B IRER &)

No. of
options
outstanding
at

31 December
2014

B
“g-ns
t=8
=t-
ATt
LRE

1,600,000

2,000,000

1,200,000

140,000,000

2,600,000

Approximate
shareholding
percentage of
the underlying
Shares for
the options

in the share
capital of

the Company

BRERE
BbERLE
BAfBE
GH

0.05%

0.07%

0.04%

4.78%

0.09%



Directors’ Report EER#%

EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Date of grant
sl
QOther Participants 2009/5/11
AfppaE
Total
43

Exercisable
period

T

2009/511
t

o

S

2019/510

Exercise
price

i
HKS
BT

150

Closing price
per Share
immediately
before the
date of grant

BE
RFEAH
SRYHE

HKS

BT

149

LRGSR BRER &)

Approximate
No. of shareholding
No. of options percentage of
options  exercised/ No.of the underlying
No. of granted  cancelled/ options  Shares for
options duringthe lapsed during  outstanding  the options
outstanding  year ended the year ended at  inthe share
at  31December 31December 31 December capital of
1 January 2014 2014 2014 2014 the Company
REZ

MEE  -E-RF i

R -%-BF tzh  Z%-B%

Z2-QE t=A  Zt-Bt t2A ERERE
-B-B  Zt-BL EEREAE/ Zt-B  REMERAR
ROEH  FERRT  EH/ANW AMIEH  RAHRE

BRESR NERESR  BRERR  BREMR  HMEOM
2,000,000 - - 2,000,000 0.07%

168,150,000 - (2,000,000 166,150,000 5.67%

it 1 RBE-T-—NE+=-A=+—H

Note 1: During the year ended 31 December 2014, 2,000,000 options

were lapsed.

LIEFFEA + 2,000,00017 R EE K
% -
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EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Pursuant to the 2010 Share Option Scheme, the Company can issue
options so that the total number of Shares that may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the 2010 Share Option
Scheme are 146,486,250 Shares, representing approximately 5% of
the issued share capital of the Company as at 31 December 2014.
Eligible participants of the 2010 Share Option Scheme includes
all Directors (whether Executive or Non-executive and whether
independent or not) and any employees (whether full-time or part-
time) of any company in the Group or any entity in which any member
of the Group holds an equity interest (whether on an employment
or contractual or honorary basis or otherwise and whether paid
or unpaid) and any person considered by the Directors to have
contributions to any company in the Group or any entity in which any
member of the Group holds an equity interest. Details of the share
options outstanding under 2010 Share Option Scheme were as
follows:

Closing
price No. of
per Share options
immediately  outstanding
Exercisable Exercise beforethe  at 1 January
Date of grant period price  date of grant 2014
R-%-BF
b3 -B-H
RTAAN RATEN
R¥R  WARHEE k€ SRUNE  BREHE
HKS$ HKS
BT BN
Mr. Han Jingyuan 20110328 2011/04/27 3.08 3.08 9,800,000
BHERE fo
Y
2021/03/27
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DR R B IRER &)

RE-T-TFEREE ARF]H
BITERE UWERE_FT—ZFE
it 8% TR MM AT A B ETT(E
2 /146,486,250 1%

petn

By A 31T B AL 1D 42

VAT

EARAFIR-ZE—NME+— A

=+ HNEBRTRALNE% - —FT—F
FREETENAERZEEREAR
AERER(BRITESTICFNTES
RERELEL)  AEBEEIFAKE QA
AL BUEIRC B 2 BB R A m H)
] R 8 (i 2 B elR )
(T EERERARE A RBHE MM
ERELEEFINEFTR /Y AKEE
MR ERRIAEEEMKXERARFE
P AR m e EA B R E L 'R E[A
T o ZE-TFEEREE T HARITE

(EREN-

HBSRESHE I T -
No. of

options

No.of exercised/
options  cancelled/
granted lapsed during
during the the year
year ended ended
31 December 31 December
2014 2014

REE

ZE-|E

REZ =8
E-mE Zt-AL
= EER
t-At  BAfE/
EERRT 2/ 5HM
MEREHE  BRERR

No. of
options
outstanding
at

31 December
2014

R=%-mF
:
=+-A
RATEH
EREEE

9,800,000

Approximate
shareholding
percentage of
the underlying
Shares for
the options

in the share
capital of

the Company

BRERE
BbERLE
BatBE
fREat

0.33%
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EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Mr. Han Jingyuan
BHEEE

Mr. Zhu Jun
RERE

Mr. Shen Xiaoling
iy

Date of grant

RFH

2012/03/30

2010/12/24

2012/03/30

2010/12/24

2012/03/30

Exercisable

period

TR

2012/06/30

to

S

20201219

2010/12/24

to

E

202012119

2012/03/30

to

3

202012119

2010/12/24

to

oy
==

202012119

2012/03/30

to

ES

202012119

Closing

price

per Share
immediately

Exercise  before the
price  date of grant

2§

EFRHH

68  SRUFE
HKS$ HK$

BT BT

203 201

318 317
203 2,01

318 3.17
2.03 2,01

No. of
options
outstanding
at 1 January
2014

R=%-RE
-B-H
RATEN

BREHE

9,800,000

2,600,000

2,600,000

2,600,000

2,600,000

No. of
options
granted

during the
year ended
31 December
2014

S
“E-PE
=R
=t+-AL
EERRT
WEREHE

No. of
options
exercised/
cancelled/
lapsed during
the year
ended

31 December
2014

REZ
ZE-PF
=
=t-BL
EER
Bt/
i/ XAm
FlEHE
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No. of
options
outstanding
at

31 December
2014

RZE-mE
t2h
=t+-8
RATEN
BHEHR

9,800,000

2,600,000

2,600,000

2,600,000

2,600,000

Approximate
shareholding
percentage of
the underlying
Shares for
the options

in the share
capital of

the Company

BRERE
RtERLE
RAfRE
GHTER

0.33%

0.09%

0.09%

0.09%

0.09%
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EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Exercisable
Date of grant period

R¥E  AfEHE

Mr. Zhu Hao 2010112124 201012124
FERE o
3

202011219

20120330 2012/03/30

to

ES

2020112119

Mr. HanLi 20101224 2010/12/24
Bhik o

E2

2020112119

201200330 2012/03/30
to

E

2020112119

Mr. Vijay Kumar 20120330 2012/03/30

Bhatnagar to

(resigned on 1 January 2015) z

Viiay Kumar Bhatnagar 4 2020112119
(K-F-5F-F-A

#)
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Closing

price

per Share
immediately

Exercise  before the
price  date of grant

25

EFAMH

€  SRUFE
HKS$ HK$

B B

318 3.17
203 201

3182 317
203 201

2.03 201

No. of
options
outstanding
at 1 January
2014

RZB-mE

-A-A

ATER

FRE#A

2,600,000

2,600,000

1,200,000

2,600,000

2,000,000

DR R B IRER &)

No. of
options
granted

during the
year ended
31 December
2014

REZ
“E-PE
=R
=t-AL
EERET
WEREHR

No. of
options
exercised/
cancelled/
lapsed during
the year
ended

31 December
2014

REE
ZE-PF
=
=t-HL
EER
Bt/
/KM
fElERE

No. of
options
outstanding
at

31 December
2014

RZ-Z-BE
=
=t-8
RATEH
B 1

2,600,000

2,600,000

1,200,000

2,600,000

2,000,000

Approximate
shareholding
percentage of
the underlying
Shares for
the options

in the share
capital of

the Company

RRERE
RtERLE
RAfkE
TR

0.09%

0.09%

0.04%

0.09%

0.07%
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EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) DR EEENERERSE 2

No. of Approximate
options shareholding
No.of  exercised/ percentage of
Closing options  cancelled/ No. of - the underlying
price No. of granted lapsed during options  Shares for
per Share options during the theyear  outstanding  the options
immediately  outstanding  year ended ended at  inthe share
Exercisable Exercise beforethe  at1January 31December 31 December 31 December capital of
Date of grant period price  date of grant 2014 2014 2014 2014  the Company
REZ
ZE-PF
St =
Z2-0F  Zt-AL RoE-mE
R=B-mF T=A EER t2A ERERE
b3 -f-A  =t-At Bfife/ ST-B  REERLR
BFRAH ATRE  FERRT /RN AMTEH  RABRE
RFR  OAREM kB SRUTE  BREHE WBRERR  BREZE  RREHE  #MEsM
HKS HKS
BT BT
Mr. Wong Man Chung, Francis ~ 2010112/24  2010/12/24 3.182 347 2,300,000 - - 2,300,000 0.08%
EXTEE o
S
202012119
20120330 2012/03/30 208 2.01 2,300,000 - - 2,300,000 0.08%
to
S
2020/12119
Mr. Wang Tianyi 20120330 2012/03/30 203 201 2,000,000 - - 2,000,000 0.07%
IRERE o
S
202012119
Employees 20101224 20101224 3182 347 22,200,000 - - 22,200,000 0.76%
8 o
S
2020112119
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EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) DREEENBRESTE e

No. of Approximate

options shareholding

No.of  exercised/ percentage of

Closing options  cancelled/ No.of the underlying

price No. of granted lapsed during options  Shares for

per Share options during the theyear  outstanding  the options

immediately  outstanding  year ended ended at  inthe share

Exercisable Exercise beforethe  at1January 31December 31 December 31 December capital of

Date of grant period price  date of grant 2014 2014 2014 2014 the Company
REE
ZE-PF
REZ t=A

E-RF Zt-HE R-R-RE
N-2-BE +2A FER TR RREME
33 -B-B  =t-Bt BfiE/  =t-B  RGERLE
RFEA RIEH  FEART  HE/5WM RS RABRE
B¥R  WEHE iR SRUTE BRERR NRREME RREBE  BRERR  #iMEst

HKS HKS$
BT BT
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EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Pursuant to the 2013 Share Option Scheme, the Company can
issue options so that the total number of Shares that may be
issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under the 2013
Share Option Scheme are 146,571,250 Shares, representing 5%
of the issued share capital of the Company as at 31 December
2014. Eligible participants of the 2013 Share Option Scheme
includes all Directors (whether Executive or Non-executive and
whether independent or not) and any employees (whether full-time
or parttime) of any company in the Group or any entity in which
any member of the Group holds an equity interest (whether on an
employment or contractual or honorary basis or otherwise and
whether paid or unpaid) and any person considered by the Directors
to have contributions to any company in the Group or any entity in
which any member of the Group holds an equity interest. As at 31
December 2014, no options were granted under the 2013 Share
Option Scheme.

The accounting policy for equity-settled share option is stated in the
Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year were rights to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of Shares or debentures
of the Company or any other body corporate granted to any Director
or their respective spouses or children under 18 years of age, or were
any such rights exercised by them; or were the Company or any of
its holding companies, fellow subsidiaries and subsidiaries a party to
any arrangement to enable the Company’s Directors, their respective
spouses or children under 18 years of age to acquire such rights in
any other body corporate.

CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed above and the transactions as disclosed in
Note 42 to the consolidated financial statements, no controlling
shareholder or any of its subsidiaries have any contract of
significance with the Company or its subsidiaries during the year.

LRGSR BRER &)

BE_ZT-—=FEREFE - X277
BITHRE UERBE-ZT—=FER
RIS TR EHOM B BRERITHER
Al T EITHAR (D B85 146,571,250 %
B HERARAR_ZE—NF+=
A=1+—HBE#ETRANE% - —FT—=
FHERESINAGERZHAERIERR
AERES(ERIITIENITRERE
BEN) AEEEAKERFSAEER
FAKEARHEERA RN EMNELE
WEIE B (Bm i ecR) (TmikiE
A AR EESIUNE M ARRE SR
FIUREESRAEANEETMKE QT
K AEBERKE R RIIFERA BT
FREBELEROENAL - RZF
—MOF+_A=+—08 BiERE_F
— =R B L IR -

AR E B S AT BRI A #
IEHRERM T2 25

ESRBROBEFHNER

B ESCPTR BRSO - M EREMIRRE - 8
BEENESARFSENERBIRD
TARNFRERAEBEEARRAHL
R R AR A BRI sk B 75 M 25 Y
A RITEEARFERN  MARRK
HAEER AR - [/ XK B AR MM B
REERI S ER T BEARBE
= RESENRBIRHTN\ERNT
A B E TR A ABRRBAZSEN

EXEH
B £ SCP BRSO Ko & DF I T ¥R BT R 42
PR BRI R S5 45 B B SR S EL AL AAT Y

BRARFRNLERARTDRENER
AT EMEARK -

Annual Report 2014 —ZF—U4E4EH

73



74

Directors’ Report EER# %

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

At 31 December 2014, the interests or short positions of every
person, other than a Director or Chief Executive of the Company,
in the Shares and underlying Shares as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO
are as follows:

Number of
Name shares held
£ RO &R
Wellbeing Holdings 1,255,849,124
ArcelorMittal Holdings AG 867,711,151
(“AM Holdings AG”) (Note 1) 509,780,740
([ AM Holdings AG]) (3% 1)
ING Bank N.V. (Notes 2 and 4) (f§5£2 & 4) 289,990,800
289,990,800
Macquarie Bank Limited (Notes 3 and 4) 219,789,940
BB IRITERAR (HE3 %4) 219,789,940
Notes:

(1) At 31 December 2014, Mr. Lakshmi Niwas Mittal and Mrs. Usha
Mittal beneficially own 39.39% of the issued share capital of
ArcelorMittal which indirectly holds the entire equity interest in
AM Holdings AG, which beneficially owns 867,711,151 Shares,
representing approximately 29.60% of the issued share capital of
the Company.

On 30 April 2008, ArcelorMittal entered into a put option
agreement with ING Bank N.V., pursuant to which ArcelorMittal
granted an option to ING Bank N.V. to sell 289,990,800 Shares
to ArcelorMittal, representing 9.89% of the issued share capital of
the Company. On 25 March 2011, ArcelorMittal entered into the
extended put option agreement with ING Bank N.V. by extending
the aforesaid put option agreement for a further term of 36 months
from 30 April 2011.
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Percentage

of the Company’s
issued share Long/Short
capital Position

HAELATE
BITRABDL BORE
42.84% Long (4F)
29.60% Long (#F)
17.39% Long (&F)
9.89% Long ()
9.89% Short (%)
7.50% Long (#F)
7.50% Short (%)
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (continued)

Notes: (continued)

On 28 April 2014, ArcelorMittal entered into an amendment
and restatement agreement with ING Bank N.V. to extend the
aforesaid put option arrangement until 30 April 2015.

On 27 April 2014, ArcelorMittal entered into an agreement
with Macquarie Bank Limited to sell 219,789,940 shares in the
Company to Macquarie Bank Limited (the “Macquarie Sale”)
at an average price of HK$1.7 per Share. At the same time,
Macquarie Bank Limited entered into a put option arrangement
with AcelorMittal similar to the terms of the amendment and
restatement agreement to be entered into between AcelorMittal
and ING Bank N.V. for extending the put option agreement until 30
April 2015.

On 28 April 2014, Deutsche Bank Aktiengesellschaft exercised the
extended put option agreement entered into between AcelorMittal
and Deutsche Bank Aktiengesellschaft on 25 March 2011 (the “DB
Option”) to require ArcelorMittal to purchase 219,789,940 shares
in the Company.

On 30 April 2014, the sale of 219,789,940 shares in the Company
by Deutsche Bank Aktiengesellschaft to ArcelorMittal under the
exercise of the DB Option and the Macquarie Sale were completed
at the same time.

On 30 April 2008, ArcelorMittal and ING Bank N.V. entered into a put
option agreement, pursuant to which ArcelorMittal granted an option to
ING Bank N.V. to sell 289,990,800 Shares to ArcelorMittal, representing
9.89% of the issued share capital of the Company. On 25 March 2011,
ArcelorMittal entered into the extended put option agreement with ING
Bank N.V. by extending the aforesaid put option agreement for a further
term of 36 months from 30 April 2011.

On 28 April 2014, ArcelorMittal entered into an amendment and
restatement agreement with ING Bank N.V. to extend the aforesaid put
option arrangement until 30 April 2015.

As at 31 December 2014, ING Bank N.V. owned 289,990,800 Shares,
representing 9.89% of the issued shares capital of the Company.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (continued)

Notes: (continued)

©)] On 27 April 2014, ArcelorMittal entered into an agreement with Macquarie
Bank Limited to sell 219,789,940 shares in the Company to Macquarie
Bank Limited (the “Macquarie Sale”) at an average price of HK$1.7 per
Share. At the same time, Macquarie Bank Limited entered into a put option
arrangement with ArcelorMittal similar to the terms of the amendment and
restatement agreement to be entered into between ArcelorMittal and ING
Bank N.V. for extending the put option agreement until 30 April 2015.

As at 31 December 2014, Macquarie Bank Limited owned 219,789,940
Shares, representing 7.5% of the issued share capital of the Company.

4) Pursuant to the Panel Decision of the Takeovers and Mergers Panel (the
“Panel”) dated 14 October 2014, ING Bank N.V. and Macquarie Bank
Limited were parties presumed to be acting in concert with AM Holdings
AG. For details of the full decision of the Panel, please refer to the website
of the Securities and Future Commission.

Saved as disclosed above and in Directors’ Interests and Short
Positions in Securities sections, at 31 December 2014, no person,
other than a Director or Chief Executive of the Company, had
interests or short positions in the Shares and underlying shares of
the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Company had conducted a review of the related
party transactions of the Group and is satisfied that all connected
transactions and continuing connected transactions have been
properly reported and complied with the disclosure requirements
in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The following
transactions between certain connected parties (as defined in
the Listing Rules) and the Group have been entered into and/or
are ongoing for which relevant announcements and independent
shareholders’ approval, if necessary, had been made and obtained
by the Company in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules
and disclosed in the Note 42 to the consolidated financial statements
of the Company where applicable.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Continuing connected transactions

On 27 December 2012, Jinxi Limited entered into a framework
agreement with Qianxi County Longba Charging Company Limited
(“Longba Charging”), an associate of a substantial shareholder of a
subsidiary of the Company, for the purchase of lime products and
related products from Longba Charging by Jinxi Limited and/or its
subsidiaries for the three years ending 31 December 2015. The
annual cap for this transaction for the year ended 31 December 2014
was RMB 180 million. The total amount of the aforesaid transaction
for the year ended 31 December 2014 was RMB 75.6 million
(excluding VAT).

On 27 December 2012, Jinxi Limited entered into a framework
agreement with Pingguan County Jinyin Charging Company Limited
(“Pingguan County Jinyin”), a company established in the PRC
and an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company,
an associate of a substantial shareholder of a subsidiary of the
Company, for the purchase of lime products and related products
from Pingguan County Jinyin by Jinxi Limited and/or its subsidiaries
for the three years ending 31 December 2015. The annual cap for
this transaction for the year ended 31 December 2014 was RMB
7.5 million. The total amount of the aforesaid transaction for the year
ended 31 December 2014 was nil.

On 27 December 2012, Jinxi Limited entered into a framework
agreement with Qianxi County Han’erzhuang Village Wang Zhihong
Iron Ore Mill (“Qianxi Iron Ore Mill”), an associate of a substantial
shareholder of a subsidiary of the Company, in which Jinxi Limited
and/or its subsidiaries would purchase iron powder from Qianxi
Iron Ore Mill at prevailing market prices for the three years ending
31 December 2015. The annual cap for this transaction for the year
ended 31 December 2014 was RMB 182 million. The total amount
of the aforesaid transaction for the year ended 31 December 2014
was nil (excluding VAT).
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)
Continuing connected transactions (continued)

On 2 January 2014, Hebei Jinxi Iron and Steel Group Company
Limited (“dinxi Limited”) entered into a framework agreement with
Tangshan Jinxin Enterprise Group Limited (formerly known as
Qianxi County Jinxin Mining Company Limited) (“Jinxin Mining”),
a substantial shareholder of a subsidiary of the Company, for the
purchase of iron powder and related products from Jinxin Mining
and/or its subsidiaries by Jinxi Limited and/or its subsidiaries for
the three years ending 31 December 2016. The annual cap for this
transaction for the year ended 31 December 2014 was RMB 140
million. The total amount of the aforesaid transaction incurred by Jinxi
Limited and its subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December 2014
was RMB 2.4 million.

On 4 June 2014, the Company entered into the iron and steel
framework agreement with Oriental Sheet Piling Sdn. Bhd. (“Oriental
Sheet Piling”), an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of ArcelorMittal,
a substantial shareholder of the Company, in which the Company
and/or its subsidiaries would sell steel products to Oriental Sheet
Piling and/or its subsidiaries at prevailing market prices for a period
of approximately three years from 1 January 2014 to 31 December
2016. The annual cap for this transaction for the year ended 31
December 2014 was RMB 120 million. The total amount of the
aforesaid transaction for the year ended 31 December 2014 was
RMB 48.2 million (excluding VAT) (Note 42(b)).

On 31 October 2014, Jinxi Limited entered into a framework
agreement with Qianxi Dong Fang Shen Huo Environmental
Protection Technology Product Company Limited (“Dong Fang Shen
Huo”), a company established in the PRC and currently owned as
to 81% by Mr. Wang Qinghong who is the brother-in-law of Mr.
Yu Lifeng, the general manager and director of Jinxi Limited, and
is a deemed connected person of the Company, for the purchase
of energy-saving products from Dong Fang Shen Huo and/or its
subsidiaries by Jinxi Limited and/or its subsidiaries for the three years
ending 31 December 2016. The annual cap for this transaction for
the year ended 31 December 2014 was RMB 60 million. The total
amount of the aforesaid transaction for the year ended 31 December
2014 was RMB 22.2 million.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)
Continuing connected transactions (continued)

The aforesaid continuing connected transactions have been
reviewed by Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company.
The Independent Non-executive Directors confirmed that the
aforesaid continuing connected transactions were entered into (a) in
the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group; (b) on normal
commercial terms or better; and (c) according to the agreements
governing them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong
Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. The auditor has issued its letter confirming nothing
has come to their attention that causes them to believe that the
continuing connected transactions disclosed by the Group on pages
77 to 78 of the Annual Report were not in compliance with Rule
14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been
provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Trading in the shares of the Company had been suspended from 29
April 2014 when the public float of the Company fell below 25%. The
Stock Exchange indicated that the Company is required to suspend
trading in the shares of the Company until the minimum public float
is restored. Details of public float status of the Company have been
disclosed in the Company’s announcements dated 30 December
2013, 11 April 2014, 5 May 2014, 30 May 2014, 6 July 2014, 20
August 2014, 26 August 2014, 5 September 2014, 16 October
2014, 21 November 2014, 16 December 2014 and 13 February
2015 and 18 March 2015.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT (continued)

The Company will make further announcement to inform its
Shareholders and potential investors for the development as and
when appropriate pursuant to the Listing Rules and/or the SFO.

PURCHASE, SALES OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Apart from the repurchase of a total of principal amount of
US$5,175,000 of the 2017 Senior Notes, neither the Company, nor
any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company’s listed securities during the year ended 31 December
2014,

AUDITOR
PricewaterhouseCoopers retired and a resolution for their
reappointment as auditor of the Company will be proposed at the

forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board
China Oriental Group Company Limited

HAN Jingyuan
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 19 March 2015
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Independent Auditor’s Report &3 & B Ehk &

_
pwc

To the Shareholders of China Oriental Group Company Limited
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Oriental Group Company Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set out on pages 83 to 243,
which comprise the consolidated and company balance sheets as
at 31 December 2014, and the consolidated income statement, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow
statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and
for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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Independent Auditor’s Report & #Z% B Eh ik &

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and for no other purpose. We
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at
31 December 2014, and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 19 March 2015
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Consolidated Balance Sheet 8 &E& &%

(Allamounts in Renminbi (‘RMB”) thousands unless otherwise stated) As at 31 December 2014

(BRBEAN MESEINARE ([ARE ) TLRENL) R -_T-—NF+-_A=+t—H

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+—H
Note 2014 2013
liEss —E-NE —T—=F
ASSETS EE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Leasehold land and land use rights THE 4 th N £ {55 A 6 136,386 130,318
Property, plant and equipment Y= RE RERE 7 8,820,830 9,160,405
Investment properties wEMZE 8 7,431 14,372
Intangible assets mAE 9 8,673 8,760
Available-for-sale financial assets AHHESRmEE 15 121,243 149,701
Prepayments, deposits and TENEIE « e KHEAM
other receivables FEUS AR X 18 33,000 -
Long-term bank deposits RERRITER 20 = 52,000
Amount due from a related party UL — 22 B R T A 42(0) 171,749 -
Deferred income tax assets RIS E E 27 342,238 285,894
9,641,550 9,801,450
Current assets REBEE
Properties under development BRPRFELEDE
and held for sale 14 1,317,963 880,568
Inventories Ve 16 3,169,253 3,689,967
Trade receivables BB SRR 17 961,342 1,110,753
Prepayments, deposits and TENRIE « e K HAM
other receivables FEUTAR X 18 1,914,820 1,799,770
Amounts due from related parties JFE Ut Fa B 5 7kE 42(c) 6,994 4,996
Prepaid current income tax TEI & BBFTS R 4,099 66,607
Loan receivables FEUE T 19 290,000 363,232
Notes receivable — PR — SRI TR
bank acceptance notes [ES= 17 3,909,346 3,449,103
Long-term bank deposits due —FRBH KB
within one year HRITEAK 20 52,000 -
Restricted bank balances PR IRITAEER 20 1,626,978 1,616,022
Cash and cash equivalents BERIBEEEY 20 849,063 968,132
14,101,858 13,949,150
Total assets HMEE 23,743,408 23,750,600
EQUITY s
Equity attributable to owners BERAAAER
of the Company FEENER
Share capital & 21 311,853 311,853
Share premium &= E 21 2,192,131 2,192,131
Other reserves Hfh 22 1,630,006 1,587,224
Retained earnings Bl 5,123,067 5,099,996
9,257,057 9,191,204
Non-controlling interests FEEFIERE 514,789 519,698
Total equity EREEE 9,771,846 9,710,902
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Consolidated Balance Sheet continued) EHEEEER &)

(Allamounts in Renminbi (“RMB”) thousands unless otherwise stated) As at 31 December 2014

(BRBEAN AESEINARE ((ARY ) TIREML) R -_T-—NF+_A=t—H

As at 31 December

R+=—BR=+—H
Note 2014 2013
i —E-FE —ZT—=F
LIABILITIES 8f&
Non-current liabilities FRBERS
Borrowings (FETEI 25 1,510,519 4,283,962
Other long-term payables Hith R EAFET 5K 26,129 26,129
Deferred revenue PRIEWA 26 59,284 57,674
Amounts due to related parties FELS RAES 5 R1E 42(c) 247,119 89,263
1,843,051 4,457,028
Current liabilities REEE
Trade payables FENE SRR 23 2,719,253 3,521,390
Accruals, advances and JBREAR - 1BRGUE
other current liabilities REMTEESEE 24 2,466,507 2,341,023
Amounts due to related parties FELS RAESE 5 FR1E 42(c) 104,596 181,716
Current income tax liabilities EHIFMEREE 170,142 66,930
Derivative financial instruments PTESRTE 4,689 =
Borrowings (FETEI 25 6,658,752 3,435,497
Dividends payable FETRR B 4,572 36,114
12,128,511 9,582,670
Total liabilities FeN=Ei 13,971,562 14,039,698
Total equity and liabilities EEREEE 23,743,408 23,750,600
Net current assets REEETEE 1,973,347 4,366,480
Total assets less current liabilities HEERRBEE 11,614,897 14,167,930
Han Jingyuan Shen Xiaoling
Chairman Director
ES EF

The notes on pages 92 to 243 are an integral part of these financial FO2E 243 E MM i A EH MK
statements. —&bn o
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ASSETS

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Investments in subsidiaries
Loans to subsidiaries

Available-for-sale financial assets

Current assets
Trade receivables
Prepayments, deposits and
other receivables
Loan to subsidiaries
Restricted bank balances
Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

EQUITY
Equity attributable to owners
of the Company
Share capital
Share premium
Other reserves
Accumulated losses

Total equity

Company Balance Sheet A& E&EX

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) As at 31 December 2014

(BRBEAN MESEINARBETIREN) RN+ -A=1—H

BE

FRBEE

e T S
MBARKRE
(RIEEPNCIE=E
AHEESREE

REEE

FEUE ZHRR

BNER - ZER
H At FEU AR K
ERp-=FNCIIS P

R BRI TSR

ReFREEFEY

BRE
L
WAL D
B0
Bk
B R
Rt
L
M

Note
Mo5E

10(a)
11
15

17

18
11
20
20

21
21
22

As at 31 December
R+=A=t+—H
2014 2013
—F-mE —T-=F

626 724
608,168 602,699
2,529,807 4,231,587
11,638 40,096
3,150,239 4,875,106
2,052,837 2,183,580
23,424 1,539
1,710,180 =
24,755 39,325
117,062 41,433
3,928,258 2,265,877
7,078,497 7,140,983
311,853 311,858
2,192,131 2,192,131
424,523 425,385
(922,683) (792,354)
2,005,824 2,137,015
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Company Balance Sheet (continued) ARIEEEER (2

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) As at 31 December 2014

(BRBEAN FESEINARBTIREN) R-T-—MF+-_A=1—H

As at 31 December

R+t=B=+—8H
Note 2014 2013
i —E-mFE —T—=F
LIABILITIES aE
Non-current liabilities kRBERE
Borrowings =k 25 1,264,519 4,258,962
Current liabilities REERE
Trade payables T E SRR 23 78,752 9,211
Accruals and other current liabilities TERRERAREMRBEE 24 109,045 113,843
Borrowings &= 25 3,620,225 621,820
Dividends payable FERR B 132 132
3,808,154 745,006
Total liabilities AR 5,072,673 5,003,968
Total equity and liabilities EEREEEE 7,078,497 7,140,983
Net current assets REEEFRE 120,104 1,520,871
Total assets less current liabilities BWEERRBERE 3,270,343 6,395,977
Han Jingyuan Shen Xiaoling
BaE TREES
Chairman Director
EY 2

The notes on pages 92 to 243 are an integral part of these financial FEO2E 243 E MM s BX I SRR R aL
statements. — 3545 o
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Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income

Distribution costs

Administrative expenses

Other expenses

(Losses)/gain from derivative
financial instruments

Other gains/(losses) — net

Operating profit

Finance income
Finance costs

Finance (costs)/income - net

Profit before income tax

Income tax expense
Profit for the year

Profit/(loss) attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Earnings per share for profit
attributable to owners of the
Company during the year
(expressed in RMB per share)

— Basic earnings per share

— Diluted earnings per share

The notes on pages 92 to 243 are an integral part of these financial

statements.

Dividends

YA
HEMRA
5

HAb WA
7 $HAAR
TTHREM
HA % A

TEERmTAZ
(&#8), Mz
Bzt (E518) — 8

RN

BTSIA
BTSN

B (RA), WA — B
B P 18 Bt Al 8 7

PSR E M

FEEF

BE(BE)BER
AABIEmFEE
FEIR I MR aS

FRAEXRFARBRFEE
FEAEE R 895 IR W 25
(BBRAR%TT)

—SRER R
—BEmEkE

RS

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BABEFN  METBEINARETTREM

Note
MI5E

30

29
30
30
30

35
28

32
32

33

37

37

38

Consolidated Income Statement &6t %@ R

For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE-_Z-MF+-_A=T—RHILFE

Year ended 31 December
BE+t-A=1t—HLEE
2014 2013
—2-mE —T-=fF

28,495,498 32,516,937
(27,127,740) (31,513,169)

1,367,758 1,003,768

26,352 46,152
(100,093)  (116,241)
(432,859)  (620,841)

(35,661) (43,276)
(333,156) 44,766
37,098 (68,539)

529,439 245,789

138,536 185,278
(422,895)  (181,726)

(284,359) 3,552

245,080 249,341

(178,600)  (186,313)

66,480 63,028

66,715 101,609
(235) (38,581)

66,480 63,028

RMB 0.02 RMB 0.03

RMB 0.02 RMB 0.03

FRE243EMMIFAZEN RN

— 857 °
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income & #t4r& W= &

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2014

BRARAN  MASREONAREBTIREN) BE-Z-NF+_A=1+—HILFE

Year ended 31 December

BE+=-A=1t—HLEE

Note 2014 2013
F=E —E-mE —ZT—=F
Profit for the year FEERA 66,480 63,028
Other comprehensive income: HihiR e :
Item that will not be reclassified HiZ T A ESIE
subsequently to profit or loss PR HIH H
Transfer of fair value gains previously REEMHEECHEE
credited to reserve to income e i SE RTET AR A
statement upon disposal of NABEKZEZFERXR
available-for-sale financial assets 15 (28,307) -
Item that may be reclassified A E SR
subsequently to profit or loss ZS/\%H?IE =]
Transfer of fair value losses previously RAEHESREE
taken to reserve to income B & SERTET AR HY
statement upon impairment of ANhEBEEEEENEE
available-for-sale financial assets 15 - 3,892
Fair value gains on available-for-sale AHEHESREED
financial assets RN EENE 15 20,708 12,374
(7,599) 16,266
Total comprehensive FEFEWRZEF
income for the year 58,881 79,294
Attributable to: BB
Owners of the Company AKARERFFEE 59,116 117,875

Non-controlling interests

The notes on pages 92 to 243 are an integral part of these financial

statements.

FEE IR AR

—#B{7 °
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity & f#E =2 8)*&

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2014

(BABEAN MESEINARBTIREN) BE-T-HNF+-_A=tT—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

LN e p i

Non-
Share Share Other  Retained controling Total
Note capital  premium  reseves  eamings Total  interests equity
SRl
iF3 BE KRR EftEE  BRke @ Ea B
Balance at 1 January 2013 R-E-=E-R-BHER 311,772 2,191,087 1493880 5045030 9,041,769 513247 9,565,016
Comprehensive income GakE
Proftt or loss for the year FREFLER = = - 101609 101609  (38%81) 63,028
Other comprehensive income Hiti s
Item that may be reclassifed -0 Sy Y Ty
subsequently to profit or loss HER
Transfer of far value losses R E S AR R AR
previously taken to resenve to BEMTARRBRAR
income statement upon impaiment  BEBEEZFIER
of avallable-for-sale financial assets - = 3,802 = 3,69 = 3,802
Fair value gains on avallable-for-sale ~ WHHESRIEE
financial assets P ELEDE = - 12314 - 1231 - 1234
Total comprehensive income GRbRAT - - 16266 101600 117875 (38581) 79204
Transactions with owners RERHAENRS
Employee share options scheme: ~ EBEIRE2:
- Proceeds from shares issued -BlRiFGTE 81 1,044 - - 1,125 - 1,125
- Viaue of employee services ~EERBREE - - 32588 - 258 - 30588
Profit appropriation to AT RR{ELA
statutory reserves R pa 2 - - 46643 (46649) - - -
Establishment of a subsidiary FI—RHBAF 10@) = = - - - R000 52,000
Changes in ownership interestsina ~ EAKEEEENERTEE
subsidiary without change of control -~ REBATIESTAREES  10@) - - 15y - Ry UETE 2401
Dividends to non-controling interests 44 3Rt AIR S = = = = SN 1 o/ R G 7
Total transactions with owners ~ BEREEZNRZ4H 81 104 77078 (6643 31560 46032  765%2
Balance at 31 December 2013 R=8-=£+-A=t1-A
e 311,858 2,192,181 1,587,224 5099996 9191204 519,698 9,710,902
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (continued) & #f#m# 8 % «@)

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2014

(BABERN FESEINARBTIAEN) BE-_T-NF+-A=t—HLFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

AORERHAREN
Non-
Share Share Other  Retained controlling Total
Note capital  premium  reserves  earnings Total interests equity
i)
iF3 ke RieE EtEE ER4E h Bs  BRAH
Balance at 1 January 2014 RZE-WE-F-BHLE 311,853 2,192,131 1,587,224 509999 9,191,204 519,698 9,710,902
Comprehensive income GakE
Proft or loss for the year FERHSER - . - 6615 66715 (235 66,480
Other comprehensive income Hiti sk
Item that will not be reclassified RRTHEEZnk
subsequently to profit or loss HER
Transfer of fair value gains REEAHIESBARNR
previously credfted to reserve to BEMTARROALES
income statement upon disposal WaREZRER
of avallable-for-sale financial assets - - (28307) - (28307) - (28307)
Item that may be reclassified RRAEREZ R
subsequently to profit or loss HIER
Fair value gains on avallable-for-sale ~ WEHHESBEEH
financial assets M EERE - - 20,708 - 20,708 - 20,708
Total comprehensive income GalRa - - (1599 66,715 59,116 (35 58,881
Transactions with owners RERKEENRS
Employee share options scheme: ~ ESEIRE 2 :
- Vialue of employee services -RERENEE - - 6,737 = 6,787 = 6,737
Proft appropriation to WiETE e
statutory reserves Vel 2 - - RoM (4364 = - -
Establishment of a subsiolary FU—RHBAA 10 - - - = = 34 34
Dividends to non-controling Interests 44534 250 & = = = = - (4708 (4708)
Total transactions with owners ~ REREAENRZAH - - 50381 (43644 6707 (4674 2068
Balance at 31 December 2014 R-E-MmE+-A=1-R
e 311,853 2,192,131 1,630,006 5,123,067 9,257,057 514,789 9,771,846

The notes on pages 92 to 243 are an integral part of these financial E2FE243E MM T Rk T TS R e B 88
statements. —p5 ©

90 China Oriental Group Company Limited 5y 4 B % B A B A 7]



Consolidated Cash Flow Statement 46 & RE X

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from operations
Interest received
Interest paid
Income tax paid
Return of income tax prepaid in previous year

Net cash generated from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from sales of property,

plant and equipment
Investment (losses)/gain from derivative
financial instruments
Investment income from trading funds
Investment income from loan receivables
Increase in deposits of procurement of
derivative financial instruments
Decrease/(increase) in loan receivables
Increase in long-term bank deposits
Proceeds from disposal of available-for-sale
financial assets
Proceeds from disposal of an associate
Decrease in amount due from related parties

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from borrowings
Repayment of borrowings
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests
Capital injection by non-controlling interests
Proceeds from issuance of ordinary shares
Cash paid relating to sales and

leaseback transaction

(Decreass)/increase in amounts due to related parties

Increase in restricted bank balances

pledged as security for current bank borrowings

Net cash used in financing activities

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

The notes on pages 92 to 243 are an integral part of these financial

statements.

(BAEEPN  METRINARETTRER)

Note
izt

RECETHNALTHE
EfERENRS 39
BUkFI 2

BRFE
BFTEH
REBEFEENROATEH

ELEREIINADTFR

RERERDNEELRE
BENE  BEEIE

HENE  BEKEE

RFE A 39
TES HQI/E:Z

& (58) s 35
EEEEZRERA 29
REERE SRR E W

EGITESRT ARSEN

FRE R D,/ (&)
RERITHAUEM
HEARHESREE
FrSsR
HEBE N RNMEHE 28
FENR AR 7y SRR

RRRE RS EFE
REMEEDNRERE

AR

BEEX
pEAEeT TS g P )
SRR T E 10
BT L BRATESR
REEREERHE

TREE
FEf R 2R ORiD), /2
11E7%,m§bfﬁﬁ1§¥xﬁﬁﬁﬁm

R HISRTEAE

RRBERBNSEFE
ReRRLEEN(AD) BEMFE

HEEXEHNTE

R RASEEN 20
ERE2 RS EEN 20

— BB e

F92%24

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

)

For the year ended 31 December 2014

HE-T—WE+-_A=1+—HLFE

Year ended 31 December

HETZA=T-HLEFE

2014 2013
= =
1,039,158 1,703,532
80,106 108,458
(465,789) (437,482)
(248,892) (237,801)
179,668 -
584,251 1,136,707
(370,229) (667,154)
1,001 404
(333,156) 44,766
- 5,663
45,491 54,389
(59,472) -
57,500 (24,501)
- (62,000)
49,166 -
= 50,000
- 86,183
(609,699) (402,256)
8,689,176 6,390,442
(8,268,968)  (6,810,540)
(36,250) -
34 52,000
- 1,125
- (122,334)
(78,900) 128,000
(400,096) (273,467)
(95,004) (634,774)
(120,452) 99,678
1,383 (10,651)
968,132 879,005
849,063 968,132
BRI RREM I HERNELS
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

BRARAN  MASREGNARBTIAEN) HE-Z-MNFT_A=1t—HILFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

China Oriental Group Company Limited (the “Company”)
was incorporated in Bermuda on 3 November 2003 as an
exempted company with limited liability under the Companies
Act 1981 of Bermuda as a result of a group reorganisation
(‘Reorganisation’).

The address of the Company’s registered office is Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda.

The Company’s shares have been listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited since 2 March 2004. As
announced by the Company, trading in the shares of the
Company had been suspended as from 29 April 2014 when
the public float of the Company fell below 25%.

The Company together with its subsidiaries are hereinafter
collectively referred to as the Group. The Group is principally
engaged in the manufacture and sale of iron and steel
products, trading of steel products and iron ore and real
estate business. The Group has manufacturing plants in Hebei
Province and Guangdong Province of the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC”) and sells mainly to customers located in the
PRC. The Group engages in real estate business in the PRC.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
thousands of units of RMB, unless otherwise stated. These
consolidated financial statements have been approved for
issue by the Board of Directors (the “Board”) on 19 March
2015.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

China Oriental Group Company Limited 23 J7 5 [ 2 A FR 2 7]

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &8 R Kz

For the year ended 31 December 2014
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &3 & i ==

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2014

(BABEPN MESBEIRARBETTREN)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have
been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”) issued by Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”). The
consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, as modified by the
revaluation of certain available-for-sale financial assets,
and derivative financial instruments, which are carried at
fair value.

The consolidated financial statements are prepared
in accordance with the applicable requirements of
predecessor Company Ordinance (Cap.32) for the years
ended 31 December 2014 and 20183.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management
to exercise its judgement in the process of applying
the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving
a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements are disclosed in Note
4,
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2,

POLICIES (continued)

HE_Z-—NF+_A=+—HIFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(@) New and amended standards adopted

by the Group

The following new and amended standards,
and interpretations have been adopted by
the Group for the first time for the financial
year beginning on 1 January 2014 and are
relevant to the Group:

Amendments to HKAS 32 ‘Financial
Instruments: Presentation’ on financial
asset and liability offsetting. These
amendments are to the application
guidance in HKAS 32, ‘Financial
Instruments: Presentation’, and clarify
some of the requirements for offsetting
financial assets and financial liabilities
on the balance sheet.

Amendment to HKAS 36 ‘Impairment
of Assets’ on recoverable amount
disclosures. This amendment
addresses the disclosure of
information about the recoverable
amount of impaired assets if that
amount is based on fair value less
costs of disposal.

China Oriental Group Company Limited 5y 4 B % B A B A 7]
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2014

(BABIEAN ESEINARETTREN)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &3 & i ==

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2014

(BABEAN MESEINARBTIREN) BE-T-HNF+-_A=tT—HILFE

2.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EESHEERBE(E)
POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 21 REBEE(E)

QA1 B BERBENEt

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(continued) (#&)
(@) New and amended standards adopted (@) TEBEESHEHMEH
by the Group (continued) TR B 15T % 8l
(%)

HK (IFRIC)-Int 21 ‘Levies’. This is an
interpretation of HKAS 37, ‘Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets’. HKAS 37 sets out criteria for
the recognition of a liability, one of
which is the requirement for the entity
to have a present obligation as a result
of a past event (known as an obligating
event). The interpretation clarifies that
the obligating event that gives rise to
a liability to pay a levy is the activity
described in the relevant legislation
that triggers the payment of the levy.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &8 R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2014

(BABERN FESEINARBTIAEN) BE-_T-NF+-A=t—HLFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EEEHBERBEE)
POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 21 MRBIEE(E)
2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures QA1 B BERBENE L
(continued) (#&)
(@) New and amended standards adopted (@) AEBEHRMHEH
by the Group (continued) 7 & B 18 & % 8l
(%)
The following new and amended standards, THFH T REBEET
and interpretations have been adopted by EAHIRREDEAR
the Group for the first time for the financial EBPN T —NFE
year beginning on 1 January 2014 but not — R — B i%na &
currently relevant or do not have material BEE B IRER
impact to the Group (although they may {2 B R K& B &
affect the accounting for future transactions B s A EE
and events): EAFE(HRAE
g ERRR
S REENEL
AR) :
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &3 & i ==

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended 31 December 2014

(BABEAN MESEINARBTIREN) BE-T-HNF+-_A=tT—HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(continued)

(a)

(b)

New and amended standards adopted
by the Group (continued)

° Amendment to HKAS 39, ‘Financial
instruments: Recognition and
measurement’ on the novation of
derivatives and the continuation of
hedge accounting.

° Amendments to HKFRS 10, 12
and HKAS 27 ‘Consolidation for
investment entities’.

Amendments and interpretations as
mentioned above are not expected to have
a material effect on the Group’s operating
results, financial position or comprehensive
income.

New standard and interpretation not yet
adopted

The following new standards and
amendments to standards and
interpretations are effective for annual
periods beginning after 1 January 2014, and
have not been early applied in preparing
these consolidated financial statements:
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &8 R Kz

For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE-_T-WNF+-_A=1+—HLFE

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BABIEAN ESEINARETTREN)

2,

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(continued)

(b)

2. ERENBEBEE)

21 mEEEE)

New standard and interpretation not yet

adopted (continued)

Amendment to HKAS 19
ESETIERE 195 BT
Amendments to HKFRS 10

EBB SR 10 B MEET

Amendment to HKFRS 11

FEWHRELERFE 115RAER]

HKFRS 14
BAAEwEERFE 1458
Amendments to HKAS 16
BASFTERE 16 5RAIEE]
Amendment to HKAS 27

BEGETERIZE 27 RASET
Amendments to HKAS 28
BASFTAERIZE 28 RAEET
Amendments to HKAS 38
BASETERIZE 38R AIEET
Amendments to HKAS 41
BAGETERE 41 5REVERT
HKFRS 15

EVSI R ELERSE 1557
HKFRS 9
BB IEHREERIZE 9]

Defined benefits

REBH

Consolidated financial
statements

A BHRE

Joint arrangements

aeTH

Regulatory Deferral Accounts

SETERIERR

Property, plant and equipment

M - BB K&

Consolidated and separate
financial statements

AUt B BHRE

Investment in associates

REtE R B2 WE

Intangible assets

B AE

Agriculture

B

Revenue from contracts with
customers

HEB S92 WA
Financial Instruments
SRTHE

China Oriental Group Company Limited 23 J7 5 [ 2 A FR 2 7]
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RT3 B EER %
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1 July 2014
—ZE-OFE+H—H
1 January 2016
N
1 January 2016
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1 January 2016
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1 January 2016
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1 January 2016
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1 January 2016
N
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1 January 2018
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)
(BmBEERIN  AESEINARETTRER)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(continued)

(b)

New standard and interpretation not yet

adopted (continued)

Apart from the above, the HKICPA has
issued the annual improvements project
which addresses several issues in the 2010-
2012 reporting cycle, 2011-2013 reporting
cycle, 2012-2014 reporting cycle, and
includes changes to the following standards.
The Group has not applied the following
revised HKFRSs published in the annual

improvements project.

HKFRS 3
BAMHWEREAE IR
HKFRS 8
BANGREEAR
HKFRS 13
BAMGHREEAE 135
HKAS 16
BAGTEAE 165
HKAS 24

855

E/E,Eu /Eﬁlj 24?})%
HKAS 38
BB BFTAERIZE 38 5%
HKAS 40

BAGTEAE 405
HKFRS 5
BAMGREEUE55R
HKFRS 7
BAMHWMERAET R
HKAS 19

BB EHEAIE 195
HKAS 34
EB @ ER|E 4%

Business combinations
a0

Operating segments
LB D EB

Fair value measurement

N !

Property, plant and equipment

M - B KR
Related Party Disclosures
B T 1R B

Intangible assets

B EE

Investment property

REMF

Non-current assets held for sale

B Ot I ERR M

For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE_Z-ME+-_A=1T—BILFE
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21 REEEE)

2B BERRENE L
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(b) 7 R BR AN 2 H7 AT 2
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Br Eaish HEE
st Ae B BB F
EWETEE ' LR
BE_Z—ZSF3
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B2 ——F=%
T ERER
. —F——F=%
—E—UERER
By — L EIH K
B HE T 5| £ Rl 79 &
1t > AN B [H K 8
BATIREENRE
15 B HF R RS
IR mESE
Al o

Effective for annual periods
beginning on or after

and discontinued operations

FHEMERSERBEE R
BRI R

Financial instruments: Disclosures 1 July 2016

SETA - KE
Employee benefits

B E &R

Interim financial reporting

P HEIM R E

R T5IE RN Z &N
FEHBRNERK
1 July 2014
—E-UFELH—H
1 July 2014
—E-HmFEtEH—HR
1 July 2014
—E—mE+EHA—H
1 July 2014
—E-HmEtEHA—H
1 July 2014
—E-HmFE+EH—HR
1 July 2014
—E—mE+EHA—H
1 July 2014
—mFEtH—H
1 July 2016
—E—ARFtA—H
—F—XRFtH—H
1 July 2016
—ET—R"FtH—H
1 July 2016
T—RFtHA—H
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &8 R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BABIEAN ESEINARETTREN)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(continued)

(b)

(c)

New standard and interpretation not yet
adopted (continued)

The Group is assessing the full impact of the
amendments and standards, and according
to the preliminary assessment, there is
no significant impact on the consolidated
financial statements. The Group intends
to adopt the amendments no later than
the respective effective dates of the
amendments.

New Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap.622)

In addition, the requirements of Part 9
“Accounts and Audit” of the new Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) come
into operation as from the Company’s first
financial year commencing on 1 January
2015 in accordance with section 358 of that
Ordinance. The Group is in the process of
making an assessment of expected impact
of the changes in the Companies Ordinance
on the consolidated financial statements in
the period of initial application of Part 9 of
the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 622). So far it has concluded that
the impact is unlikely to be significant and
only the presentation and the disclosure
of information in the consolidated financial
statements will be.

China Oriental Group Company Limited 23 J7 5 [ 2 A FR 2 7]
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &3 & i ==

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2014

(BABEAN MESEINARBTIREN) BE-T-HNF+-_A=tT—HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries

2.2.1 Consolidation

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured
entity) over which the Group has control. The
Group controls an entity when the Group is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from
its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date
on which control is transferred to the Group. They
are deconsolidated from the date that control
ceases.

(@ Changes in ownership interests in
subsidiaries without change of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests
that do not result in loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions — that
is, as transactions with the owners in their
capacity as owners. The difference between
fair value of any consideration paid and the
relevant share acquired of the carrying value
of net assets of the subsidiary is recorded
in equity. Gains or losses on disposals to
non-controlling interests are also recorded in
equity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &8 R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BABIEAN ESEINARETTREN)

For the year ended 31 December 2014

HE_Z-—NF+_A=+—HIFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.

POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (continued)

2.2.1 Consolidation (continued)

(o)  Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control,

any retained interest in the entity is re-

measured to its fair value at the date when

control is lost, with the change in carrying

amount recognised in profit or loss. The

fair value is the initial carrying amount for

the purposes of subsequently accounting

for the retained interest as an associate,

joint venture or financial asset. In addition,

any amounts previously recognised in

other comprehensive income in respect

of that entity are accounted for as if the

group had directly disposed of the related

assets or liabilities. This may mean that

amounts previously recognised in other

comprehensive income are reclassified to

profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &3 & i ==

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2014

(BAEEPN  METRINARETTRER)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (continued)

2.2.2 Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at
cost less impairment. Cost also includes direct
attributable costs of investment. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on
the basis of dividend and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in
subsidiaries is required upon receiving dividends
from these investments if the dividend exceeds the
total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in
the period the dividend is declared or if the carrying
amount of the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements of the investee’s
net assets including goodwill.

2.3 Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group
has significant influence but not control, generally
accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and
50% of the voting rights. Investments in associates are
accounted for using the equity method of accounting.
Under the equity method, the investment is initially
recognised at cost, and the carrying amount is increased
or decreased to recognise the investor’s share of the
profit or loss of the investee after the date of acquisition.
The Group’s investment in associates includes goodwill,
if any, identified on acquisition.
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

BRARAN  MASREGNARBTIAEN) HE-Z-MNFT_A=1t—HILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.3 Associates (continued)

The Group’s share of post-acquisition profit or loss is
recognised in the income statement, and its share of
post-acquisition movements in other comprehensive
income is recognised in other comprehensive income
with a corresponding adjustment to the carrying amount
of the investment. When the Group’s share of losses
in an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the
associate, including any other unsecured receivables,
the Group does not recognise further losses, unless it
has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the associate.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether
there is any objective evidence that the investment in
the associate is impaired. If this is the case, the Group
calculates the amount of impairment as the difference
between the recoverable amount of the associate and
its carrying value and recognises the amount adjacent
to ‘share of profit of an associate’ in the consolidated
income statement.

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and
downstream transactions between the Group and its
associate are recognised in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements only to the extent of unrelated
investor’s interests in the associates. Unrealised
losses are eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of associates have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

Gain or losses on dilution of equity interest in associates
are recognised in the consolidated income statement.

China Oriental Group Company Limited 23 J7 5 [ 2 A FR 2 7]
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &3 & i ==

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2014

(BREERN  ESEINARBTLAEN) BE-F-—NF+-A=1+—HALEFE
2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EESHBEREEE)

POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Segment reporting 2.4 DERRE
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent BN REFABEHEF
with the internal reporting provided to the chief BERRABERENAIRS
operating decision-maker. The chief operating decision- ZHR—H - fEHRRNE
maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and ZE2 (MIEs5b) eEfEEER
assessing performance of the operating segments, has KA EGEHREERI AT
been identified as the management committee (Note %= BN EfRIRIA ©
5(b)) that makes strategic decisions.

2.5 Foreign currency translation 2.5 HNEBE

(@)

(b)

Functional and presentation currency

(a) ZhERZIIEHR

ltems included in the financial statements of each REE S BB ANBR
of the Group’s entities are measured using the RHIER AT RELSE
currency of the primary economic environment FTENTFELERENGE

in which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in Renminbi (“RMB”), which is
the Company’s functional and the Group’s
presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates

B(hee 8 E -
ST BRERNAARE
(TAR®]) (R2EI8
EEERASENZESE
B)Z25 o

b) RER#ER

SNER BIRX 5 H R E R

KEMTERZFHARZ

prevailing at the dates of the transactions or BEREANEER - &
valuation where items are re-measured. Foreign B ER G mEE R
exchange gains and losses resulting from the LASNES o B8 i 1 B B 1 &
settlement of such transactions and from the B B IR R IE R iR
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary M B A Y I Uk 25 K S

assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the consolidated
income statement.

BRAEFAIBERTRER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &8 R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

BRBRAIN A SREAARE T AERL)

2,

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.5 Foreign currency translation (continued)

(b)

Transactions and balances (continued)

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate
to borrowings are presented in the consolidated
income statement within “finance cost’. All other
foreign exchange gains and losses are presented
in the consolidated income statement within ‘Other
gains/(losses) — net’.

Changes in the fair value of monetary securities
denominated in foreign currency classified as
available-for-sale are analysed between translation
differences resulting from changes in the
amortised cost of the security and other changes
in the carrying amount of the security. Translation
differences related to changes in amortised cost
are recognised in profit or loss, and other changes
in carrying amount are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial
assets and liabilities such as equities held at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised in
profit or loss as part of the fair value gain or loss.
Translation differences on non-monetary financial
assets, such as equities classified as available-for-
sale, are included in other comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &3 & i ==

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BABEPN MESBEIRARBETTREN)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.5 Foreign currency translation (continued)

(c)

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group

entities (none of which has the currency of a

hyper-inflationary economy) that have a functional

currency different from the presentation currency

are translated into the presentation currency as

follows:

(i)

(i)

assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate
at the date of that balance sheet;

income and expenses for each income
statement are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is
not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which case income
and expenses are translated at the rate on
the dates of the transactions); and

all resulting currency translation differences
are recognised in other comprehensive
income.

For the year ended 31 December 2014
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &8 R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2014

BRARAN  MASREGNARBTIAEN) HE-Z-MNFT_A=1t—HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EESHBEHEE)
POLICIES (continued)

2.6 Property, plant and equipment 2.6 M- WEKEZME

108

Property, plant and equipment, comprising buildings,
machinery, furniture and fixtures, vehicles, leasehold
improvements and finance leased machinery are stated
at historical cost less depreciation and impairment.
Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance costs
are charged to the consolidated income statement
during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their
cost to their residual values over their estimated useful
lives, as follows:

BREET  HERE NAR
B HEMERELR
BEHERIRBESDE  BFE

R T IE L BRI E I
ARSI AR o FE LA BRI E
ZIA B EREENAX -

HEgMANERE /\EZ EERMA
IARREBENRRAAIREE IR

AREH ﬁ’ﬁlﬁﬁ B AX AN BE #)
AR E T SEEEEE
B AR A Sk R R B B 2 (A0
B o KB IEERBE R EME
BREE - IEEMEERRE
BRAREENIEEEE &6
MERHE -

ME - HERRENITE TR
ATt Al E A B H K
RREFEDBEFIREBET
=B (1

Estimated useful life {51 A 5 F EE

Buildings 10-20 years B3 10-20F
Machinery 5-10 years R 5-104F
Furniture and fixtures 3-10 years PN RS 3-104
Vehicles 4-10 years RE 4-104F
Leasehold improvements 2-5 years HEMERE 2-5%
Finance leased machinery Shorter of remaining mEHEMEE  sr NFEEAsA]
lease term or useful life 5 R 23Ry

BREE

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, BEMFIHEME KA EHRFH

and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period.

China Oriental Group Company Limited 23 J7 5 [ 2 A FR 2 7]

EAi1I HEHRERE LR
(a@Em) -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &3 & i ==

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2014

(BABEFN  METBEINARETTREM

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.6

2.7

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount
is greater than its estimated recoverable amount (Note
2.10).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount and
are recognised within ‘Other gains/(losses) — net’ in the
consolidated income statement.

Construction-in-progress (“CIP”) represents buildings,
plant and machinery under construction or pending
installation and is stated at historical cost less
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Historical cost
includes the costs of construction, acquisition and
borrowing. No provision for depreciation is made on CIP
until such time as the relevant assets are completed and
available for intended use. When the assets concerned
are ready for their intended use, the costs are transferred
to property, plant and equipment and depreciated in
accordance with the policy as stated above.

Leasehold land and land use rights

All land in the PRC is state-owned or collectively-owned.
There is no individual land ownership right. The Group
acquired the right to use certain land. The premiums
paid for such right and the improvements related to the
land are treated as prepayment for operating lease and
recorded as leasehold land and land use rights, which
are amortised over the lease periods using the straight-
line method.

HE-T—WE+-_A=1+—HLFE

2. ERENBEBEE)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &8 R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BABEAN AESEINARETIAEN) BE-_TNF+-_A=t—HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.8

Investment property

The property that is held for long-term rental yields or
for capital appreciation or both, and that is not occupied
by the entities in the Group, is classified as investment
property.

Investment property is measured initially at its
cost, including related transaction costs. After
initial recognition, investment property is carried at
depreciated cost less accumulated impairment.

Depreciation of investment properties is calculated using
the straight-line method to allocate cost to their residual
value over their estimated useful lives of 20 years.

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset’s
carrying amount only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are
expensed in the consolidated income statement during
the financial period in which they are incurred.

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied, it
is reclassified as property, plant and equipment, and its
carrying amount at the date of reclassification becomes
its cost for accounting purposes.

If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes
an investment property because its use has changed,
the transfer does not change the carrying amount of the
property transferred, nor does it change the cost of that
property for measurement or disclosure purposes.

China Oriental Group Company Limited 23 J7 5 [ 42 B A B 2 7]
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 4 Bf &3 & iz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended 31 December 2014

(BABEAN MESBINARBTIREN) BE-_T-HNF+-_A=t—HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.9 Intangible assets

(a)

(b)

Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries,
and represents the excess of the consideration
transferred over the Group’s interest in net fair
value of the net identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities of the acquiree and the
fair value of the non-controlling interest in the
acquiree.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
acquired in a business combination is allocated
to each of the cash-generating units (“CGUSs”), or
groups of CGUs, that is expected to benefit from
the synergies of the combination. Each unit or
group of units to which the goodwill is allocated
represents the lowest level within the entity
at which the goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes. Goodwill is monitored at
the operating segment level.

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken
annually or more frequently if events or changes
in circumstances indicate a potential impairment.
The carrying value of goodwill is compared to
the recoverable amount, which is the higher of
value in use and the fair value less costs to sell.
Any impairment is recognised immediately as an
expense and is not subsequently reversed.

Computer software

Computer software costs recognised as assets
are amortised using the straight-line method over
their estimated useful lives of 3 years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &8 R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(=B

P ERIAUARE T ITRER)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.10 Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life-for example,
goodwill-are not subject to amortisation and are tested
annually for impairment. Assets that are subject to
amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment
loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value
less costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes of
assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest
levels for which there are separately identifiable cash
flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other
than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed
for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting
date.

Financial assets

2.11.1 Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following categories: financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, loans and receivables,
and available-for-sale financial assets. The
classification depends on the purpose for which
the financial assets were acquired. Management
determines the classification of its financial assets
at initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & #fBf #& 3 & iz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BABEAN  MESBEIRARBETTREN)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.11 Financial assets (continued)

2.11.1 Classification (continued)

@)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss are financial assets held for trading.
A financial asset is classified in this category
if acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the short term. Derivatives are also
categorised as held for trading because
the financial assets do not qualify for hedge
accounting. Assets in this category are
classified as current assets if expected to be
settled within 12 months, otherwise, they are
classified as non-current.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. They are included in current assets,
except for the amounts that are settled or
expected to be settled more than 12 months
after the end of the reporting period. These
are classified as non-current assets. The
Group’s loans and receivables comprise
‘loan receivables’, ‘trade receivables’, ‘notes
receivable — bank acceptance notes’, ‘other
receivables’ and ‘cash and cash equivalents’
in the balance sheet (Notes 2.17 and 2.18
respectively).

For the year ended 31 December 2014
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)
A RBHAUARBTIAEN)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.11 Financial assets (continued)

2.11.1 Classification (continued)

(c) Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-
derivatives that are either designated in this
category or not classified in any of the other
categories. They are included in non-current
assets unless the investment matures or
management intends to dispose of it within
12 months of the end of the reporting period.

2.11.2 Recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on the trade-date — the
date on which the Group commits to purchase or
sell the asset. Investments are initially recognised
at fair value plus transaction costs for all financial
assets not carried at fair value through profit or
loss. Financial assets carried at fair value through
profit or loss are initially recognised at fair value,
and transaction costs are expensed in the
consolidated income statement. Financial assets
are derecognised when the rights to receive cash
flows from the investments have expired or have
been transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.
Available-for-sale financial assets and financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss are
subsequently carried at fair value. Loans and
receivables are subsequently carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method. Available-
for-sale assets of the Group include investments
in equity instruments that do not have a quoted
market price in an active market and whose fair
value cannot be reliably measured, which are
measured at cost less provision for impairment, if
any.
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BABEAN  MESBEIRARBETTREN)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.11 Financial assets (continued)

2.11.2 Recognition and measurement (continued)

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair
value of the derivative financial instruments are
presented in the consolidated income statement
as a separate item in the period in which they
arise. Gains or losses arising from changes in the
fair value of other financial instruments in financial
assets or liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss category are presented in the consolidated
income statement within “Other income” or “Other
expenses”.

Changes in the fair value of monetary and non-
monetary securities classified as available for sale
are recognised in other comprehensive income.

When securities classified as available for sale
are sold or impaired, the accumulated fair value
adjustments recognised in equity are included
in the consolidated income statement as ‘Other
gains/(losses) — net’.

Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments
are recognised in the consolidated income
statement as part of other income when the
Group’s right to receive payments is established.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & #fBf #& 3 & iz
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &8 R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BABIEAN ESEINARETTRERN)

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.12 Impairment of financial assets

(a)

Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is objective evidence that
a financial asset or group of financial assets is
impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial
assets is impaired and impairment losses are
incurred only if there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a
“loss event”) and that loss event (or events) has an
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset or group of financial assets that can
be reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications
that the debtors or a group of debtors is
experiencing significant financial difficulty, default
or delinquency in interest or principal payments,
the probability that they will enter bankruptcy
or other financial reorganisation, and where
observable data indicate that there is a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such
as changes in arrears or economic conditions that
correlate with defaults.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & #fBf #& 3 & iz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BABEAN  MESBEIRARBETTREN)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.12 Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(a)

Assets carried at amortised cost (continued)

For loans and receivables category, the amount
of the loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not been incurred)
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset is
reduced and the amount of the loss is recognised
in the consolidated income statement. If a loan
has a variable interest rate, the discount rate for
measuring any impairment loss is the current
effective interest rate determined under the
contract. As a practical expedient, the Group
may measure impairment on the basis of an
instrument’s fair value using an observable market
price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment was recognised (such as an
improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the
reversal of the previously recognised impairment
loss is recognised in the consolidated income
statement.

For the year ended 31 December 2014
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &8 R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2014

BRARAN  MASREGNARBTIAEN) HE-Z-NFT_A=1t—HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EESHBEHEE)
POLICIES (continued)

2.12 Impairment of financial assets (continued) 212 SRMEERME (&)
(b) Assets classified as available-for-sale (b) SERAHHESE

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting NE B 1E AR S AR ET
period whether there is objective evidence that R ERBBBEERE
a financial asset or a group of financial assets He@mBEENFASHE
is impaired. In the case of equity investments ERLERE - WEAEE
classified as available for sale, a significant or WoEARHEE  FE
prolonged decline in the fair value of the security WA BEHRERSF
below its cost is also evidence that the assets BHE R E KA TN 3 — 18
are impaired. If any such evidence exists for RPAEBLERENEE -

available-for-sale financial assets, the cumulative BT ESRmEETE
loss — measured as the difference between the WEFE - RETEERK
acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any B AEER AR BED
impairment loss on that financial asset previously EH o WZ SR EE ZHI
recognised in profit or loss — is removed from R R RN EE
equity and recognised in profit or loss. Impairment B E - BRERT IR
losses recognised in the consolidated income RSP o 4 HF
statement on equity instruments are not reversed HRERNER TARE
through the consolidated income statement. BEETEEBAE HRER

e EI
2.13 Derivative financial instruments and hedging activities 213 TSI AR HEE
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Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on
the date a derivative contract is entered into and are

B ‘Iﬂﬂ
L‘ L—l\

subsequently re-measured at their fair value. The

U W B
H R
/bmm)?ttﬁil—l

Hm

method of recognising the resulting gain or loss depends
on whether the derivative is designed as a hedging

I-I-T 3

instrument, and if so, the nature of item being hedged. ZZEI;E#: BVEUR A4 %R I8 B /9
HE -

For derivative financial instruments do not qualify for AT EEBRETHREE

hedge accounting, changes in fair value are recognized BHTAESHTIAME 24

immediately in the consolidated income statement as a BEMNEZEFAENAHFEE

separate item. NERBEBIEE ©
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

FIEEREUARE T LREN)

(B =B -

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.14

2.15

2.16

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the balance sheet when there is
a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis
or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on
future events and must be enforceable in the normal
course of business and in the event of default, insolvency
or bankruptcy of the company or the counterparty.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and the net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the weighted
average method. The cost of finished goods and work-
in-progress comprises raw materials, direct labour, other
direct costs and related production overheads (based
on normal operating capacity). It excludes borrowing
costs. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business, less applicable variable
selling expenses.

Properties under development and held for sale

Properties under development and held for sale are
stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Development cost of properties comprises cost of
land use rights, construction costs and borrowing
costs incurred during the construction period. Upon
completion, the properties are transferred to completed
properties held for sale.

Net realisable value takes into account the price
ultimately expected to be realised, less applicable
variable selling expenses and the anticipated costs to
completion.

For the year ended 31 December 2014
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(=B

P ERIAUARE T ITRER)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.16

217

2.18

2.19

Properties under development and held for sale
(continued)

Properties under development and held for sale are
classified as current assets unless the construction
period of the relevant property development project is
expected to complete beyond normal operating cycle.

Trade, notes and other receivables

Trade and notes receivables are amounts due from
customers for merchandise sold in the ordinary course
of business. If collection of trade, notes and other
receivables is expected in one year or less (or in the
normal operating cycle of the business if longer), they are
classified as current assets. If not, they are presented as
non-current assets.

Trade, notes and other receivables are recognised
initially at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less
allowance for impairment.

Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated cash flow statement, cash and
cash equivalents includes cash in hand, deposits held
at call with banks and other short-term highly liquid
investments.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental
costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or
options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax,
from the proceeds.

China Oriental Group Company Limited B3y 4 F % B A PR A 7
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & #fBf #& 3 & iz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

FIEEREUARE T LREN)

(BRAAEH -

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.20 Trade payables

2.21

2.22

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or
services that have been acquired in the ordinary course
of business from suppliers. Trade payables are classified
as current liabilities if payment is due within one year or
less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business
if longer). If not, they are presented as non-current
liabilities.

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
carried at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in the consolidated income
statement over the period of the borrowings using the
effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the
reporting period.

Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable
to the acquisition, construction or production of
qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take
a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended
use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until
such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they are incurred.

For the year ended 31 December 2014
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &8 R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BABIEAN ESEINARETTRERN)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.23 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and

deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the consolidated

income statement, except to the extent that it relates

to items recognised in other comprehensive income or

directly in equity. In this case the tax is also recognised

in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,

respectively.

(a)

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on
the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date in the countries
where the Company and its subsidiaries and
associates operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions
taken in tax returns with respect to situations
in which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation. It establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to
be paid to the tax authorities.

China Oriental Group Company Limited B3y 4 F % B A PR A 7

For the year ended 31 December 2014
BEZ-MFT-_A=1t—HLLEFE

2. ERENBEBEE)

2.23 BEHNELEAMBR

IR BIR R SIS B ROR B
He BERAHIBRER
HEfin) B2 3% F 1 AR A W am
RAEEERSERANERE
BAERRSN e ERIBRT - HIA
e D RN EMERA W R
K EE NS ER o

(a)

EHFREH

EHMSHERIRA AR
NEMEB AR REE AR
REXBHE LI ELER
BIRAREBRRESSE
HEBMmEE LE R
mMBEAEAE - EE
MITIER B FFRENIS
AT EEEE TG
BRI - 2 BB
RIREAR IS H R R E
PiERRT PRRAE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & #fBf #& 3 & iz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2014

(BABEAN MESBINARBTIREN) BE-T-HNF+-_A=tT—HILEFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EESHBEREE)
POLICIES (continued)

2.23 Current and deferred income tax (continued) 2.23 EHINELEFTSH (&)
(b) Deferred income tax (b) EEFEH

Inside basis differences AITEE N EE
Deferred income tax is recognised, using the BLEFSTHRA B EER
liability method, on temporary differences arising BEMBENTHEEEE
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and & O B 7 3k 7O BR [E 1B
their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial EEANETREZRERR -
statements. However, deferred tax liabilities AT MBS AE
are not recognised if they arise from the initial REIRERAREE LRI
recognition of goodwill, the deferred income tax is ETER - BEFTSHIZR B
not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition ER S (TBREEBEG)
of an asset or liability in a transaction other than R EES 8 B JGRE
a business combination that at the time of the R MERSETTES
transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable FTS BRI AE - R E
profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined FER o IREFTS AT
using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted EEHAERSEE -
or substantively enacted by the balance sheet W W BREMSH
date and are expected to apply when the related BESENIELEFSEHE
deferred income tax asset is realised or the BEEREREEEAN
deferred income tax liability is settled. FRE (AR MEE -
Deferred income tax assets are recognised only EIETEREETIRA A
to the extent that it is probable that future taxable BEAE AR 2R B =R B A1) i Bt
profit will be available against which the temporary It 7] B B R = KR T AR
differences can be utilised. 7o
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BABIEAN ESEINARETTRERN)

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.23 Current and deferred income tax (continued)

(b)

(c)

Deferred income tax (continued)

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided on
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries and associates, except for deferred
income tax liabilities where the timing of the
reversal of the temporary difference is controlled
by the Group and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Generally the Group is unable to control the
reversal of the temporary difference for associates.
Only where there is an agreement in place that
gives the Group the ability to control the reversal of
the temporary difference not recognised.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised on
deductible temporary differences arising from
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
arrangements only to the extent that it is probable
the temporary difference will reverse in the future
and there is sufficient taxable profit available
against which the temporary difference can be
utilised.

Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets against current tax liabilities
and when the deferred income taxes assets and
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either the taxable entity or
different taxable entities where there is an intention
to settle the balances on a net basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & #fBf #& 3 & iz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2014

(BABEFN - MESREINARETTREM

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.24 Employee benefits

The Group has arranged for its Hong Kong employees
to join the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”). Under the MPF Scheme, the Group and its
Hong Kong employees make monthly contributions to
the MPF Scheme at 5% of the employees’ earnings as
defined under the Mandatory Provident Fund legislation,
subject to a cap per person per month and any excess
contributions are voluntary (if any).

In accordance with the rules and regulations in the
PRC, the Group has arranged for its PRC employees
to join the defined contribution retirement benefit plans
organised by PRC government. The PRC government
undertakes to assume the retirement benefit obligations
of all existing and future retired employees payable
under the plan as set out in Note 31. The assets of this
plan are held separately from those of the Group in an
independent fund managed by the PRC government.

The Group’s contributions to the defined contribution
retirement benefit plan are charged to the consolidated
income statement as incurred. The Group has no further
payment obligations once the contributions have been
paid.
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BABIEAN ESEINARETTRERN)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.25 Share-based payments

(a)

Equity-settled share-based payment
transactions

The Group operates a number of equity-settled,
share-based compensation plans, under which
the entity receives services from employees as
consideration for equity instruments (options) of
the Group. The fair value of the employee services
received in exchange for the grant of the options
is recognised as an expense. The total amount to
be expensed is determined by reference to the fair
value of the options granted:

° including any market performance
conditions (for example, an entity’s share
price);

o excluding the impact of any service and non-
market performance vesting conditions (for
example, profitability, sales growth targets
and remaining an employee of the entity over
a specified time period);and

° including the impact of any non-vesting
conditions (for example, the requirement for
employees to save).

Non-market performance and service conditions
are included in assumptions about the number
of options that are expected to vest. The total
expense is recognised over the vesting period,
which is the period over which all of the specified
vesting conditions are to be satisfied.
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended 31 December 2014

(BABEAN MESBINARBTIREN) BE-T-HNF+-_A=tT—HILEFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.25 Share-based payments (continued)

(a)

(b)

Equity-settled share-based payment
transactions (continued)

In addition, in some circumstances employees
may provide services in advance of the grant date
and therefore the grant date fair value is estimated
for the purposes of recognising the expense during
the period between service commencement
period and grant date.

At the end of each reporting period, the entity
revises its estimates of the number of options
that are expected to vest based on the non-
marketing vesting conditions. It recognises the
impact of the revision to original estimates, if any,
in the consolidated income statement, with a
corresponding adjustment to equity.

When the options are exercised, the Company
issues new shares. The proceeds received net
of any directly attributable transaction costs are
credited to share capital (nominal value) and share
premium.

Share-based payment transactions among
group entities

The grant by the Company of options over its
equity instruments to the employees of subsidiary
undertakings in the Group is treated as a capital
contribution. The fair value of employee services
received, measured by reference to the grant
date fair value, is recognised over the vesting
period as an increase to investment in subsidiary
undertakings, with a corresponding credit to equity
in the parent entity accounts.
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(=B

I ERAUARE T ITRER)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.26

2.27

Provisions

Provisions for environmental restoration, restructuring
costs and legal claims are recognised when: the Group
has a present legal or constructive obligation as a
result of past events; it is probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation; and the
amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are not
recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is
determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of
an outflow with respect to any one item included in the
same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in
the provision due to passage of time is recognised as
interest expense.

Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair
value where there is a reasonable assurance that the
grant will be received and the Group will comply with all
attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and
recognised in the income statement over the period
necessary to match them with the costs that they are
intended to compensate.
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2014

(BABEAN MESBEINARBETIREN) BE-T-HNF+-_A=tT—HILEE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.27 Government grants (continued)

Government grants relating to property, plant and
equipment are included in non-current liabilities as
deferred government grants and are credited to the
income statement on a straight-line basis over the
expected lives of the related assets.

2.28 Revenue recognition

(@) Sales of goods

Revenue comprises the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable for the sale
of goods in the ordinary course of the Group’s
activities. Revenue is shown net of value-added
tax, returns, rebates and discounts and after
eliminating sales within the Group.

The Group recognises revenue when the amount
of revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable
that future economic benefits will flow to the entity
and specific criteria have been met for each of
the Group’s activities. The amount of revenue
is not considered to be reliably measurable until
all contingencies relating to the sale have been
resolved. The Group bases its estimates on
historical results, taking into consideration the
type of customer, the type of transaction and the
specifics of each arrangement.
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)
(BRREREBPIN  AESEIUARE T RER)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.28 Revenue recognition (continued)

(b)

(c)

Sales of properties

Revenue from sales of properties is recognised
when the risks and rewards of the properties
are transferred to the purchasers, which is
when the construction of relevant properties
has been completed and the properties have
been delivered to the purchasers pursuant to
the sales agreement and collectability of related
receivables is reasonably assured. Deposits and
instalments received on properties sold prior to
the date of revenue recognition are included in
the consolidated balance sheet under current
liabilities.

Construction contracts

Contract revenue is recognised over the period
of the contract by reference to the stage of
completion when the outcome of a construction
contract can be estimated reliably and it is
probable that the contract will be profitable.
Contract costs are recognised as expenses
by reference to the stage of completion of the
contract activity at the end of the reporting period.
When it is probable that total contract costs will
exceed total contract revenue, the expected loss
is recognised as an expense immediately. When
the outcome of a construction contract cannot be
estimated reliably, contract revenue is recognised
only to the extent of contract costs incurred that
are likely to be recoverable. Variations in contract
work, claims and incentive payments are included
in contract revenue to the extent that may have
been agreed with the customer and are capable
of being reliably measured. The Group uses the
‘percentage-of-completion method to determine
the appropriate amount to recognise in a given
period. The stage of completion is measured by
reference to the contract costs incurred up to the
end of the reporting period as a percentage of total
estimated costs for each contract. Costs incurred
in the year in connection with future activity on
a contract are excluded from contract costs in
determining the stage of completion.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & #fBf #& 3 & iz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BABEAN  MESBEIRARBETTREN)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.28 Revenue recognition (continued)

(d)

(e)

U]

Interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method. When a loan and receivable is
impaired, the Group reduces the carrying amount
to its recoverable amount, being the estimated
future cash flow discounted at the original effective
interest rate of the instrument, and continues
unwinding the discount as interest income. Interest
income on impaired loan and receivables are
recognised using the original effective interest rate.

Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the right to
receive payment is established.

Lease income
Lease income from operating leases is recognised

in income on a straight-line basis over the lease
term.

For the year ended 31 December 2014
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &8 R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2014

(BRBEAN AESEINARETIREN) BE-_T-NF+-_A=t—HLFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EESHBEHEE)
POLICIES (continued)

2.29 Leases 229 HE

132

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under
operating leases (net of any incentives received from
the lessor) are charged to the consolidated income
statement on a straight-line basis over the period of the
lease.

The Group leases certain property, plant and equipment.
Leases of property, plant and equipment where the
Group has substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership are classified as finance leases. Finance
leases are capitalised at the lease’s commencement at
the lower of the fair value of the leased property and the
present value of the minimum lease payments.

Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and
finance charges so as to achieve a constant rate on the
finance balance outstanding. The corresponding rental
obligations, net of finance charges, are included in other
long-term payables. The interest element of the finance
cost is charged to the consolidated income statement
over the lease period so as to produce a constant
periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of
the liability for each period. The property, plant and
equipment acquired under finance leases is depreciated
over the shorter of the useful life of the asset and the
lease term.

If a sale and leaseback transaction results in a finance
lease, any excess of sales proceeds over the carrying
amount is deferred and amortised over the lease term.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & #fBf #& 3 & iz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BABEAN  MESBEIRARBETTREN)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.30 Contingent liabilities

2.31

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises
from past events and whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one
or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the Group. It can also be a present obligation
arising from past events that is not recognised because
it is not probable that outflow of economic resources
will be required or the amount of obligation cannot be
measured reliably. A contingent liability is not recognised
but is disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial
statements. When a change in the probability of an
outflow occurs so that outflow is probable, it will then be
recognised as a provision.

Dividends distribution

Dividends distribution to the Company’s shareholders
is recognised as a liability in the Group’s and the
Company’s financial statements in the period in
which the dividends are approved by the Company’s
shareholders.

For the year ended 31 December 2014
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &8 R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(=B

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.

P ERIAUARE T ITRER)

POLICIES (continued)

2.32 Earnings per share

(a)

(b)

2.33 Financial guarantee contracts

HE-Z-—NF+_A=+—HIFE

Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing

the profit attributable to owners of the Company,

by weighted average number of ordinary shares

outstanding during the financial year.

Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used

in determination of basic earnings per share to

take into account the after income tax effect of

interest and other financing costs associated with

dilutive potential ordinary shares and the weighted

average number of shares assumed to have been

issued for no consideration in relation to dilutive

potential ordinary shares.

Financial guarantee contracts are contracts that require

the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the

holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails
to make payments when due, in accordance with the
terms of a debt instrument. Such financial guarantees

are given to banks, financial institutions and other bodies
on behalf of third parties to secure loans.

China Oriental Group Company Limited B3y 4 F % B A PR A 7
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & #fBf #& 3 & iz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2014

(BABEAN MESBINARBTIREN) BE-T-HNF+-_A=tT—HILEFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EESHBEREE)
POLICIES (continued)

2.33 HHERAK (F)

2.33 Financial guarantee contracts (continued)

Financial guarantees are initially recognised in the
consolidated financial statements at fair value on the
date the guarantee was given. The fair value of a financial
guarantee at the time of signature is zero because all
guarantees are agreed on arm’s length terms, and
the value of the premium agreed corresponds to the
value of the guarantee obligation. No receivable for the
future premiums is recognised. Subsequent to initial
recognition, the Group’s liabilities under such guarantees
are measured at the higher of the initial amount, less
amortisation of fees recognised in accordance with
HKAS 18, and the best estimate of the amount required
1o settle the guarantee. These estimates are determined
based on experience of similar transactions and history
of past losses, supplemented by the judgement of
management. Any increase in the liability relating to
guarantees is reported in the consolidated income
statement within other operating expenses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &8 R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BABIEAN ESEINARETTRERN)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1

Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including fair value interest rate risk,
cash flow interest rate risk and foreign exchange risk),
credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk
management program focuses on the unpredictability
of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential
adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance.

Market risk

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The Group’s income and operating cash
flows are substantially independent of
changes in market interest rates as the
Group has no significant float interest-
bearing assets. The Group’s interest rate
risk mainly arises from Senior Notes and
bank borrowings. Borrowings issued at
variable rates expose the Group to cash flow
interest risk which is partially offset by cash
held at variable rates. Senior Notes and loan
receivables issued at fixed rates exposed
the Group to fair value interest rate risk. The
maximum exposures to the interest rate risk
have been disclosed in Notes 25 and 19
respectively.

The Group has not used any derivatives to
hedge its exposure to interest rate risk for the
years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & #fBf #& 3 & iz

For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE-_Z-MF+-_A=T—RILFE

3.

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BABEAN  MESBEIRARBETTREN)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)

(a)

Market risk (continued)

(i)

Foreign exchange risk

The Directors do not consider the exposure
to foreign exchange risk is significant to
the Group’s operation as the Group mainly
operates in the PRC with most of the
transactions denominated and settled in
RMB. Therefore, the Group has not used
any derivatives to hedge its exposure to
foreign exchange risk for the years ended 31
December 2014 and 20183.

The major foreign exchange risk exposure
arises from the Group’s importing and
exporting activities and the Group’s
borrowings, which are mostly denominated
in United States Dollars (the “US$”). The
Group also has certain bank deposits,
financial assets and financial liabilities that
are denominated in foreign currencies,
mainly US$ and HK$, which are exposed to
foreign currency translation risk. The foreign
exchange risk is reduced where the Group
is in a position of receiving and paying the
same currency. The Directors believe that
the Group does not expose to significant
foreign exchange risks. The maximum
exposures to the foreign exchange risks
are disclosed in Notes 17, 20, 23 and 25
respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &8 R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2014

(BRBEAN AESEINARBTIAEN) BE-_TNF+-A=t—HLFE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(@) Market risk (continued)
(i)  Summarised sensitivity analysis

The following table summarised the impact
of increases/decreases of cash flow interest
rate and foreign exchange rate on the
Group’s consolidated financial statements.

The sensitivity analysis for the cash flow
interest rate risk and foreign exchange risk is
based on the assumption that:

(@ Interest rate had been 15% lower/
higher from the year end rates with
all other variables held constant (for
example, 11.5% or 8.5% instead of
10%);

(b) RMB had weakened/strengthened by
10% against US$ and HK$ (pegged
with US$) with all other variables held
constant.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 381 #& 3R & Mi &

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2014

(BABEAN MESBINARBTIREN) BE-T-HNF+-_A=tT—HILEFE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3. MBEBRERE(E)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 BEEBREZEE)
(@) Market risk (continued) (@) TWEHEERRE)
(i)  Summarised sensitivity analysis (continued) (i) SEELTHE(E)

Cash flow interest rate risk
RERENERE
-15% +15%
Carrying
Amount Profit  Equity Profit  Equity
REE pavil Bi Al ER

31 December 2014 “E-ME+-fA=1-A
Financial assets at REBHETEN
floating interest rates LREE
Cash and cash equivalents HeRBEEEEY 849,063  (2,299) (2299) 2,299 2,299
Restricted bank balances B HISRTEE 1,626,978 (4,155)  (4,155) 4,155 4,155
Financial liabilities at BEBAETEN
floating interest rates SREE
Bank and other borrowings BITREMET (1,838,844) 60,462 60462  (60,462) (60,462)
Amounts due to related parties (%A B (351,715) 37 37 (37) (37)
Total increase/(decrease) A/ (FD) 54045 54,045  (54,045) (54,045)
Foreign exchange risk
SNER KR
-10% +10%
Carrying

amount Profit  Equity Profit  Equity

BEE A 3 byl B
31 December 2014 ZZ-MFE+=A=t+-H
Monetary assets EMEE
Cash and cash equivalents HERBEEEED 849,063 37,517 371517  (37,517) (37,517)
Restricted bank balances FRFIRTER 1626978 3,699 3,699  (3,699) (3,699
Trade receivables e E SRR 961,342 15841 15841  (15841) (15841)
Deposits and other receivables &4 R EHEMRIRS: 697,731 4531 4531  (4531)  (4,531)
Monetary liabilities ERaE
Trade payables ERE SRR (2,719,253)  (29,306)  (29,306) 29,306 29,306
Other payables At MR (390,205  (121)  (121) 121 121
Borrowings &% (8,169,271) (721,236) (721,236) 721,236 721,236
Total (decrease)/increase A1t (FY) /& (689,075) (689,075) 689,075 689,075
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &8 R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2014

(BRBEAN AESEINARBTIAEN) BE-_TNF+-A=t—HLFE

3.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3. MBEBRER(E)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 BEBEBRRZEE)
(@) Market risk (continued) (a) TEER(E)
(i)  Summarised sensitivity analysis (continued) (i) SREELTHE(E)

Cash flow interest rate risk
BenerxmEk
-16% +15%
Carrying
amount Profit Equity Profit Equity
REE el & il 1

31 December 2013 —B-=E+-fA=1-H
Financial assets at BIBFETEN
floating interest rates SREE
Cash and cash equivalents BeRAEEEN 968,132 (2204) (2204 2204 2204
Restricted bank balances SRR ER 1616022 (3679 (3679 8679 3,679
Financial liabilities at BIBFETEN
floating interest rates tRER
Bank and other borrowings BITREMET (1469652 11,951 11951  (11951)  (11,951)
Amounts due to related parties JERE 2 (270979) 468 468 (468) (468)
Other long-term payables HihREEMT (26,1290 1,099 1,099 (1,099 (1,099
Total increase/(decrease) S48/ (HD) 7,635 7635 (7,635 (7,635
Foreign exchange risk
HMERER
-10% +10%
Carrying

amount Profit Equity Profit Equity

RHE it 1 il 1
31 December 2013 ZE-ZF+ZA=1-H
Monetary assets EBEE
Cash and cash equivalents BeRAEEEN 968,132 23862 23862 (23,862 (23,862
Restricted bank balances XRHRTER 1,616,022 5,333 5333 (5333  (5339)
Trade receivables EWE S5 1,110,753 40,844 40844  (40,844)  (40,844)
Deposits and other receivables 7 REMmREUERS 476,204 163 163 (163) (163)
Monetary liabilities EWER
Trade payables R E ZiR (3521,390)  (29,696) (29,696) 29,696 29,696
Other payables EftERERR (460437)  (10,150)  (10,150) 10,150 10,150
Borrowings Bk (7.719,459) (770,363) (770,368) 770,363 770,363
Total (decrease)/increase AR (ED)/Bm (740,007) (740,007) 740,007 740,007
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & #fBf #& 3 & iz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BABEAN  MESBEIRARBETTREN)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(a)

(b)

Market risk (continued)

(i) Summarised sensitivity analysis (continued)

Profit represents consolidated profit post
tax; equity represents total equity, including
non-controlling interests.

Other payables include payables for
purchase of property, plant and equipment,
customer deposits and employee deposits
as stated in Note 24.

Credit risk

The Group has no significant concentrations of
credit risk. The carrying amounts of cash and
cash equivalents, restricted bank balances, long-
term bank deposits, trade and notes receivables,
deposits and other receivables, loan receivables
and amounts due from related parties represent
the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in
relation to financial assets. The Group does not
have significant credit risks arising from off-balance
sheet items. The Group’s credit policy for the
sales of products is mainly delivery either on cash
or upon receipt of bank acceptance notes with
maturity dates within six months. For bank and
financial institutions, the Group has policies that
deposits are placed with reputable banks. Credit
quality of financial assets is further disclosed in
Notes 13, 19 and 42(c) respectively.

For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE-_Z-MF+-_A=T—RILFE

3. BXERRERE(Z)

31 HREBEZE)

(a)

(b)

miERK (&)
(i) SPRELINTHEE)

SRR B A B
SR R
Attt BEEEH
RS o

H Al & R KB IR
BEWE BER
R 2 AT AR
EFReLEEE
& (B HIEE24) o

FERR

AEBWESEAETHIE
ERK - BEeRRSEE
W IBRHRITES K
HIRITIE R - BB SR
RREE BEREME
IRBRFK - FEUR BT 3k K e Uk
RAEs 5 RIER R EE AR
SENEREELREER
B EH &= BB KE -
AEEWEAEEAGBE
SNBEEANEREER
R o AEEERBEENRE
EBREZARKBEA S
2| B B £ 75 8 A AR IR
TERREZRFE%E -
HRIBITT RS BEE - K
SEMNBIRERBERFH
REEERTT - SBE
ENEEE RS RIENZ
13+ 197142(c) N —

= o

Annual Report 2014 —ZF—U4pE4EH

141




142

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &8 R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2014

(BRBEAN AESEINARBTIAEN) BE-_TNF+-A=t—HLFE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(c) Liquidity risk

The liquidity risk of the Group is controlled by
maintaining sufficient cash and cash equivalents,
together with adequate banking facilities.

The table below analyses the Group’s financial
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on
the remaining period at the balance sheet to the
contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed
in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash
flows. Balances due within 12 months equal their
carrying balances, as the impact of discounting is
not significant.
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BABEAN  MESBEIRARBETTREN)

Financial risk factors (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

At 31 December 2014

The Group

Borrowings

Interests payable on
borrowings (i

Trade payables

Other payables

Amounts due to related parties

Interests payable on amounts
due to related parties ()

Derivative financial instruments

Guarantee for bank borrowings
of athird party

The Company
Borrowings
Interests payable on
borrowings (i)
Trade payables

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & #fBf #& 3 & iz

For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE-_Z-MF+-_A=T—RILFE

3. HHBEKRERE(Z)
31 BBEBEZE)
(c) wBELER(E)
Between Between

Less than 1and 2and Over

iyear 2years  bSyears  Syears Total

15 122§ 2Z5%F 5FHLE &5t
6,558,752 100,000 1,510,519 - 8,169,271
321,695 108,956 83,731 - 514,382
2,719,253 - - - 2,719,253
390,205 - - - 390,205
104,596 195,260 - 51,859 351,715
10,037 - - - 10,037

4,689 - - - 468
12,960 - - - 12,960
10,122,187 404,216 1,594,250 51,859 12,172,512
3,620,225 - 1,264,519 - 4,884,744
253,227 90,795 79,850 - 423872
78,752 - - - 78,752
3,952,204 90,795 1,344,369 - 5,387,368
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &8 R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2014

(BRBEAN AESEINARBTIAEN) BE-_TNF+-A=t—HLFE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3. HHBERERE(Z)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 BEEBREZEE)
(¢) Liquidity risk (continued) (c) RBESE(Z)
Between  Between
Less than 1 and 2 and QOver
1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years Total

16/ 1228 2R5F  S5E[LE =

At 31 December 2013 R-B-=f
tZA=1-8
The Group b3 |
Borrowings EE 3485497 2,994,541 1,289,421 - 7,7119459
Interests payable on BHEMATE()
borrowings (i) 356,756 247,954 174,613 - 779,323
Trade payables ERE SRR 3,521,390 - = - 3,521,390
Other payables AR 514,884 - - 26129 541013
Amounts due to related parties FEf Bl A 5B 181,716 - 37404 51,859 270979
Interests payable on amounts [E 1 B 50 0R
due to related parties () BRERFE () 24,685 - - - 24685
Guarantee for bank borrowings BE=HNRTER
of a third party hERR 8197 12960 - - 2,157
8,043,125 3,255,455 1,501,438 77,988 12,878,006
The Company NG|
Borrowings EE 621,820 2,969,541 1,289,421 - 4,880,782
Interests payable on BHEMARE()
borrowings (i) 338,523 246,603 174,613 - 759,739
Trade payables ERE SRR 9,211 - = - 9,211
969,554 3,216,144 1,464,034 - 5,649,732
(i) The interest on borrowings is calculated based () ERFNER - —NER -

on borrowings held as at 31 December 2014
and 2013 without taking into account extension
or refinancing of the borrowings in future.
Floating-rate interest is estimated using current
interest rate as at 31 December 2014 and 2013
respectively.

—=F+-_A=+—HHEH
ERETE - TERERRLEHK
ENERER - FHMESFI
BR_ZT-—NFERZZT-—=F
TZA=T+—BMERFEMG

At

E'_o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & #fBf #& 3 & iz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2014

(BABEAN  MESBEIRARBETTREN)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2 Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new
shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the debt-
to-capital ratio. This ratio is calculated as total debt
divided by the total capitalisation. Total debt includes
current and non-current borrowings and borrowings
from related parties. Total capitalisation includes non-
current borrowings, non-current portion of borrowings
from related parties and equity attributable to owners of

the Company.

Total debt BIAMRE

Total capitalisation BEKR
Debt-to-capital ratio ERELEREPINed

As at 31 December 2014, the ratio rised due to certain
long-term senior notes due within one year and reclassified
as current borrowings.

BE_Z—NF+_A=1T—HILFE

3. MBERERE)

3.2

B EREE

AEENESEREAR  BR
BAKBERSEREEEREE
BEZREN  UAKRRERE
W FSREEMESSEE
BFES - W RENEARE
BAREE SR

REFIHABELER A&
B RE AR N TRERMK
S8 MEREEES  #
TR B B EREET

AEEEREBEREEALL X
EREANRR - BHEEANL
RBEEBFERARER - (&
FAEBERYIIEREER
KRBT 5K - AR BIEIE
MBNE SR - BB 7 B SRHI3E IR
B AR 10 B R BN AN 1 B R AR AT
BAEH LS ©

2014 2013
—F-mE  ZF-=F
8,516,608 7,990,052
11,014,695 13,564,429
77.32% 58.90%

RZZB—NF+=—A=+—H8

HRE TRBEELZEN—FA
FH B SO EAREMER - m
LDILLLE T o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &8 R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2014

(BRBEAN AESEINARBTIAEN) BE-_TNF+-A=t—HLFE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3. BHERREE(E)
3.8 Fair value estimation 3.3 AR(EEMG

The table below analyses financial instruments carried at
fair value, by valuation method. The different levels have
been defined as follows:

° Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

° Inputs other than quoted prices included within
level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is,
derived from prices) (level 2).

o Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based
on observable market data (that is, unobservable
inputs) (level 3).

The following table presents the Group’s assets and
liabilities that are measured at fair value at 31 December
2014 and 31 December 2013.

TREBHBEEDTIRRAE
BEFfENERIA - TREAAR
FEWT ¢

o MHREEXEBENERD
BHRE(REHAR) (F—
&) -

e KBRBERFE—HWHKE
Hh - BESBE AR
B (BIMES) S s (A
REBERE)BALR(F
=) e

o WHREBABRMBER
MEBENEEXBENER
ABR (BB R e &
ABR(E=4) »

TREJAEEN -T—MmF
t=ZA=t-BR=2-=
+Z A=+ BRAREE

EMNEERARE -
Level1 Level2 Level3 Total
E—H HF-R =8 wet
At 31 December 2014 N-_ZE—ME
+=HA=+—H
Assets BE
Available-for-sale financial assets At HESREE
— Equity securities (Note 15) -BeAFE S (TR 15) 11,638 = - 11,638
Liabilities =1
Derivative financial instruments PTHEERTA
— Trading derivatives —BEETA 4,689 = - 4,689
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2014

(BABEAN MESBINARBTIREN) BE-T-HNF+-_A=tT—HILEFE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)

At 31 December 2013 R-Z—-=%
+=-A=t-AH
Assets BE
Available-for-sale financial assets At ESREE
- Equity securities (Note 15) —RAFES (iFE15)

For the year ended 31 December 2014 and 2013, there
are no transfers among levels of the fair value hierarchy
used in measuring the fair value of financial instruments,
and also no changes in the classification of financial
assets as a result of a change in the purpose or use of
those assets.

3.3.1 Fair value measurements using quoted prices
(Level 1)

The Group’s equity securities investments,
classified as level 1 financial assets, are
investments in shares which are listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The fair values of
the listed securities are determined based on the
quoted market prices at the balance sheet date
(Note 15).

3. MBERERE)

33 RAREEMFE)

Level 1 Level2  Level 3 Total

F— Bl E=HR FE

40,096 - - 40,096
BEZZ—NEFER-T—=%F

T_A=1t—BLHFE &
TARREEEMERAR
BEEBRBARE(ELERE B
MERNEEZFEERNRE
RAmEeREEN I -

31 FRAREFTED
(E—-%)

nEE

REBNRAEFHFKE
(PEARE—REREE)
TEERBRBBMAR SN
BRAR ([BRFT]) EIR
EWERD - ETESH
RREBETVIEESE HATHR
MmEEE (MisE15) °

Annual Report 2014 —F—PU4E4EH

147
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2014

(BRBEAN AESEINARETIREN) BE-_T-NF+-_A=t—HLFE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3. BXRRERE(E)

148

3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)

3.3.1 Fair value measurements using quoted prices
(Level 1) (continued)

The Group’s derivative financial instruments,
classified as level 1 financial liability, are the rebar
futures contracts entered into by the Group and
a financial institution. The fair value of the rebar
futures is determined based on the prices on the
Shanghai Futures Exchange at the balance sheet
date.

3.4 Fair value of financial assets and liabilities measured at
amortised cost

The fair value of the other financial assets and liabilities of
the Group approximate their carrying amount as at the

balance sheet date.

As at 31 December 2014, there was no offsetting of

33 AREEMEE)

ST RAREFTEQIREE
(B8 (&)

AEETEEMIA(D
BRE-—MEBMEE)D
REEE— S BEER]
VHBHEHBESH - B
AR E R AR BETR
BHEB LBHER SN
BRETE °

34 HMEHKAFTEZEREER
BEZAREE
REER ARENEMBSE
BEENBENAABEIUR
AREE -

RZE—NMFE+_A=+—

financial assets and liabilities in the Group. B AEBTEEKHESHEE
EAE{E o
CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND B et EE R

JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experiences and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes judgements, estimates and assumptions
concerning the future. The resulting accounting judgements
and estimates will, by definition, seldom equal to the related
actual results. The judgements, estimates and assumptions
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year are discussed below.

China Oriental Group Company Limited 23 J7 5 [ 2 A FR 2 7]

et R FI B & B ATl WRBS
ERBMEMEAZETRHEN G 2
RERBEBERTHEREENERK
SFeTRE -

7 58 B 50 R 2R fE 1B - (st ROBR
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% ROGRABRGERER - /A
AREH T ERREENEERS K
{0 R ALt A SR IR - it
RBREHIT -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & #fBf #& 3 & iz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2014

(BABEAN  MESBEIRARBETTREN)

4  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(@)

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated
costs of completion and selling expenses. These
estimates are based on the current market condition as
at the balance sheet date and the historical experience
of manufacturing and selling products of similar nature.

Provision for properties under development and held for
sale

The Group assesses the carrying amounts of properties
under development and held for sale according to their
net realisable value based on the realisability of these
properties, taking into account costs to completion
based on past experience and net sales value based
on prevailing market conditions. Provision is made
when events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amounts may not be realised. The
provision assessment requires the use of judgement and
estimates.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

The Group reviews property, plant and equipment
for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not
be recoverable, in accordance with the accounting policy
stated in Note 2.10. The recoverable amount of a CGU
has been determined based on higher of value-in-use
and fair value less costs to sell.

As at 31 December 2014, the Group determined that
there was an impairment indication relating to two
production lines of a subsidiary which manufactures
galvanised sheets and cold rolled sheets. These
production lines were identified as CGUs separately.

HE-T—WE+-_A=1+—HLFE

4. BREHEERARE)

FRM TR HE

FEMNAERFERBERS
BIEF M EE - RhE T
PR R K& St o % F A ET
REREEBENRITHREE
EREEEEREUNEMNB
ERBETE -

BERT RBELEYMREL
ey

AEERBEENBERD RFHE
HEMENERE DA ENA
BHRFE URUNEEREZE
FTEIRAREARITHIAHE
EFRENFEZEMENRE
8- BHRBERKEER EE
EEIR M F A RB R
TEH B - FHEREAERH
B & b At

W%~ BB LRERE

BEEEABERTEEMHRED
BREREENETE T AKE
B AEEASREMFE2.10
Pl B & St BRI A I % - R
FERRENRE REELE
MR EEEDREERE
BEEAAEERHEEKARE

MEREET -

R-ZF-—OF+-A=1+—
B AEEETE -—HNBER
A H) R {GR A B A EE SR IR o 0%
FARMAEEROBRETR
ZELERDEBRIA/RES
BB -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & Bt &8 R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BABEAN AESEINARETTREN)

4  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(©)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment (continued)

The Group measured the value-in-use and fair value less
costs to sell by discounting the future estimated cash
flow deriving from the property, plant and equipment.
These calculations required the Group to estimate the
expected future cash flows from the CGUs and also to
apply a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the
present value of those cash flows (Note 7).

Useful life of the property, plant and equipment

Useful life is the period over which an asset is expected
to be available for use by an entity. The depreciable
amount of an asset is allocated on a systematic basis
over its useful life (Note 2.6).

The following factors are considered in determining the
useful life of an asset:

(i) Expected usage of the asset

(i)  Expected physical wear and tear

(iy ~ Technical or commercial obsolescence arising
from changes or improvements in production,
or from a change in the market demand for the
product or service output of the asset

(iv)  Legal or similar limits on the use of the asset

The useful life of an asset is reviewed at each financial
year-end and, if expectations differ from previous
estimates, the change will be accounted for as a change
in an accounting estimate in accordance with HKAS 8
‘Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates
and Errors’.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
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4. BREHEERARE)

W%~ BB &RERIE (&)

AEEEBEREVE  BE
RBHBOARRGEARSREN
BOAOARFEEREERR
AEBEREEXAN  ZEHE
TEERAEBAHRER S
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RenegmfE(mzr) -

W BEMREHRERF
H

AERFRAEERNAIHE
RBEANHR - BENAITE
SERNEERAFHRRRLS
EEEITH (HIFE2.6) °

EETEENAERFHE
AEBATHEE :

() ZHREENFEHME
(i) FEEMEERE

(iy FAEELFHNAR KM
HZBEENEDRIRS
B A SR B M i R
Mok % iRk

v) ERZAEERAEEN
FRLAPR I

BEMAIERFAREMBF
EARETER - HIEH A LA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 481 &3 & iz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2014

(BABEFN MESBEIRARBTTREN)

4  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(e)

Current and deferred income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in numerous
jurisdictions. Significant judgement is required in
determining the provision for income taxes. There
are many transactions and calculations for which the
ultimate tax determination is uncertain. The Group
recognises liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues
based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be
due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is
different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the current and deferred
income tax assets and liabilities in the period in which
such determination is made.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences and tax losses are recognised when
management considers it to be probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences or tax losses can be utilised. The
outcome of their actual utilisation may be different.

Impairment of available-for-sale financial assets

The Group follows the guidance of HKAS 39 to
determine when an available-for-sale financial asset
is impaired. This determination requires significant
judgement. In making this judgement, the Group
evaluates, among other factors, the duration and extent
to which the fair value of a financial asset is less than its
cost; and the financial health of and short-term business
outlook for the investee, including factors such as
industry and sector performance, changes in technology
and operational and financing cash flow.

HE-T—WE+-_A=1+—HLEFE

4. BREHEERARE)

B BB

AEERBNRZ R AR
FRSH - REEMSHERE
FIEHEZHE - BRFZR S
Kat B9 B DAHE T S A BLIA MY
BE- - AREAMGBFAKRES
BMBBINRIR - M ER B
HRBERETENET - %
EEEHNRRRBERERT
AENEETR FREZES
TEINARETHRNE AR
EREFBHEERARE -

2B EER SR A ER
B A AN E B (e Z R A
ERREEER S TY
R Z R R RS R 1R <RI
REETUHER BERERGE
RATBET[E ©

AHEESREERE

AEERBEEGHEEI9
SZiEsBEEAHEESRE
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HIET - B ZFHEE - K
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RERE : REEHR BB R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &8 R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BABIEAN ESEINARETTRERN)

4  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(@)

Impairment of loans, receivables and prepayments

The Group follows the accounting policy stated in Note
2.12 and assessed loans, receivables and prepayments
for impairment whenever there is objective evidence
that the present value of estimated future cash flows
measurable decreases and is lower than the carrying
amount of the loans, receivables and prepayments. The
process for estimating the amount of an impairment loss
results either in a single amount or in a range of possible
amounts. In the latter case, the Group recognises
an impairment loss equal to the best estimate within
the range taking into account all relevant information
available before the financial statements are issued
about conditions existing at the end of the reporting
period.

Impairment of the Group’s assets

The Group follows the guidance of HKAS 36 to
determine whether the Group’s assets are impaired.
As stated in HKAS 36, the net asset value of an
entity that exceeds its market capitalisation is an
impairment indicator which would require an estimate
of the recoverable amount to be performed. As at 31
December 2014, the Group’s market capitalisation
amounted to RMB 2,683 million approximately, which
is lower than the Group’s net assets value of RMB
9,772 million. The Group shall assess whether its assets
are impaired. This assessment requires significant
judgments and estimations. In making these judgments
and estimations, the Group evaluates and considers
both qualitative and quantitative factors that will affect
the value-in-use of an asset or a CGU such as the
extent of the difference between the net assets value
and market capitalisation, composition of the Group’s
assets, results and timing of previous impairment tests.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & #fBf #& 3 & iz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2014

(BABEAN MESBINARBTIREN) BE-T-HNF+-_A=tT—HILEFE

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 4. BRESHEFTREEE)
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(h)  Impairment of the Group’s assets (continued) h) AEBEEEREGE)
The Group has performed the impairment test according AEBRBER B2 %ERFE 36
to HKAS 36 and determines that except for the property, SETRERNS  TEEKRY
plant and equipment, no other asset or CGU have been ¥ BEMKEN WEEA
impaired. The impairment assessment of property, plant EESRCELEENERE-
and equipment is analysed in Note 7. Y% - R K% 15 A Rk (B R A
AMRET DA ©
5. SALES AND SEGMENT INFORMATION - GROUP 5. HEBERISHER-FEE
(@ Sales @ SHERE
The Group is principally engaged in the manufacture and REBFENREEERFEEH
sale of iron and steel products, trading of steel products HER HNEELREEERE
and iron ore and real estate business. Sales recognised SUNEHEEE HE_Z
for the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013 were —mER_ZE—=F1+=A4
as follows: =T —HIEERFEEERAE
EREAT
2014 2013
—E-MEF —E—=F
Gross sales less discounts, SHEBRERITH -
returns and sales taxes RERHEER
— Strips and strip products — 75 8l e 7 o) 2 2 10,184,737 11,098,625
— H-section steel products — HAEH = & 9,076,978 10,068,657
— Rebar — 1247 i 3,006,807 2,461,710
— Iron ore —EEA 2,045,054 3,050,802
— Cold rolled sheets and — R ELIR R S R
galvanised sheets 1,876,837 1,561,753
— Billets — iR 1,672,317 3,960,533
— Real estate —EiE 238,928 112,886
— Steel pile sheet — MR AE 135,202 -
— Others —EHfh 258,638 201,971

28,495,498 32,516,937
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & Bt &8 R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BABEAN AESEINARETTREN)

5. SALES AND SEGMENT INFORMATION - GROUP
(continued)

(b)

Segment information

The chief decision-maker has been identified as the
management committee, which comprises all executive
directors and top management. The chief decision-
maker reviews the Group’s internal reporting in order to
assess performance and allocate resources.

Based on these reports, the chief decision-maker
considers the business from a business perspective.
From a business perspective, the chief decision-maker
assesses the performance of the iron and steel and the
real estate segments.

(i) Iron and steel — Manufacture and sale of iron and
steel products and trading of steel products and
iron ore; and

(i) Real estate — Development and sale of properties.

The chief decision-maker assesses the performance of
the operating segments based on a measure of revenue
and operating profit. This measurement is consistent
with that in the annual financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 481 &3 & iz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BABEFN MESBEIRARBTTREN)

5. SALES AND SEGMENT INFORMATION - GROUP
(continued)

(b)

Segment information (continued)

The segment information provided to the chief decision-

maker for the reportable segments for the year was as

follows:

Segment revenue

Segment operating profit
Finance (costs)/income — net

Profit before income tax
Income tax expense

Profit for the year

Other income statement items

Depreciation and amortisation

Impairment of property, plant and
equipment

Capital expenditure

Segment revenue

Segment operating profit
Finance income - net

Profit before income tax
Income tax expense

Profit for the year

Other income statement items

Depreciation and amortisation

Impairment of property, plant and
equipment

Capital expenditure

AERA

A EELER

8175 (RA) A — 58

BRPT SRR
FISHER

FREHN

HitFBRER
FrE R
0% BERRXERE

BARX

A EURA

A EEER
MBWA—FE

BRFRS AT R
FEHER

FRRF

HitFBRER
REREH
nEx - BERRERE

NGB

For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE_Z-MF+-A=+—RILFE

5. HEERSBER-AKH(E)

b) DEEFR (&)

RERBEDBRETERER
RARDEER 20T -

Year ended 31 December 2014
BE-Z-NE+-A=t—HLEE

Iron and steel Real estate Total
i FEiE Foh
28,256,570 238,928 28,495,498
506,810 22,629 529,439
(285,619) 1,260 (284,359)
245,080

(178,600)

66,480

1,093,777 813 1,094,590
89,944 - 89,944
822,221 351 822,572

Year ended 31 December 2013
BE_Z-—=F1+_A=t—HItFE

Iron and steel Real estate Total
i) FivE “et
32,404,051 112,886 32,516,937
242,421 3,368 245,789
1,465 2,087 3,552
249,341

(186,313)

63,028

1,049,152 653 1,049,805
79,053 - 79,053
1,246,803 727 1,247,530
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &8 R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BABIEAN ESEINARETTRERN)

5. SALES AND SEGMENT INFORMATION - GROUP
(continued)

(b)

Segment information (continued)

Segment assets are those operating assets that are
employed by a segment in its operating activities.
Segment assets are determined after deducting related
allowance that is reported as direct offsets in the balance
sheet. Segment assets consist primarily of leasehold
land and land use rights, property, plant and equipment,
investment properties, intangible assets, prepayments,
deposits and other receivables, long-term bank
deposits, inventories, trade receivables, amounts due
from related parties, notes receivable, restricted bank
balances and cash and cash equivalents.

Segment liabilities are those operating liabilities that
result from the operating activities of a segment.
Segment liabilities consist primarily of other long-term
payables, deferred revenue, amounts due to related
parties, trade payables and accruals, advances and
other current liabilities.

The segment assets and liabilities as at 31 December
2014 were as follows:

Total assets

Segment assets for BESBOSHEE
reportable segments

Unallocated: AAE

Deferred income tax assets EIEFSHAE

Available-for-sale financial assets At ESREE

Loan recsivables ERER

Prepaid current income tax BREBAEH

Total assets per balance sheet EEBERANBEE

China Oriental Group Company Limited B3y 4 F % B A PR A 7

For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE-_Z-NF+-A=+—HLLFE

5. HEERSBER-XKH(E)

Iron and steel

i EiE st

21,438,925

DEEF (&)

DEBETI DR MR EL LR
BNKEEE - DEEENR
NEERBERTEREBHEZR
MARBR R RETE - D RFEE
TERREEL MR LHER
B E- BELERE ®RE
ME - BILEE - BISFOE-
me REMREERR - RAR
TEXR 78 BEESK
R EUEREE )T 5OR - RIRER
B XRGBIRTEHRNES R
ReEEY -

DEBET DR E BB
BYMEERE - pHABE
ZEBEMRBEMERR B
FEW - FEATRARE T RH -
NEZEFARERER &
WRE M A tRE R IE -

R-ZE-—ME+-_H=+—H
MO BEEMRBENT

Real estate Total

1,546,903 22,985,828

22,985,828

342,238
121,243
290,000

4,099

23,743,408



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 381 #& 3R & Mi &

5.

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BABEAN  MESBEIRARBETTREN)

For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE-_Z-MF+-_A=T—RILFE

SALES AND SEGMENT INFORMATION - GROUP 5. HEERITER-KKEEH(E)
(continued)
(b)  Segment information (continued) (o) PEEFEEE)
Iron and steel Real estate Total
i EHE st
Total liabilities Fg= 4,759,438 863,450 5,622,888
Segment liabilties for REDPOHHAE
reportable segments 5,622,888
Unallocated: KOHE:
Current income tax liabilities SHIFTERAE 170,142
Current borrowings mENE 6,658,752
Non-current borrowings JEmEE 1,510,519
Derivative financial instruments TEERIA 4,689
Dividends payable FERARE 4,572
Total liabilities per balance sheet BEABRANEEE 13,971,562

The segment assets and liabilities as at 31 December

2013 were as follows:

Total assets

Segment assets for
reportable segments

Unallocated:
Deferred income tax assets
Available-for-sale financial assets
Loan receivables
Prepaid current income tax

Total assets per balance sheet

RZE—=%F+-_A=+—8H

VHEEERBENT

[ron and steel Real estate Total
it FEiE @t
BEE 21,900,245 984,921 22,885,166

REDBNDHEE
22,885,166

AOE

ERFETEE 285,894
AHESHEE 149,701
EIER 363,232
BN EEFTEH 66,607
BEABERANBEE 23,750,600
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & Bt &8 R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2014

(BABEAN FESEINARBTIAEN) BE-_TNF+-A=t—HILFE

5. SALES AND SEGMENT INFORMATION - GROUP 5. HEERIBER-FKE(E)
(continued)
(b)  Segment information (continued) (o) PDEHER(E)
Iron and steel Real estate Total
) Rz 5t
Total liabilities “wef 5,651,884 565,311 6,217,195
Segment liabilties for REDHHHHAE
reportable segments 6,217,195
Unallocated: KRAE :
Current income tax liabilities SHRMEHaRE 66,930
Current borrowings mEE 3,435,497
Non-current borrowings EREER 4,283,962
Dividends payable RS 36,114
Total liabilities per balance sheet BEBBRANBEEE 14,039,698
6. LEASEHOLD LAND AND LAND USE RIGHTS - 6. MHELHRLTHMFERE-—AKEH
GROUP
The Group’s interests in leasehold land and land use rights NEBERE - 5%+ (5 ARER R
represent the prepayment for the operating lease, the net book MRS THETENMNTIE  IREEmF
value of which is analysed as follows: BEoranT:
2014 2013
—E-MF —E—=fF
At 1 January R—A—H 130,318 133,723
Additions NE 9,553 -
Amortisation of leasehold land HETH &
and land use rights (Note 30) 15 FRRERE 84 (FfT 31 30) (3,485) (3,405)
At 31 December Nt+-=HA=+—H 136,386 130,318
The Group’s leasehold land and land use rights are all located NEE R E i & 10 (5 S L
in the PRC and the remaining lease period is between 29 years REE - A THEEN F29F £504F °
to 50 years.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

The Group

Year ended 31 December 2013

Opening net book amount
Additions
Transfer from CIP
Procurement of finance
leased assefs
Disposals (Note 39)
Depreciation (Note 30)
Impairment (Note 28)

Closing net book Amount

At 31 December 2013
Cost

Accumulated depreciation
Impairment

Net book amount

Year ended 31 December 2014

Opening net book amount

Additions

Transfer from CIP

Transfer from investment
properties (Note 8)

Transfer from properties under
development and held for sale

Disposals (Note 39)

Depreciation (Note 30)

Impairment (Note 28)

Closing net book Amount

At 31 December 2014
Cost

Accumulated depreciation
Impairment

Net book amount

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BABEPN MESBEIRARBETTREN)

HZ-3-=E12R
=t-HLEE

FEEEFE

7B

EETREA

FERATELE

& (E39)
HE (M)
T (MzE28)

FRREFE
R-2-=F+ZA=t-AR
A

ZitHE

HfE

RE#E

HZ-2-mET=R
=t-HLEE
FIEEFE

7B

EETREA
RENEEA (HiEs)

RPREHENENREA

& (39)

E (M)

T (MzE28)
EREEFE
R-E-BE+-A=1-A
A

ZiHAE

e

HiHE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &3 & i ==

For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE-_Z-MF+-_A=T—RHILFE

7. YE BERRE
AREE

Furniture Leasehold Finance

and improve- leased
Buildings Machinery  fixtures  Vehicles ments CIP machinery Total

HENE HERE
BF HERE BORG AE i HEIE W h
2420943 5238062 39884 55945 207 869530 415399 9,039,970
142,048 454,214 4308 12,884 - 638,777 - 124731
230,800 649,416 2,530 3,208 - (885954 - -
- 363039 - - - - (363,089 -
(262) (232) 49 (1,774 - - - (2317)
(155,618)  (807,042)  (10,635)  (19,806) (59) - (52,360) (1,045,516)
(10479 (68,032 (642) - - - - (19083
2027432 5829425 35586 50,467 152 617,353 - 9,160,405
3,035,493 11042211 112821 151,527 1,337 617,353 - 15,560,742
(977,037) (5,084,900)  (75,802) (100985  (1,189) - - (6,239,909
(31,024) (127,886) (1,439 85) - - - (160428
2027432 5829425 35586 50,467 152 617,363 - 9,160,405
2621432 5829425 35586 50,457 152 617,353 - 9,160,405
14433 20,583 4822 17,625 - 755,535 - 812,998
203,646 490,512 655 - - (694,813) - -
6,500 - - - - - - 6,500
28,366 - - - - - - 28,366
- (4929 (168)  (1,847) - - - (6,939
(174,646) (889,048)  (8,837)  (17,970) (55) - - (1,090,556)
(17,662) (72,282 - - - - - (89,944)
2,688,069 5374266 32,058 48,265 97 678,075 - 8,820,830
3,881,966 11,426,434 117,230 158,117 1,337 678,075 - 16,263,159
(1,145.211) (5,859,954)  (83,739) (109,767)  (1,240) - - (7,199,911)
(48,686) (192,214)  (1,433) (85) - - - (42418
2,688,069 5374266 32,058 48,265 97 678,075 - 8,820,830
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &8 R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BABIEAN ESEINARETTREN)

7.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

The Group (continued)

Depreciation expenses have been charged to the consolidated
income statement as follows:

HEMRA
TTERE M

Cost of sales
Administrative expenses

For the year ended 31 December 2014, borrowing costs
amounted to approximately RMB 24 million (2013: RMB 69
million) were capitalised in the cost of property, plant and
equipment at an annual average capitalisation rate of 7.64%
(2013: 7.37%) approximately.

For the year ended 31 December 2014, provision for
impairment of approximately RMB 90 million (2013: RMB 79
million) was made for two production lines of a subsidiary
for the manufacturing of galvanised and cold rolled sheets
as a result of not fully utilised production capacity (Note 28).
The impairment provision amount was determined based
on the recoverable amount of CGUs (cash-generating units)
determined based on value-in-use calculations and use
post-tax discounted cash flow projections based on five-
year financial budgets approved by management and being
extrapolated by using the estimated growth rate. The growth
rate does not exceed the long-term average growth rates for
the galvanised sheets and cold rolled sheets business with
which the CGUs operate. The key assumptions used for the
value-in-use calculations as at 31 December 2014 were as
follows:

Gross margin -0.9%-1.6%
Growth rate 0%~5.0%
Discount rate 11.8%

China Oriental Group Company Limited 23 J7 5 [ 2 A FR 2 7]

For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE-_T-WNF+-_A=1+—HLFE

3~ BERHRE(E)

REE (&)

ERafAERPIBROTER M
T

2014 2013
—E—F —ET—=F
1,063,366 1,017,747
27,190 27,769
1,090,556 1,045,516

HE_ZT-—MF+=-_A=+—HLF
B BERANARE 24008 (=
T—=4F: AR¥B6,9008 L) BIRF
EFHERELLET64%(ZF—=
F:737%)ERLAEME  BEK
BRI o

BE_T-ME+t-_A=1+—HLLF
B AR EESFIRER  S5—
1 B BB 1~ B Y M R AR EE SR B AR R
AR EERIEHO AR 0008
THREREBE( T —=F: AR¥K
79008 7T) (M5E28) - BEEGER
BIERBEREEFENREES
BU(ReELEMN) 2 KB SRR
BE - WERTHERITARSRER
A BRI REEEMI e TR
BRERERGFEREES - K
RSB T EEBMLLENRE
R EIREEN R FIIERE
R-ZE—NE+-_A=+—BRRE
REEFEZETERRNAT

=7 -0.9%-1.6%
13 5% 0%~5.0%
RS 11.8%



(RBBERN  FTBEBINARBTLASEN) HEZZ—NF+-A=+—HLFE
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 7. Y¥- BERREE)
The Company NAA]
Furniture and
fixtures Vehicles Total

WARE AE @t

Year ended 31 December 2013 HZE—_FE-—=5+_#
=t-ALEEE
Opening net book amount FRMFE 157 503 660
Additions NE 5 223 228
Depreciation wE (29) (135) (164)
Closing net book amount FEREmFE 133 591 724
At 31 December 2013 R-B—=5+-A=1+—H
Cost BAR 721 2,987 3,708
Accumulated depreciation 2EE (588) (2,396) (2,984)
Net book amount REFE 133 591 724
Year ended 31 December 2014 #HZ-F—-MNF+=A
=t-ALEE

Opening net book amount FRESFE 133 591 724
Additions B 33 - 33
Disposals e (O] = 4
Depreciation neE (29) (98) (127)
Closing net book amount FREEFE 133 493 626
At 31 December 2014 N-ZB-ME+-A=+-AH
Cost R 750 2,987 3,737
Accumulated depreciation Z:HIE (617) (2,494) (3,111)
Net book amount REHE 133 493 626

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 381 #& 3Rk & Mi &

For the year ended 31 December 2014

Annual Report 2014 —ZF—U4E4EH



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &8 R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2014

(BABEAN AESEINARETIAEMN) BE-_T-NF+-A=t—HILFE

8. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES - GROUP 8. REVWEX-—FKEE

The investment properties are located in the PRC and their net WEYEMNAPE - ZEEEFED
book value are analysed as follows: Hran e
Year ended 31 December 2013 BE—_F—=F+-A=t+—HIEE
Opening net book amount FHAREFE 15,178
Depreciation (Note 30) & (H7£30) (806)
Closing net book amount FRAREFE 14,372
At 31 December 2013 R-ZB—=HF+=-H=+—H
Cost (D% 21,985
Accumulated depreciation REtiE (7,613)
Net book amount AREDFE 14,372
Year ended 31 December 2014 BE-Z—NF+-A=+—HLFE
Opening net book amount FHEREFE 14,372
Transfer to property, plant and EEYE - B R&E (FiEE7)

equipment (Note 7) (6,500)
Depreciation (Note 30) & (7 30) (441)
Closing net book amount FRAREFE 7,431
At 31 December 2014 N—E—NE+—-HA=+—A”
Cost D% 12,042
Accumulated depreciation REE (4,611)
Net book amount AREDFE 7,431
Amounts recognised in profit and loss for investment REZRARKREYERRNSER
properties included: 1z

2014 2013
—E—-mF =%

Rental income (Note 29) YA (F1zE29) 1,797 2,363
Direct operating expenses from EEHSWBARNYIZED

properties that generated rental HELERX

income (441) (806)

1,356 1,557
As at 31 December 2014, the Group had no significant R-ZBE—NF+—_A=+—H ' K&
contractual obligations for future repairs and maintenance of B EGRREDENBBEB LR
the investment properties (2013: nil). BEABABERE(ZE—=F:
') o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &3 & i ==

For the year ended 31 December 2014

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BABEAN MESEINARBTIREN) BE-T-HNF+-_A=tT—HILFE

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES - GROUP (continued)

As at 31 December 2014, the Directors estimated that the fair
value of the investment properties was approximately RMB
49.9 million (2013: RMB 74.1 million) based on the prices in the

active market.

Year ended 31
December 2013

Opening net book amount

Additions

Amortisation (Note 30)

Closing net book amount

At 31 December 2013

Cost

Accumulated amortisation
and impairment

Net book amount

Year ended 31
December 2014

Opening net book amount

Additions

Amortisation (Note 30)

Closing net book amount

At 31 December 2014

Cost

Accumulated amortisation
and impairment

Net book amount

INTANGIBLE ASSETS - GROUP

BE-_ZT—=f
+T-A=+—HLEE
FHEREFAE

RNE

#:54 (PFI5E30)

FARMREHE
R-B-—=%+=-A=t—H
PR

Rt EHE MR E

FREHE

BECR-IF
t=A=+t—-RLEE

FREFE

WNE

3 (fH3E30)
FREEFE
R-—2-ME+=-A=1+—H
A

Ret# i SO E

FRERE

8. REWMX-FKME(E)

R-ZE-—WE+-_A=+—H8 ==
REBEERERMSHNERGTHEE
BEYHARKE4900E T

YES:D)

AV

(Z2—=F: AR®741087T) °

9. HEFEE-F&KE

Software Goodwill Total
B4 G st
131 8,498 8,629
209 - 209
(78) - (78)
262 8,498 8,760

396 16,165 16,561
(134) (7,667) (7,801)
262 8,498 8,760
262 8,498 8,760
21 - 21
(108) - (108)
175 8,498 8,673
417 16,165 16,582
(242) (7,667) (7,909)
175 8,498 8,673
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &8 R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2014

(BABERN FESEINARBTIAEN) BE-_T-NF+-A=t—HLFE

10. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES - COMPANY

(@ Investments in subsidiaries

Unlisted investments, at cost JEEMRE LKA
Capital contribution relating to ER B S A S
share-based payment B2 EE

The capital contribution relating to share-based payment
relates to share options granted by the Company to
employees of subsidiaries undertakings in the Group.
Refer to Note 22 for further details on the Group’s share
options scheme.

The subsidiaries at 31 December 2014 are as follows:

Percentage of
equity interest
Place and date attributable
Name of incorporation Legal status to the Group
AREELRR
£ AR A EEERER BAt
Gold Genesis Development British Virgin Islands Limited liability 100%
Limited (‘Gold Genesis’) ("BVI") company (Directly held)
21 February 2008

Gold Genesis Development BERRRHE AREEAR 100%
Limited ([ Gold Genesis) ([£B#ERES]) (E%EE)

it il
Good Lucky Enterprises BVI Limited liabilfty 100%
Limited (“Good Lucky’) 21 February 2008 company (Directly held)
Good Lucky Enterprises ABRERHE BREMAT 100%
Limited ([ Good Lucky) “EF=E-A-1-H (BB
First Glory Services BVI Limited liability 100%
Limited (‘First Glory’) 16 October 2003 company (Directly held)
First Glory Services Limited HEEEREE BRELA 100%
(TFirst Glory) ZER-ET A (BEHA)

China Oriental Group Company Limited 5y 4 B % B A B A 7]

10. MBERARRE-AQF

@ MHEBARKRE
2014 2013
=F-mFE T =F
311,443 311,443
296,725 291,256
608,168 602,699
AEEEBRESHEHECE
BETHEARNEETHERRE
BHERERR - BEAEH
BREGTEINE—FFHE - 5
2 Mi5E 22 o
R-ZE—WFE+=—A=+—8H
MEBARMT :
Issued
and fully Authorised
paid capital capital  Principal activities
BETRERRA EERE  TEER
US$1 US$50,000  Investment holding
E0 50000%T  REER
USS1 US$50,000  Investment holding
E3 50000%T  REER
US$2 US$50,000  Investment holding
%1 S000%T  REER



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &3 & i ==

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

FIEEBREUARE T LREN)

(Brm B3RS -

10. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES - COMPANY

(continued)

(@ Investments in subsidiaries (continued)

Name

R

Accordpower Investments
Limited (*Accordpower’)

YHRERRAR
(EE1)

Fulhero Investments
Limited (‘Fullhero’)

AERERRAR
()

Hebei Jinxi Iron and Steel
Group Company Limited
(*Jinxi Limited’)

Mt ERREE AR ERAT
([msHE )

Foshan Jin Xi Jin Lan Cold
Rolled Sheet Company
Limited (*Jinxi Jinlan’)

BLERSHRAR
BRAA
([2med))

Origntal Fullhero Leasing Co.,
Ltd. (‘Fullhero Leasing’)

RARERERRAA
([XERE)

Hebel Jinxi Section Steel
Company Limited
(*Jinxi Section Steel’)

ML ERRRER A
(EFER )

Jinxi Hong Kong Trading
Company Limited
(‘HK Trading’)
ERESELIERAR
=Si)

Place and date
of incorporation

AMALBER A H

BVI

30 November 2004
ABEARES
ZEENET-R=1H

BVI
3 May 2005
REGARES
“RTRERA=H

PRC
24 December 1999

HE
—MANE
TZAZfEA

PRC
26 December 2003

P&

-3

tZAZ1/R
PRC
23 September 2005
ke
“ETREAACTER

PRC
30 May 2008

hE
“EZ\FRA=TA

Hong Kong
27 Qctober 2008

%
“FHFHATHE

Percentage of

equity interest

attributable

Legal status to the Group
ARERES

EETEER A
Limited liabilty 100%
company (Directly held)
BREAAT 100%
(BE%HE)

Limited liabilty 100%
company (Directly held)
EREMRA 100%
(BRFR)

Joint stock company 97.6%
with imited fiabilty ~ (Indiirectly held)
ROBREALT 97.6%
(FEHE)

Limited fiabifty 80.28%
company (Indlrectly held)
EREMRA 80.28%
(FEHE)

Limited fiabifty 100%
company (Indlrectly held)
EREMRA 100%
(RlEHE)

Limited liabilty 97.6%
company (Indlrectly held)
EREMRA 97.6%
(REEE)

Limited liabilty 97.6%
company (Indlrectly helo)
EREMRRA 97.6%
(REHE)

For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE-_Z-MF+-_A=T—RHILFE

10. MIBRATRE —KRAT(£E)

(@) MEBRRRE(E)

Issued
and fully
paid capital

Authorised

capital  Principal activities

ERRA
US$50,000

IERH

Investment holoing

ERTRARER
Uss2

ESH B0000%7  RARK

US$2 US$50,000  Investment holding

2ET 50000%€T  KEER

Manufacture and sales
of steel products

RMB226,640,000 RMB228,640,000

ARE
20864000070

ARE
208,640,000

LEREEREED

Manufacture and sales
of steel products

1S$55,180,000  US$55,150,000

5515000057 551500005 AEREEREES

US$65,000,000  US865,000,000  Leasing and financialleasing

5000000 650000005 MERFERE

Manufacture and sales
of steel products

RMB350,000,000  RMB350,000,000

ARH
350,000,0007C

ARE
350,000,000

TEREEREER

HK$38,750,001  HK$80,000,000  Import and export of goods

375000187 80,000000%T EHOE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &8 R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2014

(BABERN FESEINARBTIAEN) BE-_T-NF+-A=t—HLFE

10. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES - COMPANY 10. MBARKRE -—FKAT(E&)

166

(continued)
@ Investments in subsidiaries (continued) @ MWBRAREE (&)
Percentage of
equity interest Issued
Place and date attributable and fully Authorised
Name of incorporation Legal status to the Group paid capital capital  Principal activities
AEERLES

£ AR A EEERE Bt BEARERRE EERE  TEER

Suifenhe City Jinyin Trading PRC Limited liability 97.6% RVB10,000,000  RMB10,000,000  Import and export of
Co,, Ltd. (‘Jinyin Trading”) 24 September 2008 company (Indlrectly helo) goods and technology

GRAmEREAERAR EREFAT 97.6% AR% ARE  EHOEMREE
([2585)) “ZE\ENAZTEA (H&#EE) 10,000,000 10,000,0007

Hebei Jinxi Iron and Steel PRC Limited liability 69.3% RMB50,000,000  RMB50,000,000  Manufacture and sales
Group Zhengda lron 19 December 2008 company (Indlrectly held) of steel products
and Steel Co., Ltd.

(‘Zhengda Iron and Steel’)

MEERREEEEERE P8 BREMAR 69.3% AR% A% EERBE
BRAF “ZEN\E (H&EE) 50,000,0007c  50,000,0007T HiEER
(=34 TZAThA

Tangshan Fengrun PRC Limited liabilty 69.3% RMB5,000,000  RMB5,000,000  Purchase and sale of
QuTong Yuan Trading 22 May 2009 company (Indlrectly held) ferrous metal and coke
Company Limited
(Tong Yuan Trading’)

ELmEERARNE i BREAAT 69.3% AR% AR®  EERELRE
BRAF “ZENE (HE#EE) 5,000,000 5,000,000 RER
([EEHE]) il s

Hebei Jini Boyuan Real PRC Limited liability 58.56%  RMB100,000,000 RMB100,000,000  Development and sales
Estate Co,, Ltd. 17 December 2009 company (Inclrectly held) of real estate
(‘Boyuan Real Estate’)

ML ERBEEE el BREMAR 58.56% AR% ARE  REREE
REARAA “ZENE (HEEE) 100,000,000 1000000007 EHE
([BeEHE]) TZATtA

Clear Precision Limited BV Limfted liabilty 100% US2 US850,000  Investment holding
(“Clear Precision”) 22 July 2010 company (Directly held)

RERRAR EBfRRIE EREFAT 100% X 50000 REARR
(Tl Z3-3F (ERHE)

tA=t=R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 381 #& 3Rk & Mi &

For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE-_Z-MF+-_A=T—RHILFE

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

FIEEBREUARE T LREN)

(BRAEEH -

10. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES - COMPANY

(continued)

(@ Investments in subsidiaries (continued)

Name

R

Bejing Jinxi Investment
Holding Co., Ltd.
(‘Befing Jinxi Investment’)
I REERERRARAR
(HEREERE))

Oriental Evertrust Finance
Leasing Co., Ltd.
(‘Oriental Evertrust’)

RAERERERRAR
(T&AhkE)

Origntal Green Energy-
Saving Environmental
Protection Engineering
Co., Ltd. (‘Oriental Green’)

ROBROARRIE
BRAR(TRAER)

Hebei Jinshun Energy-
Saving Technology
Development Co., Ltd.
(*Jinshun Energy-Saving’)

AR IBESRAS
RRAR (B )

Place and date
of incorporation

AMALBER S

PRC
26 August 2010

hE

“3-%%
NAZ 155

PRC
27 September 2010

i
“E-%f

A=A

PRC
20 October 2010

hE

“3-%%

tA=tH

PRC
17 November 2010

i
“F-%f

t-AttH

Legal status

EETREH

Limited liability
company

BREEAR

Limited fiabilty
company

EREEAA

Limited liability
company

BREEAR

Limited fiabilty
company

BREEAR

Percentage of
equity interest
attributable
to the Group
AEEELES
BAk

97.6%
(Indlrectly helo)

97.6%
(RiRA)

98.20%
(Indlrectly helo)

98.20%
(R&H%)

97.6%
(Indlrectly held)

97.6%
(RirA)

97.6%
(Indlrectly helo)

97.6%
(BEHE)

10. MIBARRE-KRAT (&)

(@)

Issued
and fully
paid capital

BRTRAERE

RMB100,000,000

ARE
100,000,000 7

US8200,000,000

200,000,000
e

RMB100,000,000

AEE
100,000,000 7

RMB100,000,000

ARK
100,000,007

MEARIRE (&)

Authorised
capital

EERK

RMB100,000,000

AEE
100,000,000

US5200,000,000

200,000,000
ESD

RMB100,000,000

AE%

100,000,0007

RMB100,000,000

AER
100,000,007

Annual Report 2014 —ZF—U4E4EH

Principal activities

IEXE

Investment holding

RAZR

Financial leasing and leasing

BEHEREE

Environmental Protection
Engineering

Research and development
on recycling and energy-
saving technology and
other recycling busingss

TR RER ARG
REERRH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &8 R Kz

For the year ended 31 December 2014

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BABIEAN ESEINARETTREN)

10.

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES - COMPANY

(continued)

(@ Investments in subsidiaries (continued)

Name

R

Beiing Jinxi Boyuan
Real Estate Co., Ltd.
(‘Beiing Real Estate)
IRERBRER
ERAR(RE0E])

China Oriental Singapore
Pte. Ltd. (‘China Oriental
Singapore’)

China Oriental Singapore

Pte. Lid. ([China Oriental
Singapore )

Hebe Jinxi Iron and Steel
Group Dafang Heavy
Industry Science and
Technology Co., Limited
("Jinxi Dafang’) (Note (j)

MbERAEEEANET
HRARAT
(TemAs ()

Jini International Trade
Co,, Ltd. (Jinxi
International Trade”)

ERERESERAA
(TEEERES])

Place and date
of incorporation

AMALBAR A H

PRC
18 November 2010

P

“3-%%

t=AtNA

Singapore
29 November 2010

s

“5-%F

+-A=thB

PRC
27 November 2003

b
i e i

PRC

23 March 2011

il

i e

Legal status

HEERER

Limited liability
company

BREEAR

Limited fiability
company

Limited liability
company

Limited liability
company

BREEAR

Percentage of
equity interest
attributable

to the Group
AEERLES
BAk

97.6%
(Indlrectly helo)

97.6%
(REHE)

100%
(Indlrectly helo)

100%
(&HH)

45.75%
(Indlrectly held)

45.75%
(&%)

97.6%
(Inclrectly held)

97.6%
(REHA)

China Oriental Group Company Limited 5y 4 B % B A B A 7]
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10. MIBATRE —ARAT(£&)

(@)

Issued
and fully
paid capital

BRTRAERE

RMB100,000,000

AR%
100,000,000 70

US$10,000,000

10,000,000% 7

RMBY93,098,162

ARE
93,098,162

RMB100,000,000

ARK
100,000,000

MEARIRE (&)

Authorised
capital

EERA

RMB100,000,000

ARE
100,000,000

Not applicable

RMB93,098,162

I\
93,098, 16270

RMB100,000,000

AER
100,000,007

Principal activities

IERE

Development and sales
of real estate

RERHERLE

Trading of iron ore and
related products

EEARDLEBER

Manufacture and sales of
casting products and
equipment maintenance

EERHEREER
i

International trading

BRES



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 381 #& 3Rk & Mi &

For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE-_Z-MF+-_A=T—RHILFE

10.

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BRAEEH -

FIEEBREUARE T LREN)

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES - COMPANY

(continued)

(@ Investments in subsidiaries (continued)

Name

R

Tangshan Fengnan Qu Yun
Da Trading Co., Ltd.
(*Yun Da Trading’)

Bl EREEREARAR
(MEEHg)

Hebei Caofeidian Jinxing
Resource Development
Co., Ltd. (‘Caofeidian
Jinxing’)

Mt ERARRRRRE
ERAR([ERa=a))

Beiing Jinxi LongXiang
Cutture Development
Co., Ltd. (‘LongXiang
Cutture”)

TREmRAUER
BRAA
(¢l

Tianjin Oriental Huitong
Microcrealt Co., Ltd.
(‘Oriental Huitong’)

RERNEREER
ARAT
(TRHER)

Place and date
of incorporation

AMALBER S

PRC
1 Jung 2011

B
“F——&5f-H

PRC
1July 2011

hE

“5-—-%tf-H

PRC
£ May 2012

HE
“E-——ERANA

PRC
29 June 2012

Giled
“E-—ERA-TAR

Legal status

EETREH

Limited liability
company

BREEAR

Limited fiabilty
company

Limited fiabilty
company

BREEAR

Limited liability
company

Percentage of
equity interest
attributable

to the Group
AEEELES
BAk

97.6%
(Indlrectly helo)

97.6%
(RiRA)

97.6%
(Indlrectly helo)

97.6%
(&%)

97.6%
(Indlrectly helo)

97.6%
(BEHE)

97.8%
(Indlrectly helo)

97.8%
(RiRA)

10. MIBRATRE —KRAT(£E)

(@)

Issued

and fully

paid capital
BETRERRA

RMBS5,000,000

ARE
5,000,000

USD34,000,000

34,000,000%70

RMB10,000,000

ARH
10,000,0007C

RMB100,000,000

ARE
100,000,000 7

MEARIRE (&)

Authorised
capital

EERK

RMBS5,000,000

AEE
5,000,000

USD34,000,000

34,000000%7

RMB10,000,000

ARR
10,000,007

RMB100,000,000

AEE
100,000,000

Annual Report 2014 —ZF—U4E4EH

Principal activities

IEXE

Purchase and sale of
steel products

BHERER

Motor vehicle scrap and
crush demolition solution

GHEL LS
E#EENE

Publication

il

Provision of loans

RIER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &8 R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2014

(BABERN FESEINARBTIAEN) BE-_T-NF+-A=t—HLFE

10. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES - COMPANY 10. MIBATRE —ARAT(£&)
(continued)
@ Investments in subsidiaries (continued) @ KBRAIIKE )
Percentage of
equity interest Issued
Place and date attributable and fully Authorised
Name of incorporation Legal status to the Group paid capital capital  Principal activities
AEERLES
£ AMRLLERAH EEERER BAl  EEARARRA EERE  TEXH
Tianjin Jinxi Logistics Co., Ltd. ~ PRC Limited liability 97.6% RVB20,000,000  RMB20,000,000  Provision of agency services
(*Jinxi Logistics”) 31 July 2012 company (Indlrectly helo) for import/export
REEEMRERAA el EREEAT 97.6% NG AR RBERORRIRE
(@) ZE-ZEtA=1-H (FEHE) 20,000,000 20,000,007
Qianxi Xinhaiyuan Trade PRC Limited liability 97.6% RMB2,000,000  RMB2,000,000  Sales of mining machinery
Co., Ltd. (*Xinhaiyuan’) 24 Qctober 2012 company (Inairectly held) accessories
ERERSRAEARAR  1E EREEAT 97.6% NG ARE  HERBRARS
(&858 ZB-CEtACTEA (REHA) 20000007 2,000,007
Tianjin Juli Trade Co., Ltd. PRC Limited liability 976%  RMB100,000,000 RMB100,000,000  Intemational Trading
("Juli Trade”) 25 Qctober 2012 company (Indlrectly helo)
RERNESERAA i BREAR 97.6% ARE A% BR85S
([EMES]) Z2-ZEtACTRA (FEHE) 100,000,0007 100,000,007
Suzhou Jinxi Boyuan PRC Limited liability 58.56%  RMB130,000,000 RMB130,000,000  Development and sales
Real Estate Co., Ltd. 23 January 2013 company (Indlrectly helo) of real estate
(*Suzhou Boyuan')
ENZERERHERE hE EREFAT 58.56% AR® ARE  BHERERHE
ERAA(TEMEE]) ZE-=5-AZ1=H (FEHE) 130,000,007 130,000,000
Beiing Jinxi Boyuan Project PRC Limited liability 97.6% RMB1,000,000  RMB1,000,000  Construction Project
Management Co., Ltd. 12 July 2013 company (Indlrectly held) management
(‘Beiing Boyuan Project
Management’)
IREEREERERERAR R EREFAT 97.6% AR® AR TREREE
([rrEEBEER)) ZE-=5tAtCR (FEHE) 1,000,0007¢ 1,000,00070
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 381 #& 3Rk & Mi &

For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE-_Z-MF+-_A=T—RHILFE

10.

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BABEPN MESBEIRARBETTREN)

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES - COMPANY

(continued)

(@ Investments in subsidiaries (continued)

Place and date
Name of incorporation
£ MR LR A
Well Balanced Global Limited BV
(‘Well Balance”) 2 January 2014
WWel Balanced Global Limted ~~ RE&BREE
([Well Balance ) “5-mE-AZH
Finest Sino International Limited BV
(‘Finest Sino”) 2 January 2014
Finest Sino Intemational Limited - £B#BREE
([Finest SinoJ) “Z2-1F-A-H
XTAL Inc. (*XTAL) United States
27 January 2014
XTAL Inc. (TXTAL) *8
“Z-PE-R=T+A

Oriental Jingyuan Science PRC
Technology (Befing) Co. Ltd. 18 February 2014
(‘Oriental Jingyuan’)

RIRRNETHR(ER)  +E

ERAR(RA&R) ZZ-PmEZATNA
Tian Jin Haingjin International ~~ PRC

Trade Co., Ltd. 20 February 2014

(Tian Jin Haingjin”)
REGHEEREHERAT  hE

(TRE8MHe]) Z3-REZRZTA

Legal status

EETREH

Limited liability
company
BREEAT

Limited liability
company
BRELAT

Limited liability
company
BRELAT

Limited liability

company

EREAAT

Limited fiabilty
company

Percentage of
equity interest
attributable

to the Group
AEEELES
BAk

100%
Directy hel)

100%
(E&HA)

100%
(Indlrectly helo)

100%
(BEHE)

67.1%
(Indlrectly helo)

67.1%
(BEHE)

97.6%
(Indlrectly helo)

97.6%
(REHS)

97.6%
(Indlrectly helo)

97.6%
(R&HH)

10. MIBARRE-KRAT (&)

(@)

Issued

and fully

paid capital
BETRERRA

USS1

1571

USS1

127

US§17,100

17,100%7

RMB24,000,000

ARE
24,000,0007C

RMB100,000,000

I\
100,000,000

MEARIRE (&)

Authorised
capital

EERK

US$50,000

500007

US$50,000

500007

US$2,500

2500%TT

RMB24,000,000

AE#

24,000,0007C

RMB100,000,000

AER
100,000,0007C

Annual Report 2014 —ZF—U4E4EH

Principal activities

IEXE

Investment holding

Technology and import
and export of goods
RiTR gL O

Technology and import
and export of goods

RiREmELD

International trading

171



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &8 R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2014

(BABERN FESEINARBTIAEN) BE-_T-NF+-A=t—HLFE

10. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES - COMPANY 10. MBARKRE -—FKAT(E&)

172

(continued)
@ Investments in subsidiaries (continued) @ KBRAIIKE )
Percentage of
equity interest Issued
Place and date attributable and fully Authorised
Name of incorporation Legal status to the Group paid capital capital  Principal activities
AEERLES
£ AMRLLERAH EEERER BAl  EEARARRA EERE  TEXH
Tian Jin Hengyuanda Coal PRC Limited liability 97.6% RVBO  RMB10,000,000  Wholesale and Retai Trade
Trade Co., Lid. 26 March 2014 company (Indlrectly helo)
(Tian Jin Hengyuanda’)
REEEERREHARAT  1E EREFAT 97.6% AR® A% HERZEES
([R=EgE]) “Z-BEZA=FKA (FEHE) Zr 10,000,000
Tian Jin Haichangsheng PRC Limited liabilty 97.6% RMBO  RMB10,000,000  Wholesale and Retal Trade
Steel Trade Co., Ltd. 26 March 2014 company (Indlrectly held)
(Tian Jin Haichangsheng’)
REBERANBHERAR  hE BREMAR 97.6% NG N e
(TR=8EH]) ZE-MEZA15A (REHA) T 100000007
Tian Jin Longshunxiang PRC Limited liabilty 97.6% RMBO  RMB30,000,000  Environmental Protection
Environmental Protection 26 March 2014 company (Indlrectly held) Engineering
Engineering Co., Ltd.
(Tian Jin Longshunxiang’)
REREMRRIRERA  hE BREAR 97.6% ARE AR®  RRIE
(TRERIEM)) ZE-MEZAZ15A (REHA) BT 300000007
Suzhou Jinxi Boyun Real PRC Limited liability 976%  RMB100,000000 RMB100,000,000  Development and sales
Estate Co.,Ltdl. 25 April 2014 company (Indirectly held) of real estate
(*Suzhou Boyun”)
EM2RmEERERY el EREMAA 97.6% ARE ARE  EHEREREE
BRAR(TEMEE]) “2-MEMAZTEA (REHA) 100,000,007 100,000,007
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 381 #& 3Rk & Mi &

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

FIEEBREUARE T LREN)

(BRAEEH -

10. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES - COMPANY

(continued)

(@ Investments in subsidiaries (continued)

Place and date
Name of incorporation
28 MR LR A

Qianxi Xian Dafang Pengcheng ~ PRC

Science and Technology 21 July 2014
Co., Ltd. (‘Dafang Pengcheng’)
(Note (j)

BEZATRENEERAT  E
(i3 “I-F
(MEEQ) tB=1-H

Hebei Jinxi Iron and PRC
Steal Group Special Steel 16 October 2014
Go.Ltd. (‘Jinxi Special Steel’)

Epla=di =) i
KHERAR ZE-METATAR
([ k)

Legal status

EETRER
Limited iabiity

company

EREEAA

Limited liability
company

BREEAR

Percentage of
equity interest
attributable

to the Group
AEEELES
BAk

45.75%

(Indlrectly helo)

15.75%
(R&H%)

97.6%
(Indlrectly held)

97.6%
(BEHE)

For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE-_Z-MF+-_A=T—RHILFE

10. MIBRATRE —KRAT(£E)

(@) MEBRRRE(E)

Issued
and fully Authorised
paid capital capital
BETRERRA EERE
RMB6,000,000  RMB6,000,000
AR ARE
6,000,000 6,000,007

RMB1,000,000,000 RMB1,000,000,000

ARH ARR
1,000,000,0007 1,000,000,0007C

Annual Report 2014 —F—PY4E4EH

Principal activities
IERK
Development of energy

saving technology
and freight transport

RREERIREE

Manufacture and sales
of steel products

LERHERAED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &8 R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2014

(BABERN FESEINARBTIAEN) BE-_T-NF+-A=t—HLFE

10. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES - COMPANY
(continued)

(@ Investments in subsidiaries (continued)

The English name of certain companies referred in this
financial statements represent management’s best effort
at translating the Chinese names of these companies as
no English names have been registered.

(i) Although the equity holdings of the Group in Jinxi
Dafang and Dafang Pengcheng is below 51%,
the Directors are of the review that the Group has
control over Jinxi Dafang and Dafang Pengcheng
given that majority of the directors are appointed
by the Group by virtue of the article of association.

(o)  Material non-controlling interests
As at and for the year ended 31 December 2014, there

were no significant non-controlling interests of the
subsidiaries in the Group.

China Oriental Group Company Limited 5y 4 B % B A B A 7]

10. MIBATRE —ARAT(£&)

MEARIRE (&)

AP BB|KRFLE T RARHR
XEBREEERERET XA
BEEMS  WHHERZER
A SR E D R A o

) BEAKERFAERAKRS
KR TT B2 6 i R R
51%  EEERE - EN
RENEZHARERE
ARERANRE A%
N2 AT RATT R
BIEHIRE -

BRI HI R S
REBE_Z—NF+ A

=t—HLEFE  AEENH
B AR BB ARG AR



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &3 & i ==

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2014

(BABEAN MESEINARBTIREN) BE-T-HNF+-_A=tT—HILFE

11.

LOANS TO SUBSIDIARIES - COMPANY

Non-current IERED

Loans to subsidiaries MIEBARIERR
Current ViE)

Loans to subsidiaries B AR ER
Total 45T

The loans to subsidiaries form part of the Company’s net
investment in the PRC subsidiaries and included the follows:

(@ Loans to Jinxi Limited amounting to US$ 106.7 million
(equivalent to RMB 652.9 million) which are unsecured,
have a repayment term of 20 years, and bear interest at
a rate of 8% per annum;

(o) Loans to Jinxi Jinlan amounting to US$ 4.6 million
(equivalent to RMB 27.9 million) which are unsecured,
have a repayment term of 7 years, and bear interest at a
rate of 7% per annum; and

() The rest of the non-current loans to subsidiaries
amounting to RMB 1,849.0 million which are unsecured,
interest-free and with no fixed terms of repayment until
the subsidiaries are in the position to repay, and current
loans to subsidiaries which are receivable on demand
within one year.

All the loans to subsidiaries are eliminated at upon
consolidation and there was no significant restriction as at 31
December 2014.

As at 31 December 2014, there was no significant credit risk
arising from loans to subsidiaries.

11.

MEARER AT

2014 2013

—B-mE  —F-=F

2,529,807 4,231,587

1,710,180 =

4,239,987 4,231,587

B B8 X B & SR A AN 1) B 1A R B BB
NEREFEN D BEATS
I8

@ ¥ EMmMSIIEMR1.067EET
(FBERARE6.5298 L) NE
RABEEF  BERHA20FK
R8BMFEFEREE

b) HERAEEEH 460 &5 (18
ENRARB2708T)NE
R REER  EFXHMKTER
BT%WERERFE &

© EBEEWEBARLEFHEERN Z
FHNBARRENIFERDE
RERBARK 1849 R T RE
R 2B REETEERY
&% 5 5B A R RN RS
EFAR—FRREREM -

HHBADREOFEERINA
B H B AR =T —mE+= A
=+ AEMEARS -

R-ZZT—NFE+=—A=+—8 " KB
AERLBELBREERR

/A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &8 R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2014

(BABERN FESEINARBTIAEN) BE-T-NF+-A=t—HILFE

12. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY - GROUP 12, ©RTIA(RER) - FKERER

AND COMPANY

The Group

Gl

FEME

Available-for-sale

Loans and financial
receivables assets Total
BN MRHE
R SREE @t
Assets as per consolidated balance sheet AHEEEBRITNEE
As at 31 December 2014 RZE-ME+-A=1-H
Available-for-sale financial assets (Note 15) AR ESRARE (M 15) - 121,243 121,243
Trade and notes receivables (Note 17) ENESEFRER (K 17) 4,870,688 = 4,870,688
Deposits and other receivables (Note 18) e REMEKER (M 18) 697,731 - 697,731
Amounts dug from related parties (Note 42(c)) FE U BRE 2R (FE 42(c)) 178,743 - 178,743
Loan receivables (Note 19) S EFR (FizE19) 290,000 = 290,000
Long-term bank deposits due —FREE 2 KRR (15 20)
within one year (Note 20) 52,000 - 52,000
Restricted bank balances (Note 20) FIRHIRITE (HiEE20) 1,626,978 - 1,626,978
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 20) Be LBeZEN (f20) 849,063 - 849,063
Total @t 8,565,203 121,243 8,686,446
As at 31 December 2013 R_E—=F+-A=+-H
Available-for-sale financial assets (Note 15) AftHELREE (i 15) - 149,701 149,701
Trade and notes receivables (Note 17) BB SRR ER (HF17) 4,559,856 = 4,559,856
Deposits and other receivables (Note 18) & REMEIKE (FfE18) 497,508 = 497,508
Amounts due from related parties (Note 42(c)) eI R 7 708 (M 42(0)) 4,996 - 4996
Loan receivables (Note 19) EWE (FzE19) 363,232 - 363,232
Long-term bank deposits (Note 20) RER{TER (H3E20) 52,000 - 52,000
Restricted bank balances (Note 20) RIB IR (M3 20) 1,616,022 = 1,616,022
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 20) ReRASEEN (HzE20) 968,132 - 968,132
Total it 8,061,746 149,701 8,211,447
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 4 Bf &3 & iz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

12. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY - GROUP 12,

AND COMPANY (continued)

The Group (continued)

Liabilities as per consolidated balance sheet
As at 31 December 2014

Trade payables (Note 23)

QOther payables (Note 24)

Borrowings (Note 25)

Other long-term payables

Amounts due to related parties (Note 42(c))
Derivative financial instruments

Total

As at 31 December 2013

Trade payables (Note 23)

Other payables (Note 24)

Borrowings (Note 25)

Other long-term payables

Amounts due to related parties (Note 42(c))

Total

(BABEAN  MESBEIRARBETTREN)

For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE_Z-MF+-_A=T—RHILFE

T A (RER) - FAKERERQ

7 (&)
REEE (&)
Financial liabilities Financial
measured at liabilities
fair value through measured at
profitorloss  amortised cost Total
BANER biig £
STERHEEHA BAEZ
BREVERER tRERE Feh
AREESRRMTNER
RZB-ME+=A=+-H
fEE SR (13 23) - 2,719,253 2,719,253
H i ETERST (Bt 24) - 390,205 390,205
ek (M7 25) - 8,169,271 8,169,271
H iR EEA - 26,129 26,129
JEfS AR 7 70R (MRt 42(0)) - 351,715 351,715
fTESETA 4,689 - 4,689
a5t 4,689 11,656,573 11,661,262
R-Z-=5+-A=t-H
FEft B A% (R 23) - 3,621,390 3,521,390
E bR ARER (M 24) - 460,437 460,437
ek (HiFE25) = 7,719,459 7,719,459
H it R IR - 26,129 26,129
JEIS R 7 70R (MRt 42(0)) = 270979 270979
a5t = 11,998,394 11,998,394

Annual Report 2014 —ZF—U4E4EH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &8 R Kz

For the year ended 31 December 2014
BEZ-MFT-_A=1t—HLLEFE

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BABIEAN ESEINARETTRERN)

12. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY - GROUP 12. @RI A (RER) - FKERER

AND COMPANY (continued)

8(#&)

The Company ARAHE
Available-
Loans and for-sale
receivables Financial assets Total
ERR AHEE
R SREE @t
Assets as per company ARBEEBRITEE

balance sheet
As at 31 December 2014 R-E-—NE+-A=+—H
Avallable-for-sale financial N E S RARE (i 15)

assets (Note 15) - 11,638 11,638
Trade and notes receivables (Note 17) BB BERF R 21 (Fiz17) 2,052,837 - 2,052,837
Deposits and other receivables %e MEMREKERR

(Note 18) (FfizE18) 1,294 - 1,204
Restricted bank balances (Note 20) X3R4 84 (PR 20) 24,755 - 24,755
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 20) RBeRRESEY (HF20) 117,062 - 117,062
Total =t 2,195,948 11,638 2,207,586
As at 31 December 2013 R-E—=F+-F=1—H
Avallable-for-sale financial N E S BARE (i 15)

assets (Note 15) - 40,096 40,096
Trade and notes receivables (Note 17) BB ST M ZE (Fiz17) 2,183,580 - 2,183,580
Deposits and other receivables e REM KR (i3 18)

(Note 18) 1292 - 1,202
Restricted bank balances (Note 20) SR HIRIT AR (Fi3E20) 39,325 = 39,325
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 20) R KRB SEED (H:E20) 41,433 - 41,433
Total st 2,265,630 40,096 2,305,726
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2014

(BABEAN MESBINARBTIREN) BE-T-HNF+-_A=tT—HILEFE

12.

13.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY - GROUP 12

AND COMPANY (continued)

The Company (continued)

Liabilities as per company balance sheet ATEEAERMTAR

As at 31 December 2014 RZE—NFE+=A=+—H

Trade payables (Note 23) FEFTE 5 BR3% (FifeE 23)

Borrowings (Note 25) fa R (FisE 25)

Total Bt

As at 31 December 2013 R-E—=F+-A=+—H

Trade payables (Note 23) JERTE SR (FiiFE23)

Borrowings (Note 25) ek (HizE25)

Total FeH

CREDIT QUALITY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS 13.

The credit quality of financial assets that are neither past due
nor impaired can be assessed by types of the financial assets
and by reference to historical information about counterparty
default rates. The Group categorised the trade, notes
receivables and loan receivables as follows:

o Group 1 — Bank acceptance notes
° Group 2 — Trade, notes receivables and loan receivables

due from customers with no defaults in the past

o Group 3 — Trade, notes receivables and loan receivables
due from customers with some defaults in the past

ETRTA(RER) - FAKERERQ
8 (#&)

FAT (&)

Financial liabilities
measured at
amortised cost
RBERATE
ZERaRE

78,752
4,884,744

4,963,496

9,211
4,880,782

4,889,993

TRMEENEERR

HABHIORBRENEREENE
EAARIEEREERR - W2E
BB HER LRI E L ERBEITRT
o ARBEREEE SRR  BRE
BERERERDEBNT

o F—H-IRITAAEE

e FHE-EUWEFEEXRGIEE
MEFHEWE SR - B
EERERE

e F=H-RUATHASBEHER

RLEREY R P R 5 BR AR
eI N R E 5K
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2014

(BRBEAN AESEINARBTIAEN) BE-_TNF+-A=t—HLFE

13. CREDIT QUALITY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS (continued)

Trade, notes receivables and loan receivables

Group 1 F—4F
Group 2 S |
Group 3 FE=48

The credit quality of ‘Available-for-sale financial assets’,
‘Deposits and other receivables’ and ‘Amounts due from
related parties’ of the Group is disclosed in Notes 15, 18 and

42(c) respectively.

The Group categorises cash in banks as follows:

° Group 1 — Major international banks

o Group 2 — Listed banks in the PRC

o Group 3 — Subsidiary of listed banks and other banks in

the PRC

The Directors considered the credit risks in respect of cash in
banks and bank deposits with financial institution are relatively
minimum as each counter party either bears a high credit rating

or is state-owned bank and large local banks in the PRC.

Cash in banks and bank deposits

13. SRMEENFERR(E)

FEWE ZIRK - B RE R EWER

2014 2013
—E-NF —E—=%F
3,909,346 3,449,103

851,342 1,473,986
400,000 =
5,160,688 4,923,089

REB[AJHEESHEE]  [Re
K EH Ath FEUS AR 3R ] & [ e U BAESE 75 3K
H|WEERRD RIRKMEE15 - 18 K%
42(c) #: 55 o

AREBEREBITRESBAOT ¢

s EH-TEERET

o  FE_H-PELEMRT

s F-R-PELEWRITHEH
BREMIRTT

BHRENBREEREFEH AT
BIRTTRPBEEMARIRTT  HEF
RRFHREBEBNRITRE LR

THEHREERRRE -

RITRE RRITHER

Group Company
rEEH RAF

2014 2013 2014 2013
—BE-mEFE —_T—=F ZB-OF _—T—=F
Group 1 £—48 180,365 216,737 47,639 43,001
Group 2 E_fE 2,136,727 2,347,753 94,128 37,754
Group 3 F=4 195,781 65,332 - -
2,512,873 2,629,822 141,767 80,755
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2014

(BABEAN MESBINARBTIREN) BE-T-HNF+-_A=tT—HILEFE

14. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT AND HELD

FOR SALE - GROUP

Properties under development comprise:  ZEARYEEIE ¢

— Construction costs — BN

— Land use rights — T HOfF A

— Interests capitalised —BEARMEFE
Completed properties held for sale FHEHEE TR =

The properties under development and held for sale are all
located in the PRC. The related land use rights are on lease of
40 to 70 years.

For the year ended 31 December 2014, borrowing costs
amounted to approximately RMB 54 million (2013: RMB 28
million) were capitalised into the cost of properties under
development at an annual average capitalisation rate of 9.34%
(20183: 9.46%) approximately.

Properties under development comprised:  ZEEFYEELE -
Expected to be completed and TEEIR 12E A AT

available for sale within 12 months KAt e

Expected to be completed and available TEERE A 12 8 B BAR
for sale after more than 12 months TLNAHHE

14. BRORFEHEYE -FEE

2014 2013
=F-mFE  —F-=F
454,356 290,061
656,869 428,477
72,108 31,282
1,183,333 749,820
134,630 130,748
1,317,963 880,568

ERPRFELENYEGLR S
o MR L E BEHIRA0ET0
f'f o

HE-_ZT-—MF+-_A=+—HLHF
B EERAHNARES54008T (=
T—=F: AR¥2,800&T) EIEF
BT ERELEEL9.34% (=T —=
F : 9.46%) BN AERFYFERIK
$ °
2014 2013
—ZE—F —ET—=F

258,203 323,762
925,130 426,058
1,183,333 749,820
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &8 R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BABIEAN ESEINARETTRERN)

For the year ended 31 December 2014

HE-Z-—NF+_A=+—HIFE

15. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS - 15.

GROUP AND COMPANY

The Group

Unlisted equity interests (a) JE ETHEZS (a)
Less: provision for impairment B RE R
Net AE

Listed equity interests (b) TREZ (b)

Add: fair value losses previously
debited to equity (Note 22)
Add: fair value gains credited to

i SERTHIRR R AR

EEEE (fizE22)

o EFARmZ AREER

equity (Note 22) Weas (FE22)
Less: disposal A e
Less: provision for impairment B ORERE
Net FE
Total “BEt

(@)

The Group’s unlisted equity interests mainly comprised
an investment amounted to RMB 188 million in a 51%
equity interest in Qianxi County Jinjin Mine Co., Ltd.
(“dinjin Mine”), and an investment amounted to RMB
95 million in a 10% equity interest in Caofeidian Port
Company Limited. The investee companies are both
operating in the PRC.

As the above investments do not have any quoted
market price in an active market, the range of reasonable
fair value estimate is so significant and the probabilities
of the various estimates cannot be reasonably
assessed, the Directors are of the opinion that their fair
values cannot be reliably measured. Therefore, these
investments are stated at cost less impairment, if any.

China Oriental Group Company Limited B3y 4 F % B A PR A 7

IHHESRHEE -FAKEARELD
-

AEE
2014 2013
—E—F —E—=F
297,705 297,705
(188,100) (188,100)
109,605 109,605
40,096 47,675
= 3,892
20,708 12,374
(49,166) =
= (23,845)
11,638 40,096
121,243 149,701

@ AEBENFELTESETZSRE
UARA88ETTIHERGE
AgEeEEFRAR(EE
) B51% R RIAARE
9,500 B L EMSE ILE LA
BOBRDAIA10%HE ° %
ZRICEN R BTN AIE o

R LR E R E R TSI &
EATEHRE AAEERE
EERtEEEEER  mMY&
BEEETE A e A S BB
Al WEERREQAEE
BOAAISERTE - Bt ZFR
BERARERETIR(ANE) -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & #fBf #& 3 & iz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2014

(BABEFN - MESREINARETTREM

15. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS -
GROUP AND COMPANY (continued)

The Group (continued)

(@)

(continued)

Regarding the investment in Jinjin Mine, the major asset
of Jinjin Mine is the unlicensed mining rights of an iron
mine in Qianxi County. Since December 2008, Jinxi
Limited, a subsidiary of the Group holding the 51%
equity interest in Jinjin Mine, entered into cooperation
agreements (the “Cooperation Agreements”) with other
parties, pursuant to which Jinxi Limited leased the mining
rights to the contracting parties and conveyed to the
contracting parties all the voting rights on the financial
and operating policies of Jinjin Mine. The contracting
parties were exclusively entitled to the profit or loss and net
assets accumulated during the lease periods in return for
paying lease fees to Jinxi Limited. The contracting parties
were also responsible for preserving and increasing the
value of the net assets of Jinjin Mine at the end of lease
periods. The lease fees were determined based on the local
iron powder market price and are subject to adjustments
quarterly. In the opinion of the Directors, the Group is not
able to exercise any significant influence on Jinjin Mine
and therefore the investment in Jinjin Mine has been
recognised as available-for-sale financial assets.

The investment in Jinjin Mine has been fully provided for
impairment by the Directors given that the collectability
of the future lease fee income is uncertain, and the
recoverability of investment from the mining rights is also
uncertain as the licence of mining rights is unlikely to be
obtained.

HE-T—WE+-_A=1+—HLFE

IHHESRHEE -FAKEARERQ
8 (#&)

FEM(E)

(@)

(%)

RRREEBEENREMS @ 2
CEXNEEZEE/NEBAHG
— B &1 % 79 R B B R R R
B-B-TTN\F+_AK-
FAERTBWESINRENARE
[ B B8 1 B) 3 P B E
A AtEmE (T AEmE]
MBuL - RAEME AL HAE
REEMETAONTERES
BENPEREERRNME
KR BT REERHER
BREARaMABERE
EESRME - 1F A (AR 70 8 48 S
HEZRMNE®H - GO HTE
B TH S HJE B AR 45 3B 0
REBENEERE - 2FHE
EERNREEHEAN TS
BERETYRFEETAE-
E=ZRR AEEX TR
CBEETEREMEATE
- ERRNEEBRENRE
RARLESREE -

Eum HREEERNEAT
BB - B S RIEBERE A I
(Bl 15 IR R SRR AR AT Al FE SRR 22
MARREA - MEFECRSIRE
B EFHR R FR AR o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &8 R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2014

(BRBEAN AESEINARBTIAEN) BE-_TNF+-A=t—HLFE

15. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS - 15.

GROUP AND COMPANY (continued)
The Group (continued)

(b) The Group’s listed equity interest comprised an
investment in 600,000,000 ordinary shares, representing
approximately 4.47% shareholding, of Asia Energy
Logistics Group Limited, a company listed on the main
board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group
disposed of 456,780,000 ordinary shares, represent
76.13% of the original 4.47% shareholdings, resulted in
a gain of RMB 28 million (Note 28).

The fair value of the listed equity interest was determined
on the basis of its quoted market prices at the balance

sheet date.
The Company
Listed equity interest ks
Add: fair value losses previously 0 SeRTEF AR
credited to equity Z AR EEEE
Add: fair value gains credited m:stARSZAR
to equity EERKE
Less: disposal e
Less: impairment provision R RERE
Net FE

184 China Oriental Group Company Limited B3y 4 F % B A PR A 7

IHHESRHEE -FAKEARELD
8(#&)

&M (E)

(b)

AEENETHEZBERE
600,000,000 % 3 i@ % 14 &8
MR mEB AR QA (—
MEBBHERHFMERAA]
TR ETHRE) H4.47%R
- HE-_T—NMF+=A
=t+—HLFER  AEEH
& 456,780,000 & EiBA% - (54
84.47% RHE 2 76.18% * EHE
AR 2,8008 7T AUk 2 (M 5
28) o

thEEAAREEIDREER
+ =

2014 2013
—E-MmEF —E-=fF
40,096 47,675

- 3,892

20,708 12,374
(49,166) -

- (23,845)

11,638 40,096
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B Ot I ERR M

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2014

(BABEAN MESBINARBTIREN) BE-T-HNF+-_A=tT—HILEFE

INVENTORIES - GROUP

Raw materials and materials in-transit
Work-in-progress R
Finished goods 2URK B

As at 31 December 2014, inventories with a net book value
of RMB 112 million (2013: RMB 152 million) were pledged as
security for the Group’s notes payable (Note 23), and RMB 17
million (2013: RMB 41 million) were withheld by and in custody
of a court (Note 24).

As at 31 December 2014, no inventories (2013: RMB 131
million) were pledged as security for the Group’s bank
borrowings (Note 25).

The cost of inventories recognised in cost of sales for the year
ended 31 December 2014 amounted to RMB 26,940 million
(2018: RMB 31,415 million).

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group recognised
a loss of RMB 60 million (2013: RMB 28 million), in respect
of the write-down of inventories to their net realisable values
(Note 30).

RET ¥ A SN R

16. FE—F5KH

2014 2013
—F-mE  ZT=F
1,975,497 2,304,221
251,923 378,046
941,833 1,007,700
3,169,253 3,689,967

RZZE—MFE+=_A=+—H "  FHE
FEARB112BT(ZE—=4F:
ARMA2ET) NEEE RAEE
B E T R EHE IR (FI7E23) RAR
BA17008 T (ZT—=F: AR¥
41008 7T) AR N REE (M
24) o

R-ZE—WE+_A=+—8 "

EEE(ZE—=F: ARB131E
E)EZX%@E’J%«HP SRYERAR (B 5E
25) °

BHE_T—MNF+-_A=+—HItF
E REERATRBEROTER RS
ARME260.40BT(ZE—=F: A
R#3141587T) o

HE-_Z-—MFE+-_A=+—HLF
B AEBEEERAREG,000E T
—T—=%: AR¥280087T)5&
FAFEMRZHZRFENER
(FF7E30) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &8 R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2014

(BABIEAN ESEINARETTRERN)

HE-Z—WE+-A=1+—HLEFE

17. TRADE AND NOTES RECEIVABLES - GROUP AND 17.

COMPANY

The Group

Trade receivables JEME FBRFR
Long-term trade receivables RHEWE 5 IR
— current portion — mENER D
Less: impairment provision for W FEINE SRR
trade receivables (Note 30) B R HE (YR 30)
Trade receivables — net JEWE 5 BRI — R
Notes receivable e E I
Total of trade and notes receivables, FEUE Z R A M E R

net of provision

fRE - MRRBHE

The long-term trade receivables-current portion represents
the receivables for the provision of construction services in the
previous years, and bear interest at a rate of 6.3% per annum.
As at 31 December 2014, the receivables were overdue but
not impaired since they were fully secured by the pledge of
property, plant and equipment of the customer.

The notes receivable are all bank acceptance notes. The
settlement of the notes receivable were guaranteed by banks
with maturity dates within six months and the credit risks of
the notes receivable are considered low. As at 31 December
2014, approximately RMB 5 million (2013: RMB 219 million)
and RMB 799 million (2013: RMB 1,079 million) were pledged
as security for the Group’s notes payable (Note 23) and
borrowings (Note 25) respectively, and RMB 10 million was
withheld by and in custody of a court in relation to lawsuit of
the Group.

The fair values of trade and notes receivables approximated
their carrying amounts as at the balance sheet date, as the
impact of discounting is not significant.

China Oriental Group Company Limited 23 J7 5 [ 2 A FR 2 7]

BREZRAREE - AKERE

A

AEE

2014 2013

—E—F —F—=F

574,875 685,005

400,000 435,555

(13,533) (9,807)

961,342 1,110,753

3,909,346 3,449,103

4,870,688 4,559,856
REEUE 5 8R5% — mEhEn B2 Al

FERBTIRERS 2 EBKFIE - Wik
FHNEE.3%TE - RZE—MF+=
B=+—8 EBREZFEEEERR
EHRNERARFOYE  BEREE
TERREIEA -

FERZEH BIIRTTEALES - BUE
BRIEHBESEALAN - HEEH
BITERREERRHER AR - K=
T—NE+-—A=+—H8 HARE
5008 (ZE—=%F : ARK 2198
TL)RARET7TQET(ZE—=%F:
ARKE10.7918T) p Rl AR AAREH
HOFE =% (M97E 23) R fE 5K (FizE25)
VR AR 1,000 8 Tt AN E @ /)
—IEEF AR AR N KB -

AFRZETEN  BRE SRR
SEREEENA A EBEOUERE
B-
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2014

(BABEAN MESBINARBTIREN) BE-T-HNF+-_A=tT—HILEFE

17. TRADE AND NOTES RECEIVABLES - GROUP AND

COMPANY (continued)
The Group (continued)

Except for the long-term trade receivables — current portion,
the credit policy usually adopted by the Group for the sales of
products to customers is to deliver goods either upon receipt
in cash or upon receipt of bank acceptance notes with the
maturity dates within six months.

As at 31 December 2014 and 2013, the ageing analysis of the
gross amount of trade and notes receivables was as follows:

Within 3 months 3EAR
4-6 months 4ZE6EA
7-12 months 7E=1218 A
Over 1 year —FE

As at 31 December 2014, trade receivables amounting to RMB
151 million (2013: RMB 403 million) were secured by letters of
credit issued by third party customers and those amounting to
RMB 479 million (2013: RMB 436 million) were secured by the
pledge of property, plant and equipment of customers.

As at 31 December 2014, trade receivables of RMB 498 million
(2013: RMB 147 million) were past due, of which amounting
to RMB 14 million (2013: RMB 10 million) were fully impaired.
The remaining balances of these receivables were past due but
not impaired which related to a number of customers with no
recent history of default or were fully secured by the pledge of
property, plant and equipment of customers.

17.

BREZRAREE - AKERAE
DR (&)

FEM(E)

B RHIEWE 2 8RR —RB DI -
AEEHITHEMHEEERE B
BRPWEIR &2 HI B 77N E A A
AHERITE L ERBRATPRMNEY)

RZE—NFEER—_FT—=F+_A1
=+—H8  ERESERNEZEEE
BRI D ATLAT :

2014 2013
—EF-mFE  —ZT=F
3,350,567 2,329,917
1,066,262 1,754,991
53,859 49,200
413,533 435,555
4,884,221 4,569,663

RZZT—NFE+=RA=1+—8 "  U%E
SHFEFAAMERABERENE
WESERBAREBISIEL(ZE
—=F: ARB403EL) MUE
FRME  BEREEERBNE
WESERBAREITIET(ZZ
—=F: AR¥4361T) °

R-F-—MFE+-_A=+—H" A
R¥E498EBT(ZF—=F: AR¥
1478 WEKE SRR B -
Eh ARE1 4008 (ZF—=
AR 1,00087T) B E SRR E
2RRE - ZFRURRNBEC A
HMERIRIE - P M ZEZIILE1E
REFELENETFHAHEFPNTE -
55 e s et iR A o
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BABIEAN ESEINARETTRERN)

COMPANY (continued)

The Group (continued)

17. TRADE AND NOTES RECEIVABLES - GROUP AND

The ageing analysis of these trade receivables was as follows:

Within 3 months
Over 1 year

3EAMA

—FLAE

The gross amounts of the Group’s trade and notes receivables

are denominated in the following currencies:

RMB
us$

AR
XL

Movements on the Group’s allowance for impairment of trade

receivables are as follow:

At 1 January
Provision for impairment (Note 30)

At 31 December

The Company

Trade receivables from third parties
Trade receivables from subsidiaries

n—A—H
RE R (Fi5E30)

R+=—A=+—8

P E =TT 8 BIRK

17.

FEKHIE AR E HEBRR

China Oriental Group Company Limited B3y 4 F % B A PR A 7

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &8 R Kz

For the year ended 31 December 2014
BEZ-MFT-_A=1t—HLLEFE

ERESRARREE - FAKERE

DR (&)

&M (E)

ZERWE ZRAOREDITAT

2014 2013
—F-mE  —ZF-=F
84,578 146,564
413,533 -
498,111 146,564

AREBRKE SRR EZIERNEETS

ATIINERE BN

2014 2013
—F-mE  ZFT=F
4,725,812 4,161,223

158,409 408,440
4,884,221 4,569,663

AEEELE 5 ESREREET

T

2014 2013
=F-mFE  —F-=F
9,807 3,069
3,726 6,738
13,533 9,807

ZNNC
2014 2013
—B-mFE —E-=F
42,627 72,473
2,010,210 2,111,107
2,052,837 2,183,580
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2014

(BABEAN MESBINARBTIREN) BE-T-HNF+-_A=tT—HILEFE

18. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES - GROUP AND COMPANY

18. AMNRIE - RERHEtLEWER -

The Group

Non-current

Prepayments for purchase of property,
plant and equipment (a)

Deposits and other receivables

Less: impairment provision

Current

Prepayments for purchase of inventories (b)
Deposits and other receivables

Prepaid expenses (c)

Less: impairment provision

FERE

HFRN IR ()
B K E A YRR
R ERHE

RE

BEFENTERNFIA ()

me A REKERR
BNEA(C)
R ERHE

The fair values of prepayments, deposits and other receivables

REBEAAT
AEHE
2014 2013
—E—FE —T—=4F
234,235 234,235
33,000 =
(234,235) (234,235)
33,000 =
1,058,033 1,330,241
697,731 497,508
216,066 13,918
(57,010) (41,897)
1,914,820 1,799,770
1,947,820 1,799,770

RIFBRFETEXR  REER - B

were within level 2 of the fair value hierarchy and approximated
their carrying amounts as at the balance sheet date, as the
impact of discounting is not significant.

IR e REMRBERRO AR (E
BEEAABEERE AR - AU
HERME(E
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended 31 December 2014

(BRBEAN AESEINARETIREN) BE-_T-NF+-_A=t—HLFE

18. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES - GROUP AND COMPANY (continued)

The Group (continued)

Details of certain prepayment, deposits and other receivables

are set out below:

(@)

The prepayments for purchase of property, plant and
equipment represented an outstanding debt receivable
from Tangshan Fengrun Hengfeng Iron and Steel
Company Limited (“Hengfeng Iron and Steel”), a third
party, amounting to approximately RMB 234 million
(2013: RMB 234 million) as at 31 December 2014. Back
in November 2011 to December 2012, Zhengda Iron and
Steel, a subsidiary of the Company, and Hengfeng Iron
and Steel entered into various letters of intent, pursuant
to which the Group had the intention to acquire part of
the assets for steel production from Hengfeng Iron and
Steel, and the outstanding debt receivable would form
part of the consideration for the intended acquisition.
On 29 November 2013, Zhengda Iron and Steel and
Hengfeng Iron and Steel entered into the subject
purchase and sale agreement at a consideration of
approximately RMB 223 million. The consideration was
determined at arm’s length negotiations with reference
to the appraised net value of the assets to be acquired.
The remaining balance of the prepayments amounting
to RMB 234 million were fully provided for impairment
by the Directors of the Company as at 31 December
2013 and 31 December 2014 given that Hengfeng Iron
and Steel was in significant financial difficulty and had
defaulted the payment of the remaining balance.

Among the prepayments for purchasing of inventories at
31 December 2014, RMB 401 million were overdue but
not impaired, of which RMB 250 million were fully secured
by the pledge of property, plant and equipment of the
suppliers. For the remaining RMB 151 million, the Group
had filed lawsuits against the suppliers and had been
granted the first right to receive the frozen assets of the
suppliers. Based on historical experiences in similar cases
and after taking into consideration of the legal advice,
the Directors are of the view that the Group has a good
chance of winning the case and therefore no provision for
impairment of the prepayments has been made.
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18. ANRIE - RERHEtEUERN -

KEBREDTR ()
EM(E)
FTHEMNFR - 2e REMRIRR

HRFIBESIINT -

(@

RZE—NF+=—A=+—H -
BEYZE - KEREBEHTENK
TH A FEWUE LT 2 [ 12 2 5l
BRAR([EE2ME ) (FE=H)
KR EREREBHARE2.34
Brn(ZE—=F: AR¥234
Brr) e BPE—_T——F+—
AEZZT——F+-AHHE ' &~
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & #fBf #& 3 & iz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2014

(BABEAN  MESBEIRARBETTREN)

18. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES - GROUP AND COMPANY (continued)

The Group (continued)

(©)

The prepaid expenses at 31 December 2014 mainly
included the prepayment of rental fees by Jinxi Special
Steel, a subsidiary of the Group, amounting to RMB 187
million for the lease of property, plant and equipment for
year 2015.

Pursuant to various agreements entered into in 2011,
Jinxi Limited, a subsidiary of the Company, paid
considerations totalling approximately RMB 228 million
and obtained 51% equity interests in each of five
companies and the mining rights of Qianxi Gaojiadian
Iron Mine (the “Gaojiadian Mining Rights”). In January
2011, pursuant to a cooperation agreement entered into
with a third-party individual (the “Consignee”), from 1
March 2011 to 28 February 2017 (the “Grant Period”),
Jinxi Limited conveyed to the Consignee all the voting
rights relating to the financial and operating policies of
the five companies, Tangshan Jinxi Mining Company
Limited (“Tangshan Jinxi Mining”), another subsidiary
of the Company, together with the Gaojiadian Mining
Rights. The Consignee was exclusively entitled to the
profit and net assets accumulated by the six companies
and the Gaaojiadian Mining Rights during the Grant
Period. In return, the Consignee paid cash consideration
of RMB 33 million annually during the Grant Period and
a deposit of RMB 10 million which would offset the last
payment in 2017. In the opinion of the Directors, the
Group had effectively disposed of its equity interests in
the six companies and the mining rights of Gaojiadian
in return for a long-term lease fee receivable from the
Consignee. Accordingly, receivables from operating
leases were recognised in 2011. These receivables had
been fully provided for impairment by the Directors of
the Company as at 31 December 2012 given that the
Consignee was in significant financial difficulty and had
defaulted in payment.

BE-_ZT-WE+-_B=1+—HItFE

18. AMNRIE - RERHEtLEWER -
FEBERADR (F)

FEM(E)

()

R-_ZF—NWF+_-_A=+—H
MENERETEREAEEN
BAREAKMM —T—A2F
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &8 R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BABIEAN ESEINARETTRERN)

18. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES - GROUP AND COMPANY (continued)

The Group (continued)

©)

(continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the
receivables from operating leases were derecognised
pursuant to the termination agreement entered into
between Jinxi Limited and the Consignee.

Thereafter, Jinxi limited entered into several cooperation
agreements with other third-party individuals. Pursuant
to the cooperation agreements, all the voting rights
relating to the financial and operating policies of the six
companies together with the Gaojiadian Mining Rights
were conveyed to these third-party individuals from 2013
to 2019, in return for cash payments of RMB 20 million
annually. The Directors consider that the collectability of
these cash payments is subject to significant uncertainty
since the collectability is dependent on the financial
position of the third-party individuals. Accordingly, the
receivables from the operating leases amounting to
RMB 80 million (2013: RMB 100 million) have not been
recognised as at 31 December 2014.

China Oriental Group Company Limited B3y 4 F % B A PR A 7

For the year ended 31 December 2014
BEZ-MFT-_A=1t—HLLEFE

18. ANRIE - RERHEtEUERN -
FEERADR (&)

&M (E)

(@

REBEE-ZT—=+=A
Zt+—HLEFER - REER
MEEZTATIOEIER
# o RIEERC AR ERUGK
F o

Hig ZRMEHEAME=F
BIATRILETAEERS -
BEZEGERZE RZF
—=FEZT-NF Z R
NAIW TS REERENRA
& K = R S R R SRR A
BTZEE= BTN
NERSNHEFEAREK2,0005
T BEFRARSNIE AU
EIMEUARZEE =SB IA
T BN MEEEAT
BHAEZ - At R=ZZ—IW
F+-A=+—HTEERA
K#8008 (=T —=4:
ARB1ET) s HER Y
AR o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & #fBf #& 3 & iz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2014

(BABEAN MESBINARBTIREN) BE-T-HNF+-_A=tT—HILEFE

18. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES - GROUP AND COMPANY (continued)

The Group (continued)

Movement on the Group’s impairment provision of
prepayments, deposits and other receivables are as follows:

At 1 January n—H—H

Provision for impairment (Note 30) BB (Fi7E30)
Derecognition of receivables 1R TERIEIGRIR
At 31 December R+=—A=+—8

As at 31 December 2014, the impairment provision for
prepayments, deposits and other receivables comprised of the
impairment provision of RMB 36 million (2013: RMB 21 million)
for certain advance payments for purchase of raw materials,
RMB 21 million (2013: RMB 21 million) for certain advance
payments for mining rights of iron ore and RMB 234 million
(2013: RMB 234 million) for certain advance payments for
acquisition of property, plant and equipment.

18.

BNARE - BEREMBWERR -
FEBERADR (F)

REE(E)

AEBEFEMNFA - ZE REBRYR

RAAERERDIT
2014 2013
—F-mE  ZT=F
(276,132) (160,146)
(15,500) (226,136)
387 110,150
(291,245) (276,132)

R-—ZE—NE+=RA=+—1 ' &
RIE 1R e K E At FE AR R 2 R (E 1
BEEREERMERE TS RE
HAREI600ET(ZE—=F: A
R#210087T) ®RERE - stiE
BEBREENS THENRIEEAR
21008 (T —=F: AR¥
2,1008 7T) KR E B & R WEY
¥ BERRENETENRIELA
RE234BT(ZT—=F: AR¥
2.34 87T ) KRB R ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & Bt &8 R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2014

(BABEAN FESEINARBTIAEN) BE-_TNF+-A=t—HILFE

18. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 18. FAMNFIE RERHMEWERR -

RECEIVABLES - GROUP AND COMPANY (continued) REBNAQAT (&)

The Company ARAHE

2014 2013
—ZT-mF —E—=F
Prepayments for purchase of inventories EEFENTEMNIIE 22,130 247
Deposits and other receivables e R HALEUWARRR 1,294 1,292
23,424 1,539
19. LOAN RECEIVABLES - GROUP 19. BRER-—FKEE
2014 2013
—ZT-mF —E—=F
Long-term loan receivable REIEKE R
— current portion () —RENES (a) - 300,000

Loan receivables (b) FEWE T (b) 347,000 104,500

Less: impairment provision (c) B ORERHE ()

(Notes 30, 39) (K¥7E30, 39) (57,000) (41,268)
290,000 363,232

Total loan receivables FEUG B 4B zE 290,000 363,232

The Group provided loans to third parties. The details of the AEERFE=ZFREER - EXRFFIB

loans are set out below: HHWOT -

(@) As at 31 December 2013, an entrusted long-term loan @ RZBE—=F+=_A=+—
receivable of RMB 300 million was secured by the B AREIELTNRPEKE
pledge of certain property, plant and equipment of the AEXBHERANE THE
borrower, bore interest at a rate of 12% per annum and B KR EE AR - EF
had been repaid in full in July 2014. L12%:t8 - BAER =T —N

FLAZREMN-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 481 &3 & iz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2014

(BABEFN MESBEIRARBTTREN)

19. LOAN RECEIVABLES - GROUP (continued)

o)

As at 31 December 2014, a loan receivable of RMB 290
million was secured by the pledge of certain property,
plant and equipment of borrower, bearing interest at
a rate of 12% per annum and repayable in full in July
2015. The remaining RMB 57 million (2013: RMB 85
million) comprised various loans of individual amount
ranging from RMB 7 million to RMB 20 million (2013:
RMB 3 million to RMB 40 million), which were secured
by the pledged of property, plant and equipment of
the borrowers or guarantees of the borrowers or other
parties, and interest bearing at rates ranging from 19.8%
to 24% (2013: 19.8% to 24%) per annum. RMB 20
million of the current loan receivables at 31 December
2013 were unsecured and bearing interest at a rate of
20% per annum.

As at 31 December 2014, provisions amounting to
RMB 57 million were made on the loan receivables given
that the borrowers were in significant financial difficulty
and had defaulted in scheduled payments and there was
significant uncertainty of recovering the loan receivables
by the enforcement of mortgage rights.

The fair values of loan receivables approximated their carrying

amounts as at the balance sheet date, as the impact of
discounting is not significant.

The fair values of loan receivables were within level 2 of the fair

value hierarchy.

HE-T—WE+-_A=1+—HLEFE

19. BUWER-AKE(E)

(b)

RZZE—NF+ =B =+—
H - —ARKE29EITHEK
ERBERANEG TYWE - K
ERBEIEAER  REFEFX
12%ETE - WERZZT—HF
+tAZEERMN - ARWS5,7008
T(ZZE—=%F: AR¥S8,500
BLT)NHREREZEER B8
BEENTARKETO0EBTEA
E®2008T(=ZF—=4:
AR®E300&ETE A KK 4,000
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &8 R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2014

196

(BREEEBEN FIESEIUARETLAEN) BE-T—NF+-_A=+T—HILEFE
20. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, RESTRICTED 20. RERBELEEY  ZRHEBITE
BANK BALANCES AND LONG-TERM BANK HRERHBRITER-—SEEARED
DEPOSITS - GROUP AND COMPANY al
The Group REH
2014 2013
=F-AF  —F=F
Non-current JERE
Long-term bank deposits REASRITIF 3K - 52,000
Current RE
Cash and cash equivalents R NEESEEY 849,063 968,132
Restricted bank balances SR HISRTT AR R 1,626,978 1,616,022
Long-term bank deposits —FRE B RERITIFH
due within one year 52,000 -
2,528,041 2,584,154
Total cash and bank balances R RIBITEMSEE 2,528,041 2,636,154

As at 31 December 2014, restricted bank balances comprised

the following:

@)

Approximately RMB400.0 million (2013: RMB 748.4
million) were pledged as security for issuing notes
payable of the Group (Note 23);

S
N
)\_

T-mET=A=t+—8 R

BRI TAEERETE N HIRIA

(@

DARBABT(ZBE—=%:
AR¥ET7 48412 7T) B AREN
SEEMAEE(M5E23) mEifF

(b)  Approximately US$ 6.05 million (equivalent to RMB 37.0 (b) #HesEET(HERARE
million) (2013: US$ 8.8 million (equivalent to RMB 53.2 3,70087w) (ZZF—=4 : 880
million)) and RMB 14.0 million (2013: RMB 7.3 million) EEXT(HERARKS53208
were pledged as security for issuing letters of credit of J0)) RAREA,40ETL(=ZZ
the Group; —=F: AR¥7308BT)EA

FARKEEAZEMER ;

()  Approximately RMB 1,174.0 million (2013: RMB 773.9 © HAREBNM4ET(ZE—=
million) were pledged as security for current borrowings F: AR¥ET7739(ETT)EALX
of the Group (Note 25); and SERBIER (M 25) MER

X
(d)  Approximately RMB 2.0 million (2013: RMB 33.2 million) 0 HWARE2008T(=ZZE—=

of cash in bank were withheld by and in custody of the
courts (Note 24)

China Oriental Group Company Limited B3y 4 F % B A PR A 7
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & #fBf #& 3 & iz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2014

(BABEAN MESBINARBTIREN) BE-T-HNF+-_A=tT—HILEFE

20. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, RESTRICTED 20.

BANK BALANCES AND LONG-TERM BANK
DEPOSITS - GROUP AND COMPANY (continued)

The Group (continued)
The carrying amounts of the cash and cash equivalents and

restricted bank balances and long-term bank deposits are
denominated in the following currencies:

Long-term bank deposits RHIBRITEX

RMB ARE

Cash and cash equivalents HERASEEYUAR
and restricted bank balances ZIRFIRITEER

RMB ARE

us$ ETT

HK$ BT

EUR BRIT

Total FEE

The Company

Cash and cash equivalents RERAEEEY

Restricted bank balances IR SRITAEER

As at 31 December 2014, restricted bank balances amounted
to approximately US$ 4.0 million (RMB 24.8 million equivalent)
(2013: US$ 6.5 million (RMB 39.3 million equivalent)) were
pledged as security for issuing letters of credit.

ReRkBEEEY  ZIMFBITE
BRERABITERXR -FREREA
8 (#&)

EME(E)
R MREEFBY  XRHBITEL
RERRITEROEREETATIE
BREN

2014 2013

—F-mE  —ZF=F

52,000 52,000

2,010,514 2,292,199

463,738 287,989
1,740 3,911
49 55
2,476,041 2,684,154
2,528,041 2,636,154

Z NG
2014 2013

—F-mE  ZT=F

117,062 41,433
24,755 39,325
141,817 80,758

R-ZE—WHE+_A=+—0 "4
4008 ET(HBERARKE2,48087T)
(ZZT—=%F : 6508t (SR A
R¥3,930&7T)) X R HIRIT 484
ERFAAEREMER -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &8 R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2014

(BRBEAN AESEINARBTIAEN) BE-_TNF+-A=t—HLFE

21. SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM - GROUP 21. BRERBRMGE-FAKEREATR
AND COMPANY
Amount
x|
Number
of shares Ordinary Share
(thousands) shares premium Total
RBEE
(i) EER B RE st
As at 1 January 2013 R=-ZB-=5—-A—H 2,930,425 311,772 2,191,087 2,502,859
Employee share option scheme: EEERETE
— issuance of shares —R&pEeT 1,000 81 1,044 1,125
As at 31 December 2013 and R=B-=£+=A=1—H
31 December 2014 R—ZE-NME+-A=+—H 2,931,425 311,853 2,192,131 2,503,984
As at 31 December 2014 and 2013, the total number of RZEBE—NER_ZETE—=F+_FH
authorised ordinary shares of the Company is 5,000,000,000 =+t—H ' ARARETEBREHE
shares with a par value of HK$ 0.1. 5,000,000,000 A& & f% A B 0.1 & T HY
i o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & #fBf #& 3 & iz

22. OTHER RESERVES - GROUP AND COMPANY

The Group

Balance at 1 January 2013

Profit appropriation
Employee share option scheme

- Value of employee service (Note 31)

Transfer of fair value losses
previously taken to reserve
to income statement upon
impairment of available-for-sale
financial assets
Fair value gains on available-for-sale
financial assets (Note 15)
Changes in ownership interests
in a subsidiary without change
of control

Balance at 31 December 2013

Profit appropriation
Employee share option scheme

- Value of employee service (Note 31)

Transfer of fair value gains
previously credited to reserve to
income statement upon
disposal of available-for-sale
financial assets

Fair value gains on available-for-
sale financial assets (Note 15)

Balance at 31 December 2014

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BABEAN  MESBEIRARBETTREN)

For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE-_Z-MF+-_A=T—RILFE

22. HfufE—AEERALQF

REE
Available-
for-sale
Merger  Capital Statutory financial
reserve  surplus  reserve  Options  assets Total
e
At EADE EERE  BRE SREE a3t
(a) (b) (c)
R-B-=£-F-Ri&H (599) 8849 100099 380423 (3892 1493880
il - - 46643 - - 4pp43
[EEERETE
- EEREMEE (FFEs1) - = - 32588 - 32588
RS BEERERE LA
SARRNALBEFEER
R
- - - - 38%2 3892
RTESREENALER
Wi (Firzk15) - - - - 12374 12,374
ERMEEHENER T
EENNBARNFARES
- 15y = = - 15y
RZB-ZEtZAZ+-Ai&E (599) 669 1,155742 413011 12374 1,587,224
sl - - 436 - - 4364
[EEERETE
- EEREMEE (FiEs1) - - - 8737 - BT
REETRTESHEERS
EHFARENLLERE
fresfEx
- - - - (28307)  (28307)
NEHESREE
A EENE (B 15) - - - - 20708 20708
RoB-mE+-A=+-BlLH (599) 6,696 1199386 419748 4775 1,630,006
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &8 R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BABIEAN ESEINARETTRERN)

22. OTHER RESERVES - GROUP AND COMPANY
(continued)

The Group (continued)

(@)

Merger reserve

The merger reserve of the Group represents the

difference between the nominal value of the shares of

the subsidiaries that had been acquired and the nominal

value of the Company’s shares issued in exchange

therefore pursuant to the Reorganisation.

Statutory reserve

(i)

(i)

Statutory surplus reserves

In accordance with the PRC regulations and the
Articles of the Association of certain subsidiaries
of the Group registered in the PRC, before
distributing the net profit of each year, these PRC
subsidiaries are required to set aside 10% of their
statutory net profit for the year after offsetting any
prior year’s losses as determined under the PRC
accounting regulations to the statutory surplus
reserve fund. When the balance of such reserve
reaches 50% of the share capital, any further
appropriation is optional.

The statutory surplus reserve fund can be utilised
to offset prior years’ losses or to issue bonus
shares. However, such statutory surplus reserve
fund must be maintained at a minimum of 25% of
the entity’s share capital after such issuance.

Discretionary reserves

The appropriation of discretionary reserve fund
is proposed by Board of the PRC subsidiaries,
and approved by the shareholder’'s meeting. The
discretionary reserve fund can be utilised to offset
prior years’ losses or increase share capital.

China Oriental Group Company Limited 23 J7 5 [ 2 A FR 2 7]
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & #fBf #& 3 & iz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2014

(BABEAN MESBINARBTIREN) BE-T-HNF+-_A=tT—HILEFE

22. OTHER RESERVES - GROUP AND COMPANY 22, HttifRE-AEERELH(E)
(continued)
The Group (continued) NEE (4Z)
(©)  Employee share option scheme € 1EERERETE
As approved by the Company’s Board mesting, certain REANREER@HILER
share options were granted to selected directors THEhENES REECE
and employees as follows. The Group has no legal BYAETHERE - AEB T E
or constructive obligation to repurchase or settle the PAIH & B& 0] 5k 45 B RS IR #E A9 0k
options in cash. TEREETE -
Number
of share
options in an Exercises Exercisable
Date of grant aggregate price period
®¥H BREESA e AT
HKS$ per share
BRET
24 February 2009 “TEAF B -+WH 21,200,000 1.39 Note 1
P&t 1
11 May 2009 “ZEZAFRAT+—H 6,600,000 1.50 Note 1
Bt 1
29 December 2009 —ETAF+-_A=-thH 148,780,000 2.84 Note 1
=t 1
20 December 2010 —E-ZTF+-HA-+H 6,000,000 3.00 Note 1
=T 1
24 December 2010 —E-FF+—A-+WH 47,100,000 3.18 Note 1
Bt 1
14 January 2011 —T——%—HA+mMmA 800,000 3.20 Note 1
=t 1
27 April 2011 —Z——FPmA=1+tH 9,800,000 3.08 Note 1
P&t 1
30 March 2012 —E——F#=H=+H 75,370,000 2.03 Note 1
Bt 1
30 May 2012 —E——_FHA=1H 9,800,000 2.03 Note 1
B&E 1
Note 1: The share options are exercisable in different Rt 1. ZEERER-_ZZNF_AZ
periods from February 2009 to December 2020, —E-EF+ = ARREEAA
and with different vesting requirements. FiTE - (THREERZE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &8 R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2014

(BRBEAN AESEINARBTIAEN) BE-_TNF+-A=t—HLFE

22. OTHER RESERVES - GROUP AND COMPANY
(continued)

The Group (continued)

(c) Employee share option scheme (continued)

Movements in the number of share options outstanding
during the year ended 31 December 2014 and their
related weighted average exercise prices were as

price per of options

Average
exercise

22. HittfFE - AEBRAAE (EF)

NEE (E)
) IEERERREEE)
BHE_Z—NF+-_A=+—

BIEFER  WARITEMNER
BB REMAMEFISITE

EEEBHMT -
2014 2013
—ZE—F —E—=F
Average
Number exercise Number

price per of options

share in HK$ (thousands) share in HK$  (thousands)

BREROEH

SR

FHTEE BREHE FHOTRE BRUEHE

follows:

At 1 January Rn—H—H
Exercised B1T7fE

Lapsed B

At 31 December R+=—A=+—H

China Oriental Group Company Limited B3y 4 F % B A PR A 7

2.59 293,020 2.59
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2014

(BABEAN MESBINARBTIREN) BE-T-HNF+-_A=tT—HILEFE

22. OTHER RESERVES - GROUP AND COMPANY 22, HttifRE-AEERELH(E)
(continued)
The Group (continued) REE(E)
(c)  Employee share option scheme (continued) ) |EERERES(E)
Share options outstanding at 31 December 2014 and RZE—NFEFRER T —=4F
2013 have the expiry dates and exercise prices as +—A=+—BHHEERTHEHE
follows: xR fEm B B RATE BT

Number of options

Exercise price (thousands)
TEE BREHE (T14)

Expiry date HKS$ per share 2014 2013
& B 5 SRET —E-mF =%
23 February 2019 —E-hF-_A=-1+=H 1.39 16,500 18,500
10 May 2019 —E-NFRATH 1.50 2,000 2,000
28 December 2019 —E-NF+=A=+N\H 2.84 141,650 141,650
16 May 2016 —E—RFRA+~H 3.00 6,000 6,000
19 December 2020 —E-EE+-—A+AH 3.18 38,100 40,100
13 January 2021 —E-—4%—H+=H 3.20 800 800
27 March 2021 —E-—4F=A=++tH 3.08 9,800 9,800
19 December 2020 —E-TF+ - A+ANH 2.03 68,370 69,970
19 December 2020 —E-FEF+ - A+NH 2.03 9,800 9,800

293,020 298,620
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2014

(BRBEAN AESEINARBTIAEN) BE-_TNF+-A=t—HLFE

22. OTHER RESERVES - GROUP AND COMPANY 22. HittfFE - AEBRAAE (EF)
(continued)
The Company VNN
Available-for-

sale financial Accumulated

Options assets losses Total
AftHE
BRE LREE Z5tER @t
Balance at 1 January 2013 R=Z-=5-F-AMEH 380,423 (3,892) (578,460) (201,929)
Loss for the year FREE = = (213,894) (213,894)
Employee share option scheme EEBIRETE
—Value of employee service (Note 31)  —[E S FREHI(B(E (Hz31) 32,588 - - 32,588
Transfer of fair value losses previously — Ra/ftHELRBERER
taken 1o reserve to income BERTET AR
statement upon impairment of MEEFRERFER
available-for-sale financial assets - 3,892 = 3,892
Fair value gains on available-for- IHREESRHEENDLA
sale financial assets (Note 15) BB (FiE15) = 12,374 - 12,374
Balance at 31 December 2013 R=ZE-=%+=H
=t-REe 413011 12,374 (792,354) (366,969)
Loss for the year EREE - - (130,329) (130,329)
Employee share option scheme BEBETE
- Vialue of employee service (Note 31) ~ —{E & FRISAIEE (1 31) 6,737 - - 6,737

Transfer of fair value gains previously REERHTESRHBERS
credited to reserve to income statement  ERIFFABBNAL BE

upon disposal of available-for- a8 EHER
sale financial assets - (28,307) = (28,307)
Fair value gains on available-for-sale AEHESHEENAL
financial assets (Note 15) {BEME (i 15) - 20,708 - 20,708
Balance at 31 December 2014 R-E-ME+=8
o =3 419748 4,775 (922,683) (498,160)
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2014

(BABEAN MESBINARBTIREN) BE-T-HNF+-_A=tT—HILEFE

23. TRADE PAYABLES - GROUP AND COMPANY

The Group
Account payables FEITBR IR
Notes payable ANEE

As at 31 December 2014, all notes payable represented bank
acceptance notes, of which RMB 5 million (2013: RMB 219
million) were secured by certain notes receivable (Note 17),
RMB 628 million (2013: RMB 833 million) were secured by
certain restricted bank balances (Note 20), and RMB 169
million (2013: RMB 190 million) were secured by certain
inventories (Note 16) and certain restricted bank balances
(Note 20).

As at 31 December 2014 and 2013, the ageing analysis of the
trade payables was as follows:

Within 3 months 3EAN

4-6 months 4= 61EA
7-9 months 7E9E A
10-12 months 10E 12 & A
Over 1 year 1FEM E

23. ENEZRA-FEEREAF

A M

2014 2013
—F-mFE T =F

1,916,982 2,279,265
802,271 1,242,125

2,719,253 3,621,390

R-Z—WNE+—A=+—H  FTafE
NEBEHAIFITRLES - EREiEA
RESOEIL(ZZ—=4F : AR¥E2.19
B) E T RKZEE(ME17) BIK
- ARKEG28EIL(ZE—=F: A
R 833187L) A TXRFIRITHE
AR (M5E20) RAREA1.69EIT (=
T—=F: ARE10EBIT)UETHE
& (M52 16) k& TR BRI TAS & (B
#£20) BIEIE -

RZE—NFEER—_FT—=F+_A
=+—H8 ' ENESERNERDT
N

2014 2013
—F-mE  ZFT=F

1,877,319 2,656,282

480,793 696,399
90,585 77,508
55,223 28,260

215,333 62,941

2,719,253 3,521,390
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2014

(BRBEAN AESEINARBTIAEN) BE-_TNF+-A=t—HLFE

23. TRADE PAYABLES - GROUP AND COMPANY 23. ENEZERER—FTEEREAF
(continued) (%)
The Group (continued) REE(E)
The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade payables are AEBEENEZERRNEERBLUAT
denominated in the following currencies: S BRI -
2014 2013

—F-mE  ZT=F

RMB AR 2,426,189 3,224,435
uss$ ETT 293,064 296,555
EUR BT - 400

2,719,253 3,521,390

The Company AAT
2014 2013

—E-NF —ET—=F

Accounts payable FER IR 78,752 9,211
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2014

(BRAAEH -

24. ACCRUALS, ADVANCES AND OTHER CURRENT
LIABILITIES - GROUP AND COMPANY

The Group

Advances from customers

Payables for purchase of property,
plant and equipment

Deposits from customers

Value-added tax payable and
other taxes payables

Accrual of interest expense

Salary, pension and other social
welfare payables

Provisions for legal claims (Note (a))

Accrual for iron ore importing expenses

Employee deposits

Others

BWE PR
RIBHI R
BFE®
FERTIEER R E A
e IR
BRMNEER
EN#HS - BRRER
Hitt @7
FRRERE (ME@E)
HRiREREAEOER
BERZRS
Hity

24,

FIEERAUARBTIREN) BE-T-MNF+_A=t—HILFE

FRRER  AURBAREMRBE
B-AEEREAT

REE
2014 2013
—E—FE —T—=4F
1,210,312 1,106,232
207,652 255,119
151,042 172,279
195,437 54,148
135,913 131,285
130,672 123,552
81,278 73,532
54,941 135,658
31,511 33,039
267,749 256,179
2,466,507 2,341,023
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &8 R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2014

(BRBEAN AESEINARBTIAEN) BE-_TNF+-A=t—HLFE

24. ACCRUALS, ADVANCES AND OTHER CURRENT
LIABILITIES - GROUP AND COMPANY (continued)

24, FERER AUWREREMASE

- FEERANT ()

The Group (continued) REE(E)
The provisions for legal claims were related to the below SERRERETIEAR R TIME R FLA
litigation cases of the subsidiaries of the Company: TEFAARMGER

(@ As at 31 December 2014 and 2013, certain third party
customers filed lawsuits against the Group, alleging that
the subsidiaries of the Group has breached certain terms
of sale and purchase agreement. Under the request of
the customers, certain inventories (Note 16) and bank
deposits (Note 20) were withheld by and in custody of
the court as security to be used to settle the loss claim
by the customer if the court ruled the allegation had
merits. In the opinion of the Directors, after taking into
consideration the appropriate legal advice, the outcome
of these legal claims will not give rise to any significant
loss beyond the amounts provided as at 31 December
2014 and 2013.

@ RZE—HEmNFEER_ZFT—Z=F
+TZHA=+— EI'EF%':J?
BERHEARE @%Hﬂwﬁ*’\ g
BAEENBARERESZ D
EOETHRR - BREZERF
Ek ETHE(ME16) &
& TFRITIF (I 5E20) #0ERT
MBREE  BiRIARAIE
BEE KAREREETZE
FREEBE KEREE /£f$
%ﬁ?ﬁ'%% 7%75/\ T—

H ZFEERENERTE

SIBMBEERZINNEAE

RiBK o

The Company ARAHE
2014 2013
—F-mFE T =fF
Accrual of interest expense JEIRF| B E A 100,420 100,412

Salary, pension and other social EiHE  BRE R

welfare payables Hivtt=EF) 980 2,073
Others EHo 7,645 11,358
109,045 113,843
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2014

25. BORROWINGS - GROUP AND COMPANY

The Group

Non-current
Bank borrowings (a)
Secured
Unsecured

Senior Notes (b)

Current
Bank borrowings (a)
Secured
Unsecured

Other borrowings, unsecured ()
Senior Notes (b)

Total borrowings

(BRAAEH -

FEE
RITIEF (@)
BiEH
I

BEEE b)

wE
RITEH (@)
R
EIEH

H At & 50— K ()
BRI (b)

ESEEN

FIEEREUARE T LREN)

25. ER—AEERAEDQT

BE_Z—NF+_A=1T—HILFE

A EME
2014 2013
—F-mFE T =F
246,000 =
- 25,000
246,000 25,000
1,264,519 4,258,962
1,510,519 4,083,962
1,877,524 1,837,126
1,723,758 1,633,371
3,601,282 3,370,497
65,000 65,000
2,992,470 -
6,658,752 3,435,497
8,169,271 7,719,459
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BABIEAN ESEINARETTRERN)

25. BORROWINGS - GROUP AND COMPANY (continued)

The Group (continued)

@)

The secured bank borrowings as at 31 December 2014
totaling RMB 2,124 million (2013: RMB 1,837 million)
were secured by certain restricted bank balances (Note
20), notes receivable (Note 17) and properties under
development (Note 14) of the Group and guaranteed by
a subsidiary of the Group.

On 18 August 2010, the Group issued US$ 550 million
senior notes (the “2015 Senior Notes”), which bears
interest at 8% per annum and payable semi-annually, to
finance its potential acquisitions and investments, capital
expenditure projects and working capital requirements.
The principal of the 2015 Senior Notes is wholly
repayable on 18 August 2015.

On 17 November 2010, the Group issued US$ 300
million senior notes (the “2017 Senior Notes”), which
bears interest at 7% per annum and payable semi-
annually, to refinance its outstanding short-term
debts. The principal of the 2017 Senior Notes is wholly
repayable on 17 November 2017.

China Oriental Group Company Limited B3y 4 F % B A PR A 7

For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE-_Z-NF+-A=+—HLLFE

25. ER-AKERAQT(E)

&M (&)

(@)

RZE—NF+=RA=+—
A HHETERERXARE
2124BR(ZZE—Z=F : AR
¥18.37 8 0) ARNEBE T =
PR R 1T 45 84 (M 5E20) ~ FEUR
SR 17) KBRS (M
FE14) AR - RAEE R
B AR EAEER -

R=Z—Z=FN\A+NB ' &%
EZ{T550BETTMELZE
(ZZ—RFEEEE]D U
FHE8%TERFEFLHEBE
B UEPHETREREE -
BEASTHIBEREEEETRK -
T -AFEAEENASER
ZE-RAFENATNBREHE
3\%0

R-ZF—ZFF+—A+tH"
AEBEETI0RETHE
EEB(-_Z—tHFEEE
B REMR7% B REF
FHRBEERE NEPEERNMR
REENEREL - —FT—t
FRARBENASAR_-F
—tFt+—At+tBEEHEE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & #fBf #& 3 & iz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2014

(BABEAN  MESBEIRARBETTREN)

25. BORROWINGS - GROUP AND COMPANY (continued)

The Group (continued)

b)

(continued)

On 14 November 2012, the Group repurchased US$ 87
million of the 2017 Senior Notes and US$ 60 million of
the 2015 Senior Notes.

In November and December 2014, the Group
repurchased US$ 5 million of the 2017 Senior Notes,
resulted in a gain of RMB 2 million (Note 28).

During the year ended 31 December 2014, Mr. Han
Jingyuan (“Mr. Han”), the Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer of the Company, bought US$ 11 million Senior
Notes.

The other unsecured borrowings of RMB 65 million
(2013: RMB 65 million) represented a borrowing
from a local county government without fixed term of
repayment. Interest is charged at the RMB bank deposit
rate for one year fixed deposit.

BE_Z—NF+_A=1T—HILFE

25. fER—AEERAQT(E)

NEE(E)
by (&)

RZZE——F+—HA+mWmA -
ANEE DS, 700 B TH —F
—tFRBEZEERK6,000EET
W_T—AFEEEE -

RZZE—mF+—Ak+=
A AN&EEER5008FETTH =
T—tFELEER EBBAR
& 200 B ITHMER (FisE28) -

REZE—T—NF+=_A=+—
HIEFERN  NAREERERE
REENITERAUR A (7R
EDEE1108FTHELE
1% o

HihEEEERARYE6,5008
T(ZZE—=F : AR¥6,500
B EEMBEBNRENE
P REEREETEEERD-
FERATIRBITARE —FH
TEHFRFRAE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE-_Z-NF+-A=+—HLLFE

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BABIEAN ESEINARETTRERN)

B O IR R

25. BORROWINGS - GROUP AND COMPANY (continued) 25. {ER-AEERAAT(E)
The Group (continued) RNEBE (4Z)
(d) As at 31 December 2014 and 2013, the Group’s d RZZE—HFR_ZT-—=4%F
borrowings were repayable as follows: +ZA=+—H ~AEBEHE
SREEAHARR T
Other borrowings
Bank borrowings and Senior Notes
RITHER HiERREBEZE
2014 2013 2014 2013
—F-WE —T-=F —T-OmF T =F
Within 1 year 1FR 3,601,282 3,370,497 3,057,470 65,000
Between 1 and 2 years 1 & 24 100,000 25,000 - 2,969,541
Between 2 and 5 years 2 & 54 146,000 - 1,264,519 1,289,421
3,847,282 3,395,497 4,321,989 4,323,962
The effective interest rates at the balance sheet date REZANEREFERNT :
were as follows:
2014 2013
—E-mF “ET-=F
RMB us$ RVB US$
AR¥ EYH ARE £
Bank borrowings $R{7fE X 4.00%-7.69% 1.05%-4.30% 6.10-7.65% 1.17-3.90%
Other borrowings E it &% 3.60% - 3.60% -
Senior Notes ~ BHRZERE - 7.00%-8.00% - 7.00-8.00%
The carrying amounts of current borrowings approximated HARITIREERK  REER
their fair values as at the balance sheet date as the impact REEHMEREESR 1 DE QR

of discounting is not significant.
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2014

(BABEAN MESBINARBTIREN) BE-T-HNF+-_A=tT—HILEFE

25. BORROWINGS - GROUP AND COMPANY (continued)

The Group (continued)

(d)  (continued)

The carrying amounts and fair value of the non-current

25. fER—AEERAQT(E)

NEE(E)
@ &)

FRP|ITEAREBERED

bank borrowings and Senior Notes are as follows: FEERAABEET !

Carrying amount Fair value

BREIE AREE
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-mE —T-=F ZE-NF —T-=F
Bank borrowings RITENK 246,000 25,000 243,841 23,203
Senior Notes BEER 4,256,989 4,258,962 4,110,393 4,100,512
4,502,989 4,283,962 4,354,234 4,123,715

The fair values of non-current bank borrowings are
based on discounted cash flow approach using the
prevailing market rates of interest available to the Group
for financial institution with substantially the same terms
and characteristics at the respective balance sheet
dates. The fair values of Senior Notes are based on
quoted market price.

As at 31 December 2014, the carrying amount of the
borrowings amounting to RMB 7,631 million (2013: RMB
7,438 million) and RMB 538 million (2013: RMB 281 million)
were denominated in US$ and RMB respectively.

FERBBITER AR EERE
RAARER S HEE B ER R
BARERNSBEENIRT
MIZHXRZRSREEN R
B BARBENAABERE
MIZREIIR

R-ZE—ME+-A=+—0 K@
BEAARKT7631EL(ZE—=4:
AR¥ 743818 7T) R AR 53818 T
(ZZ—=F : AR¥2811E)
D BIAETRARKETHE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &8 R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2014

(BRBEAN AESEINARBTIAEN) BE-_TNF+-A=t—HLFE

25. BORROWINGS - GROUP AND COMPANY (continued)

The Group (continued)

The exposure of the Group’s bank borrowings to interest-rate

changes and the contractual repricing dates are as follows:

6 months or less 61&EA M
6-12 months 6ZE121& A
More than 12 months HBiE 1218 A
The Company
Non-current FERE
Senior Notes BRER
Current B
Bank borrowings — Unsecured RITIER —
Senior Notes BRER
Total borrowings AR

China Oriental Group Company Limited B3y 4 F % B A PR A 7

I

ER—AEERARQE (E)

&M (&)

REBIRITIEFALEN R R K&

BNENEEALT -
2014 2013
—F-mE  —ZF=F
2,511,147 3,072,112
1,336,135 298,385
= 25,000
3,847,282 3,395,497

ZNNC

2014 2013
—B-mFE —T-=F
1,264,519 4,258,962
627,755 621,820
2,992,470 =
3,620,225 621,820
4,884,744 4,880,782




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 381 # Rk 3% Mt 5=

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2014

(BABEAN MESBINARBTIREN) BE-T-HNF+-_A=tT—HILEFE

26. DEFERRED REVENUE - GROUP

At 1 January 2013

Addition
Credited to the consolidated
income statement

At 31 December 2013

Addition
Credited to the consolidated
income statement

At 31 December 2014

R-_E—=F—H—H
NE
REHFIEERARRE

R-F—Z=F1t-A=1—8

NE

REfHER ALK

RZE—NF+=-A=+—H

26. EZWA-FEE
Deferred
government
grant
EERS
wah
47,293

16,325

(5,944)

57,674

8,772

(7,162)

59,284
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2014

(BABEAN FESEINARBTIAEN) BE-_TNF+-A=t—HILFE

27. DEFERRED INCOME TAX - GROUP 27. BREFEH —FKE
Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there EASRBHEEEERSHEAE
is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against Wz AR b TE - AR EIERE
current tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate TS Ht B2 [/ — T A M R ot X JE AR TR B
to income taxed levied by the same taxation authority on either B T RERTEEBW FIE/REA
the taxable entity or different taxable entities where there is B8 - A EH EBRIRFREEESRNT
an interaction to settle the balances on a net basis. The offset B RIEEHEEEBEE 2K
amounts are as follows: $H o EHS KT ¢
2014 2013
—F-mE  —ZF=F
Deferred tax assets: RIEFH T E =
— Deferred tax asset to be recovered — 12 1@ A & U=
after more than 12 months REETETE S 277,336 227,122
— Deferred tax asset to be recovered — &R 12 @ A Rk
within 12 months HIRERI IR S B 115,162 108,160
392,498 335,282
Deferred tax liabilities: RIETIEAE -
— Deferred tax liabilities to be settled — 128 A& 8H
after more than 12 months REETTEA E (45,113) (43,324)
— Deferred tax liabilities to be settled — #1218 A Nk
within 12 months HAEERIEA G (5,147) (6,064)
(50,260) (49,388)
Deferred tax assets — net FETHTBEE — 558 342,238 285,894
The gross movement on the deferred income tax account is as RIEFTIS TR B R Z Ehn T -
follows:
2014 2013
—E-mFE —T—=F
At 1 January R—A—H 285,894 201,090
Credited to the consolidated REHFIER
income statement (Note 33) AR (Fi3E33) 56,344 84,804
At 31 December Nt+=—A=+—8H 342,238 285,894
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2014

(BABEAN MESBEINARBETIREN) BE-T-HNF+-_A=tT—HILEE

27. DEFERRED INCOME TAX - GROUP (continued) 27. BEZEMEBH-AEE(Z)
Deferred taxation is calculated on temporary differences under RERIBERAE RER TR EERR
the liability method using the tax rate and the tax base that is B _FT—NE+_A=+—H1t
consistent with the expected manner of recovery or settlement FETEEAU O s 45 E 7 = — BRI =R
for the year ended 31 December 2014. RFEFTH o
The movement in deferred income tax assets and liabilities FNEREMSEHEERBECLART
during the year, without taking into consideration the offsetting AR —BF [ A A A 5h) /Y&
of balances within the same tax jurisdiction is as follows: AR :
Deferred income tax assets: RIEFTSTREE -

Temporary  Impairment

difference  provision of

arising from  assets and
expense  provisionof  Unrealised

Taxlosses  recognition  legal claims gains Total
EREAN EENERER HARER

WEEE ENMEE AERERE V6 @t

At 1 January 2013 W_E—=%—-F—H 7,322 93,205 108,179 40,708 244,414
(Charged)/credited to the REHFIER (1K) 2k

consolidated income statement (5,736) 1,577 85,863 9,164 90,868

At 31 December 2013 W_E-—=%+-A=1-H 1,586 94,782 189,042 49,872 335,282
(Charged)/credited to the REHFIER (1K) 2R

consolidated income statement 22,886 (29,248) 36,595 26,983 57,216

At 31 December 2014 RZB-ME+=A=1—H 24,472 65,534 225,637 76,855 392,498
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2014

(BRBEAN AESEINARBTIAEN) BE-_TNF+-A=t—HLFE

27. DEFERRED INCOME TAX - GROUP (continued)

The Directors are of opinion that accumulated tax losses
of RMB471 million as at 31 December 2014 (31 December
2013: RMB 328 million) were unlikely to be utilised before the
losses expired, therefore no deferred income tax assets were
recognised in this regard.

Deferred income tax liabilities:

At 1 January 2013
Credit/(charged) to the
consolidated income statement

R-ZE—=F—HF—H
RAFFBRZE (k)

27.

EEFTEH —AKE ()

BEERAE R_ZT-—WNE+_A
=T —HEFHEEBBARK4T1E
T(ZZE—=%F+-"FA=+—8: A
R¥3.28187m) RBEEMATETAR
AJRERE A - Bt - WL I RERRIE
EFTSBIEE o

At 31 December 2013
Credit/(charged) to the
consolidated income statement

RZZ—=F+-A=+—H
RAHFIBRZE/(GIR)

At 31 December 2014 R-E—ME+=A=1+—H

BIEFTISTIAME -
Fair value Capitalised

gains interest Total
ARBERS ER{EFIE ast
(6,441) (36,883) (43,324)

358 (6,422) (6,064)

(6,083) (43,305) (49,388)

358 (1,230) 872)

(5,725) (44,535) (50,260)

Deferred income tax liabilities of RMB 445 million (2013: RMB
403 million) have not been recognised for the withholding
tax and other taxes that would be payable on the unremitted
earnings of certain subsidiaries in PRC amounting to RMB
4,442 million as at 31 December 2014 (2013: RMB 4,025
million). The Directors are of the view that the Group will not
distribute the unremitted earnings in the foreseeable future.
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28. OTHER GAINS/(LOSSES) - NET

Gains of raw materials and by-products

Government grants
Impairment of property,
plant and equipment (Note 7)
Provision for legal claims (Note 24)
(Losses)/gain on disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Gain on disposal of an
associate
Other foreign exchange losses — net
(Note 34)
Gain on repurchase of Senior Notes
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale
financial assets (Note 15)
Impairment of available-for-sale
financial assets (Note 15)
Others

Total other gains/(losses) — net

(BRAEEH -

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 381 #& 3Rk & Mi &

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

FIEEBREUARE T LREN)

For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE-_Z-MF+-_A=T—RHILFE

28. Hftsleas /(E518) — FE

TR R R B o e
AT Eh
ME - BB KA
BIE (KIEET7)
SEERRERE (EE24)
HEWE  BEREEZ
(B518), e
HE—HBEARZ
e
HAth (& 5 8518 — F 58
(M97£34)
BRELEZEE W

HERTHHESREE Y Was

(H97E15)
HHESREERE
(HI7£15)
Hh

HiblWes, /(B8 ) FEa

2014 2013
—F-mE  ZT=F
18,235 2,368
91,826 61,904
(89,944) (79,053)
(7,746) (50,778)
(2,396) 2,634

- 50,000

(2,623) (33,631)
2,096 -
28,307 -

- (23,845)

(657) 1,862
37,098 (68,539)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &8 R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2014

(BABERN FESEINARBTIAEN) BE-_T-NF+-A=t—HLFE

29. OTHER INCOME 29. HflA
2014 2013
=F-mFE  —F=F
Rental income from investment WEYE
properties (Note 8) WA (FizE8) 1,797 2,363
Income from other operating leases HieZHE 2 A 22,250 27,580
Investment income from trading fund ESEBEZRERA = 5,653
Others Hith 2,305 10,556
Total EET 26,352 46,152
30. EXPENSES BY NATURE 30. EMHE2IINFAX
2014 2013
—Z-NF —E-=F
Employee benefit expense (Note 31) EERAHY (H:Es1) 918,266 971,986
Changes in inventories of finished goods R R ER S
and work in progress NEEED (173,160) (456,800)
Raw materials used PR R 23,742,745 28,324,999
Cost of properties sold SEEYEERN AR 188,114 95,569
Utilities A 1,358,787 1,497,502
Amortisation of leasehold land and METH R T
land use rights (Note 6) EmER S (fE6) 3,485 3,405
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (Note 7)  #1% « BiE RS ENE (MzE7) 1,090,556 1,045,516
Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 9) B EESH (i) 108 8
Depreciation of investment properties (Note 8) REMEE (H:E8) 441 806
Operating lease expenses in respect of land use rights B E +3t{F AENZEHBEER 3,704 3,458
Provision for impairment W E 5 IR FURE . Bt
of trade receivables (Note 17) (PfzE17) 3,726 6,738
Impairment provision of prepayments, BITFE - e REMEKIER
deposits and other receivables (Note 18) LR ERE (FiFE18) 15,500 226,136
Impairment provision of loan receivables (Note 19) FEWER 2 RERE (HizE19) 15,732 40,968
Provision for write-down of inventories EEEEMBZEREE L
to net realisable value (Note 16) Bl (i 16) 60,306 28,180
Auditors’ remuneration Gl 5,540 5,281
Rental Fee HEER 144,695 192,490
Others Hi 317,808 307,215
Total Bt 27,696,353 32,293,627
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &3 & i ==

31. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE 31.

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2014

(BABEAN MESEINARBTIREN) BE-T-HNF+-_A=tT—HILFE

EERAMAX

2014 2013
—F-mE  ZT=F

Staff costs (including directors’ emoluments) E 2k A (B FEESEE)

Pensions — defined contribution plans

The employees of the subsidiaries of the Group that
are incorporated in the PRC participate in a defined
contribution retirement benefit plan organised by the
relevant provincial government. For the years ended
31 December 2014 and 2013, the Group is required to
make monthly defined contributions to these plans at
rates from 10% to 20%, with the base of their total salary
subject to a certain ceiling.

The Group has no other obligations for the payment
of retirement and other post-retirement benefits of
employees or retirees other than the payments disclosed
in the above note.

— Salaries and welfare — %2 RAER| 739,243 782,512
— Pension costs — defined —IRIRE A — E AR
contribution plans (a) =&l (a) 172,286 156,886
— Share options granted to —RTEE - AABAL
directors, eligible persons K& B R
and employees (Note 22) (f¥7E22) 6,737 32,588
918,266 971,986

BINE — EREEE

AL B AP B R AL B P B
ARMEEBSEEHERAA
BHEBRESRBRAEF
g-BE_FT-NER_-F
—=Ff+t-HA=t+—HLItF
B AEEREEHFAR
10% £20% & A Mz E &t &8I1E
HERBER - EXET ERA
fR e

B DA L B & P 45 B8 M9 SRR D -
AEBYEAREBIRARAL
AR E Rbs T H MR KR
BAMEMBEL -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &8 R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2014

(BABERN FESEINARBTIAEN) BE-_T-NF+-A=t—HLFE

31. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (continued) 31. EEEAEX(Z&)

(b)  Directors’ and senior management’s emoluments (o)

EELEAEEENE

BE_ZT-MER-_FT—=F
TZA=+t—HLEFE  BE=F

The emoluments of every director for the years ended 31
December 2014 and 2013, on a named basis, are set

222
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out as below: BB & (AR A2E) E5IaT -
Fair value of Pension
employee costs -
Salaries share defined
and options  contribution
Name of director Fees allowances Bonus granted plans Total
BRiES RHERA -
BRED ERHH
£ e HERRW *a MMEE it fazt
2014 —E-ME
Mr. Han Jingyuan () BHELL() 3 2,754 - 246 13 3,726
Mr. Zhu Jun 5 Ext 594 590 - 40 13 1,237
Mr. Shen Xiaoling RRELE 408 652 - 40 13 1,113
Mr. Han Li & Nkt 468 975 - 40 13 1,49
M. Zhu Heo x BEE 316 304 - 40 12 762
Mr. Vijay Kumar Bhatnagar Viiay Kumr Bnatnagar /£ 316 - - 31 - 341
Mr. Wong Man Chung, Francls &5 %4 316 - - 36 - 352
Mr. Wang Tianyi IREEE 316 - - 3 - 347
Mr. Zhou Guoping RETAE 316 - - - - 316
3,763 5,365 - 504 64 9,696
2013 5%
Mrr. Han Jingyuan () BHELE( 652 3355 - 1,702 12 5721
M. Zhu Jun x BRE 614 590 - 247 12 1458
Mr. Shen Xiaoling IRREE 314 655 - 24 12 1223
Mr. Hen Li g IRk 314 517 - 242 12 1,085
Mr. Zhu Hao X OERE 314 393 - 242 12 961
Mr. Ondra Otradovec (il Ondra Otradovec 5% (i 169 - - 186 - 365
Mr. Viiay Kumar Bhatnagar Vijay Kumar Bhatnagar 5 314 - - 186 - 500
Mr. Liu Lei {i) B BEA) 208 - - 186 - 389
Mr. Wong Man Chung, Francis ~ EXREE 314 - - 214 - 528
Mr. Yu Tung Ho (i) REEAA () 104 - - 186 - 290
Mr. Wang Tianyi IRERE 314 - - 186 - 500
Mr. Zhou Guoping BRTEE 314 - = - - 314
3,940 5510 - 3814 60 13,324




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 381 #& 3Rk & Mi &

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2014

(BABEAN MESEINARBTIREN) BE-T-HNF+-_A=tT—HILFE

31. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (continued) 31. EERRMAX (&)
(o) Directors’ and senior management’s emoluments b) ZENSHEEEME (&)
(continued)
()  Mr. Han Jingyuan is also the Chief Executive () BHEREENTBAAAE
Officer of the Company. EHITE °
(i) Mr. Liu Lei resigned as the director of the Company (i) BIRBEER-_ZT—=F+
on 31 July 2013, A=+—B@HEr A&
$ o
(i)~ Mr. Ondra Otradovec resigned as the director of (i)  Ondra Otradovec JE 4R
the Company on 15 July 2013. —E-—=Ft+At+HHEE
ERRAESE °
(iv)  Mr. Yu Tung Ho resigned as the director of the vy SEELER-ZT—=F
Company on 30 April 2013, MA=THEEARAAEE
=
None of the directors waived or agreed to waive any BE-_Z-NMER-_T—=4F
remuneration for the years ended 31 December 2014 +-_A=+—HI&FE &
and 2013. The emoluments of the independent non- B EWENRE RE T MM
executive directors of the Company during the year are £ FRN IMNFARAFKE
approximately RMB 1.0 million (2013: RMB 1.6 million). VIHEBMTEENHESHARE
10BT(ZE—=F: AR%
160&7T) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &8 R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BABIEAN ESEINARETTREN)

31. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (continued)

(@)

Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest
in the Group for the year include four (2013: four)
directors whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis
presented above. The emoluments of the remaining one
(2014: one) highest paid individual for the year are as
follows:

Salaries and allowances e KRR
Fair value of employee share [EEsust ==L
options granted NAREE

For the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013,
no emoluments were paid by the Group to any of
the directors or the five highest paid individuals as
inducement to join or upon joining the Company or as
compensation for loss of office.

The remuneration of the five highest paid individuals for
the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013 fell within
the following bands:

RMB 500,000 to RMB 1,000,000
(approximately HK$ 634,880
to HK$ 1,269,761)

RMB 1,000,001 to RMB 3,000,000
(approximately HK$ 1,269,762
to HK$ 3,809,282)

For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE-_Z-NF+-A=+—HLLFE

31. EERAEX(Z)

()

AR 500,000 TE A RE
1,000,000 7T (47634,880
BILE 1,269,761787T)

AE# 1,000,001 TE ARE
3,000,000t (471,269,762
BT % 3,809,282 87T )

RMB 3,000,001 to RMB 4,000,000 AR# 3,000,001 T2 ARE
(approximately HK$ 3,809,283 4,000,000 7t (493,809,283
to HK$ 5,079,043) BILE 5,079,043 787T)

RMB 4,000,001 to RMB 10,000,000 AR 4,000,001 TZE AR
(approximately HK$ 5,079,044 10,000,000 7T (475,079,044

to HK$ 12,697,607)

China Oriental Group Company Limited 23 J7 5 [ 2 A FR 2 7]

HBITE 12,697,607 7 7T)

hERRHFMAL

ARERAREBOURSHEMA
TEROM(ZE—=F: K
f)EE - HMeo R EXnn
Fr2s e REER - XHT
HBp—R(ZF—WF: —7)

BERHFALHMSIT
2014 2013
—E-mE —F-=F
1,193 791
97 220
1,290 1,011

BEZZ—NEFEER=-_ZT—=F
+—A=+—HILEE &%
EMEnEfmEsafism
FMA TS ERBE - EA
PN /NEIE S, N N/NGTS
B SZEN Sk (E A BB A (E o

BHEZ—NEER=_ZT—=
+=—A=+—HILEE AfI
TS H A LTSN FAT
EE

Number of individuals

AH
2014 2013
—2-mF —F=F
1 -
3 4
1 -




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &3 & i ==

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BABEPN MESBEIRARBETTREN)

For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE-_Z-MF+-_A=T—RHILFE

32. FINANCE INCOME AND COSTS

Interest expenses
— borrowings
— amounts due to related parties
— discount of notes receivable
— finance lease liabilities

Net foreign exchange (losses)/gains
on borrowings (Note 34)

Finance costs
Less: amounts capitalised
as qualifying assets

Total finance costs (Note 39)

Interest income
— bank deposits
— trade receivables
— prepayments, deposits and
other receivables
— amounts due from related parties
— loan receivables

Total finance income (Note 39)

Finance (costs)/income — net

33. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Current income tax
— PRC enterprise
income tax (the “EIT”)
— Singapore profit tax

Deferred income tax (Note 27)

32. BiWAREA

2014 2013
—F-mE  ZT=F
FE &R
— &% (460,211) (470,407)
— FE T A EE 5 SR (21,671) (17,279)
— RN EIRALIR (506) (302)
—REHERE - (7,327)
EREE HF (B518),Ias
(PfizE34) (18,022) 217,072
EURL N (500,410) (278,243)
B BBEREEEARNL
G- 77,515 96,517
B iRk A~ 4258 (P 3£ 39) (422,895) (181,726)
A2 U A
—iRI TR 34,944 39,224
—EUNE SRR 27,821 35,185
—JENFIE e R
E b UL BR TR 17,341 50,689
— FEUk RaEsE 5 R 0A 13,893 5,255
—EER 44,537 54,925
B FEUR A 258 (MI5E39) 138,536 185,278
B (BRAN) /WA —F 58 (284,359) 3,552
33. FiiSHiEH
2014 2013
—E—OF =%
& HIFTERL
—HECEMEHR
([ZEmERL) 234,944 269,360
— TN RS - 1,757
234,944 271,117
EIEFTIS R (FYRE27) (56,344) (84,804)
178,600 186,313
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &8 R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended 31 December 2014

(BABEAN AESEINARETIAEMN) BE-_T-NF+-A=t—HILFE

33.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

The Company was incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted
company with limited liability under the Companies Act 1981
of Bermuda and, accordingly, is exempted from payment of
Bermuda income tax.

The subsidiaries directly held by the Company were
incorporated in BVI with limited liability under the International
Business Companies Act Chapter 291 and, accordingly, are
exempted from payment of BVI income tax.

No Hong Kong profits tax has been provided since the
subsidiaries incorporated or traded in Hong Kong did not have
assessable profits during the year (2013: nil).

China Oriental Singapore has been awarded the “Global
Trader Programme” (“GTP”) status for 2 years 9 months with
effect from 1 April 2011 and continued to be awarded from 1
January 2014 for 5 years. Income from qualifying transactions
will be taxed at the concessionary corporate tax rate of 10%,
subject to China Oriental Singapore meeting certain terms
and conditions as stated in the letter issued by International
Enterprise Singapore.

No profits tax has been provided for XTAL in United States
since it did not have assessable profits during the year.

The PRC EIT is calculated based on the statutory profit of
subsidiaries incorporated in the PRC in accordance with the
PRC tax laws and regulations, after adjustments on certain
income and expense items which are not assessable or
deductible for income tax purposes. The EIT rate applicable
to the subsidiaries incorporated in the PRC is 25% (2013:
25% except for Jinxi Dafang which was entitled to preferential
corporate income tax rate of 15%).

China Oriental Group Company Limited 23 J7 5 [ 2 A FR 2 7]

33.

FEHER (&)

ARRRBEERE-NN—FRBE
ERREAMKR I AERCAREE
N HEBPENBFEMEH -

RRAEEFEONE R RIREEER
BEAREE2NECERBHEBRE
SHMRIABREEIAR - WER
RHNRBERAREEMEH -

HRESE MK LG LNHER
AIRFEAYEBRTAE - BARE
ARARNGHR(ZF—=F:F) -

PERGHIMEECESE T ——F
MA—HEEARNMFEZTNMEAD
[RIRE HatEl| ([RIRE S8 i
i WHEERSE _T—NF—HA—
BEERAEF - BRI BIR T K
ZERIFIRER R ERBE LK
AP E T RR Mk - BB
M 5 2 WA RHZAF ST R K 10%
B o

HAXTALRF A EERTAE - 8§
WRABHEXBFFN

B 1b S RIS B TY E A E R B s AR
KM B R RIREE RS - IRERE
MISERRIGH - RABETTER
R AR BB A R A 18
B8 - @ARERBEEMRK
Bt 8 2 B O 1 ZE P 1S B B K B 25%
TE—=F 1 25% WERAASE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &3 & i ==

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2014

(BABEAN MESEINARBTIREN) BE-T-HNF+-_A=tT—HILFE

33. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 33. FiSBiBRA(Z)
The taxation on the Group's profit before taxation differs from AREBRBRINGANOFREREEZE-Z
the theoretical amount that would arise using the weighted —mEER=E—=FF+=_A=+—H
average applicable tax rate of 41.26% (2013: 27.35%) to IFEEAHET R % ﬂ - },Rm N #E
respective profits of the consolidated entities for the years 538 R A 2R 41.26% =4
ended 31 December 2014 and 2013 as follows: 27.35%) st H B3R i 42 %EE’\J%,JJ I
W
2014 2013
—E-MF —E-=F
Profit before taxation FRE BT A 245,080 249,341
Taxation calculated at REEBEFTERTIE
statutory tax rate 101,116 68,195
Tax losses for which no deferred RBERELEMSHEE
income tax asset was recognised MR IEE R 60,353 69,101
Effect of change in the tax rate MEREFHHFTE (615) 939
Withholding tax of interest RINREF B R E
and dividend income WA Z RSt 5,321 24,743
Effect of non-deductible expenses DA E A2 12,425 23,335
178,600 186,313
34. NET FOREIGN EXCHANGE (LOSSES)/GAINS - 34. EX (BB WEBE-
GROUP rEE
The exchange differences credited in the consolidated income REHRFNBERANGCEREZIE L =EEH7
statement included the followings: W
2014 2013

—F-mE  ZT=F

Other (losses) — net (Note 28) HAth (B18) — 558
(BF5E28) (2,623) (33,631)
Finance costs — net (Note 32) BF Rk A — 28 (Fi1sE 32) (18,022) 217,072

(20,645) 183,441
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE-_Z-NF+-A=+—HLLFE

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

BRBRAIN A SREAARE T AERL)

35

36.

GAIN/(LOSSES) FROM DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS

Investment (losses)/gain from iron
ore swap contracts (E518), M

Investment (losses)/gain from rebar
future contracts

(&18),Weas

Total 5=t

In year 2014 and 20183, the Group entered into certain iron
ore swap contracts with a financial institution to reduce the
impact of the volatility of raw material prices. All the iron ore
swap contracts had been fully settled as at 31 December 2014
and realised losses of RMB 331 million (2013: gain of RMB 41
million).

As at 31 December 2014, realised gains amounted to RMB
1.7 million and unrealized losses amounted to RMB 4.7 million
were derived from rebar future contracts. A derivative financial
liability of RMB 4.7 million was recognised on balance sheet as
at 31 December 2014 accordingly.

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE
COMPANY

The profit attributable to owners of the Company is dealt with in
the financial statements of the Company to the extent of a loss
of approximately RMB 130 million (2013: RMB 214 million) for
the year ended 31 December 2014.
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35.

HREOFHANZIERE

BRERER N E

36.

B O IR R

TEEMIAZIKE (FR)

2014 2013
=F-mFE  —F=F
(330,186) 40,955
(2,970) 3,811
(333,156) 44,766

RZE—NER-T—=F ' ~X5H
£a— ﬁéﬂ%%ﬁ*“?ﬁ%E%%
BH - AREEMEHERE DR
%om_%—ﬂi+—ﬁi+—av
FIBHEBAEPENEREES
EEREERAREIIIET(ZE
— =% mAARKE41008T) °
RZZE—MFE+_A=+—H ' &
MEEANMEENDERRZAA
REAT0BTLEAERBEAARE
4708 T —E—NE+-_A=+—
B ARBATOBTHITESRAR
EREEAERTHER -

RARERFHERGER

HE_ZT—MF+-_A=+—HItF
& AR BEERLENEE
STARR B B HRERMEBHARE
13BIL(ZE—=F : AR% 21418
TT) e



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &3 & i ==

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2014

(BABEAN MESEINARBTIREN) BE-T-HNF+-_A=tT—HILFE

37.

EARNINGS PER SHARE
Basic
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit

attributable to owners of the Company by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.

Profit attributable to owners

RArHESR B B BIE®EH

51 i
E2

SRE AN D REAR THSRA
E (AR AR B BT R A
T HBTEH -

2014 2013
—F-mE  ZT=F

of the Company 66,715 101,609
Weighted average number of ordinary BT E B A I

shares in issue (thousands) FHE (FhR) 2,931,425 2,931,178
Basic earnings per share (RMB per share) &R EARW = (FRRAREIT) 0.02 0.03

Diluted

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding to
assume conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.
The Company has one category of dilutive potential ordinary
shares: share options. For the share options, a calculation
is done to determine the number of shares that could have
been acquired at fair value (determined as the average
annual market share price of the Company’s shares) based
on the monetary value of the subscription rights attached to
outstanding share options. The number of shares calculated
as above is compared with the number of shares that would
have been issued assuming the exercise of the share options.

W

BRMER SR RAE AT MR
BEL AR LIRE - BRRHERE
TEBROINEFIREGE - A2
AEA—HARENEEEAR B
Pt - LB = - RIRHARITEE
BREMMNORBENEEEER &
ERAABEEEASLTRRBMDD
FHEEME) ABANKRODEAE -
WA LT A ENRMDEE THERR
EREITEMEE RITARMDERE
HELE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &8 R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2014

(BABERN FESEINARBTIAEN) BE-_T-NF+-A=t—HLFE

37. EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued) 37. BRWKE(E)
Diluted (continued) Wi (E)
2014 2013
—E-mF —E—=fF
Profit attributable to owners INA R A & FE (R A
of the Company 66,715 101,609
Weighted average number of ordinary AR EZRER KA
shares in issue used in calculating BT S BN
basic earnings per share (thousands) T8 (FR%) 2,931,425 2,931,178
Adjustments for options (thousands) BT (FAR) = 117
Weighted average number of ordinary STETRGERINERE
shares and potential ordinary shares BB BEITERR
issued as the denominator in calculating N BT IR N AE
diluted earnings per share (thousands) FHE (TR 2,931,425 2,931,295
Diluted earnings per share (RMB per share) &%z e (FRA R IT) 0.02 0.03
38. DIVIDENDS 38. KRE
At a meeting held on 19 March 2015, the Board did not R-ZE-—AF=A+ARRTHNEE
recommend the payment of any final dividend in respect of the L EZRTEENEBE_ZT—NF
year ended 31 December 2014 (2013: nil). TZ A=+ —BIEFEIRMAEARE

BE(ZB—=F: )
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &3 & i ==

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BABEPN MESBEIRARBETTREN)

39. CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS 39.

(@)

Reconciliation of profit before income tax to cash

generated from operations is as follows:

Profit before income tax
Adjustments for:
Amortisation of leasehold land
and land use rights (Notes 6, 30)
Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment (Notes 7, 30)
Depreciation of investment
properties (Notes 8, 30)
Amortisation of intangible
assets (Notes 9, 30)

Losses/(Gain) on disposal for property,

plant and equipment (Note 28)

Impairment of property, plant and
equipment (Notes 7, 28)

Gain on disposal of an
associate (Note 28)

Provision for/(Reversal of) write-
down of inventories to net
realisable value (Notes 16, 30)

Provision for/(reversal of) impairment
of trade receivables (Notes 17, 30)

Impairment provision of prepayments,
deposits and other receivables
(Notes 18, 30)

Impairment provision of loan
receivables (Notes 19, 30)

Gain on disposal of available-for-sale
financial assets (Note 28)

Impairment provision of available-
for-sale financial assets
(Notes 15, 28)

Investment losses/(gain) from
derivative financial
instruments (Note 35)

% B S B AT
B -

HE S 3 B2 b {5 PR A R 8

(FH43E6 - 30)
M - BB RRETE
(M$3E7 - 30)
BEYENE
(Mi%E8 - 30)
A
(F43E9 - 30)
HEWE  BERBEZ
B8, (as) (FisE28)
M - BE RRERE
(FFzE7 ~ 28)
HE — R A R A Es
(MizE28)
FEEEMBZEEATZE
SRERE(BE)
(M$5E16 ~ 30)
FEWE P RFRIE 2

Betr,/(Bm) (M7 - 30)
wE REAM BRI Z
R ER M (PIEE18 ~ 30)

A FOR -

FEMRE R 2 RE S
(FffzE19 ~ 30)

For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE-_Z-MF+-_A=T—RHILFE

HEAHEESREE L W

(Pffax28)

AR ESREERERE

(ffzE15 ~ 28)

TESMIAZIRE
1R, (W)
(PffzE£35)

HEEENRS
(@ FRAASHANENEZSEELN
RemBHROT
2014 2013
—EB-QmFE —T-—=F
245,080 249,341
3,485 3,405
1,090,556 1,045,516
441 806
108 78
2,396 (2,634)
89,944 79,053
- (50,000)
60,306 28,180
3,726 6,738
15,500 226,136
15,732 40,968
(28,307) -
= 23,845
333,156 (44,766)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &8 R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2014

(BABERN FESEINARBTIAEN) BE-_T-NF+-A=t—HLFE

39. CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS (continued) 390. BEEANHRE(E)
(@  Reconciliation of profit before taxation to cash generated @ KREARMEESEELENES

HFERIT : (&)

from operations is as follows: (continued)

2014 2013
—E-mFE —T—=F
Investment income from trading AESEBEZRERA
funds (Note 29) (FffzE29) = (5,653)
Other foreign exchange losses H A bE 5 &8
(Notes 28, 34) (PffzE28 - 34) 2,623 33,631
Finance income (Note 32) BT (B 3% 32) (138,536) (185,278)
Finance costs (Note 32) B AR AN (Pt sE32) 422,895 181,726
Share-based payment (Notes 22, 31) B S
(Ffzx22 ~ 31) 6,737 32,588
Gain on repurchase of Senior EAmlPE sl 6
Notes (Note 28) (fF7E28) (2,096) -
Provision for legal claims ERRERE (7E24 - 28)
(Notes 24, 28) 7,746 50,778
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FENERER LIFEHE
and properties under development WERE D (38 0)
and held for sale 48,942 (990,350)
(Increase)/decrease in trade and EWE SERAKRZE
notes receivables, prepayments, AN - B REM
deposits and other receivables FEUSBR X (35 0) SR (774,100) 1,822,598
Increase in amount due JE Lt B Bt 75 SR IR AN
from related parties (173,747) (1,077)
(Decrease)/increase in restricted ZIRHISRTT AR
bank balances R4,/ 389,139 (232,761)
Increase in deferred revenue (Note 26) 3EIEUL AL AN (Fi3E26) 1,610 10,381
(Decrease)/increase in trade payables, fE{E S8R
accruals, advances from customers ~ FEIRE A - BE S HIER
and other current liabilities Himsha & Okl ), 2Em (759,918) (618,019)
Decrease/(increase) in trade balance  FE{tEHE 5 & 5 4584
due to related parties w3 ) 175,740 (1,698)
Cash generated from operation HEEELANRS 1,039,158 1,703,532
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &3 & i ==

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2014

(BABEPN MESBEIRARBETTREN)

39. CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS (continued)

b)

Major non-cash transactions:

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group
endorsed bank acceptance notes to suppliers for
purchase of property, plant and equipment amounted to
approximately RMB 477 million (2013: RMB 435 million).

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group
entered into the purchase and sale agreement of
certain assets for steel production at a consideration of
approximately RMB 223 million. The consideration was
offset with the prepayment made in previous years.

As at 31 December 2014, the loan interest receivable
from Foshan Jin Lan amounting to approximately RMB
14 million had been offset against Foshan Jin Lan’s
loan provided to Jinxi Jinlan pursuant to an agreement.
Details are set out in Note 42(c)(i).

BEZZT—NF+_A=1T—HILFE

30. BEEANRSE(E)

(b)

ETRFRERS ¢

BE-T-WNF+-A=+—
AEFE AKEREEY
X BERSBEARERSE
RITEHERODARB4TTE
T(ZF—=F : AR%435(8
TT) °

BE_FT—=%+-A=1+—
AIEEE AR B0 E 4 E
AIVETEEMEE RS K
BERHARKE223FTT - R(E
B AT FEELMEMNRE
13 -

RZE—OF+_A=+—
B RBE—MDHE - EREL
SHNERFEH AR 1,400
BrLEWELEMAEASHE
REEFTEE - FEHAM
FE42()() °

Annual Report 2014 —ZF—U4E4EH

233



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &8 R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2014

(BABERN FESEINARBTIAEN) BE-_T-NF+-A=t—HLFE

39. CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS (continued) 39. EEEANBRE(A)
() In the cash flow statement, proceeds from sales of c RESRERAN HEWE-
property, plant and equipment comprised: R R PSSR B ¢
2014 2013
—E-IF =%
Net book amount of property, W - BEK
plant and equipment REREREFE
disposed (Note 7) (BI7ET7) 6,939 2,317
(Losses)/gains on disposals of property, HEYE - ME M &
plant and equipment (Note 28) (Ea) Wzs (fisE28) (2,396) 2,634
Non-cash assets received BUCEERSEE (3,542) (4,547)
Cash proceeds from disposal of LEYE  BEX
property, plant and equipment HEERS 1,001 404
Non-cash assets received mainly represented bank WERHIERSEEZTERRY
acceptance notes and other receivables received from ¥ BB RaRER D R E AR
deductions of property, plant and equipment. 1TARHEZ G E it FEUNBR TR o
40. FINANCIAL GUARANTEE CONTRACTS - GROUP 40. UBEREN-FXKE
2014 2013
—E-IF =%
Guarantee for bank RE=TTRIRIT
borrowings of third parties B EEER 12,960 21,157
As at 31 December 2014, Jinxi Limited provided guarantee RZZB—WMEF+ZA=+—01 ' EF
for bank borrowings in favour of third party amounted to i AE = FRRITERHAEER
approximately RMB 13 million. (2013: RMB 21 miillion). The fair HHOAREA 3008 T(ZF—=4F :
value of the financial guarantee are not significant. ARE21008TT) - ZZEMBERD
AAEBEITTENRK o
The Directors are of the view that such obligation will not cause EERRAEREERTEERESE
an outflow of the Group’s resources embodying economic BB RERML o
benefits.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 381 #& 3Rk & Mi &

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2014

(BABEAN MESEINARBTIREN) BE-T-HNF+-_A=tT—HILFE

41. COMMITMENTS - GROUP 41. B —AEE
(@  Capital commitments (@ EAESE
2014 2013

—EF-mE  —ZF=F

Purchase of property, BEVX BEK&R
plant and equipment
— Contracted but not provided for —BRIAEREME 412,844 260,644
— Authorised but not contracted for ~ — B EHEERET 4 171,123 238,508
583,967 499,152
(b) Commitments to properties under development (o) ZEEAPYEZAILE
2014 2013
—E—F —E-=F
Purchase of properties BEERERYE
under development 352,042 244 350
() Operating lease commitments () KEETHERE
The future aggregate minimum lease rental expenses in BT REHEEHEE T
respect of land use rights, property, plant and equipment T AR WE - BB RFK
under non-cancellable operating leases are payable as BHEMNRRREHAERSE
follows: SHT -
2014 2013
—E-MF —T—=%F
No later than one year 1FER 10,103 145,537
Later than one year and no 1FLAE - 5FEUR
later than five years 31,910 35,193
Later than five years 5% E 120,337 137,784

162,350 318,614
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &8 R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2014

(BABERN FESEINARBTIAEN) BE-T-NF+-A=t—HILFE

42. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(@  For the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013, the (a)
Directors are of the view that the following companies
and persons are related parties of the Group:

Name

=1

Foshan Jin Lan Aluminium Company
Limited (“Foshan Jin Lan”)

Bl eRiamER AR
(T L&)

Foshan Jin Lan Nonferrous
Metals Product Co., Ltd.
(“Jin Lan Nonferrous Metals”)
HlLeHBEEEBRmBRAR]
(TeHBEEEE])

Zhongxing Iron Mine

Skl ES

Tangshan Fengnan Qu Jinxi
Fenggang Iron and Steel Co., Ltd.
(“Jinxi Fenggang”)

& LT e [ 3R 2 S 5 6
BRAF (HRAEEH )

Beijing Jingtang Guangzhi
Investment Management
Co., Ltd. (“Jingtang Guangzhi
Investment”)
ERREREESREERGRAA
(REBERE D

42. BBALIXRS

HE-_ZT—NMER-_ZT—=%F
+_A=+—HLFE E=
RENTRAARATAAEE
I RARSE T -

Relationship with the Group
BRAREBABAR

Minority shareholder of Jinxi Jinlan

e itk 0% 2 (&3

Foshan Jin Lan’s subsidiary

BRI BRI E A A

Jinxi Limited’s former associated company (ceased to be the
Group’s related party since 18 September 2013)

EAMEORMEAT (B2 —=FNA T+ N\BRETHEAXR
SERREETT)

Chairman of the board of Jinxi Fenggang is Mr. Shen Xiaoling,
a director of the Company

ENENEEREFEAANRAESLER L

Controlled by Mr. Wang Zhihong, a director of Boyuan Real
Estate

REEFENE ST TA AR
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2014

(BABEAN MESBINARBTIREN) BE-_T-HNF+-_A=t—HILFE

42. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(@)

For the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013, the
Directors are of the view that the following companies
and persons are related parties of the Group: (continued)

42, BEEAERS (&)

@ HE-B-MER-T-=F

TZA=+—BLFER &
BRATRARALBAE

Name

=

Mr. Li Hejun
FEERE

Mr. Han Li
BhEAE

Mudanjiang Ruiyuan Investment
Co., Ltd. (“Ruiyuan Investment”)

HA TR EBRAF]
(MBRRRE D)

Oriental Sheet Piling Sdn.Bhd. and
it’s subsidiaries (“Oriental Sheet
Piling”)

Oriental Sheet Piling Sdn.Bhd.
REKBAF]

([ Oriental Sheet Piling |)

BRS¢ ()

Relationship with the Group
EES S F 2

Minority shareholder of Jinxi Dafang, a subsidiary of the Group
REE M EBARERAT N DERER

Director of the company

ARABES

Minority shareholder of Suzhou Boyuan

ERMEERN D BBCR

Controlled by the same ultimate parent company of
ArcelorMittal Holdings AG, an entity holds over 20% equity
interests in the Company

A AN BB iR 20% 27 B & §8 ArcelorMittal Holdings AG
HIAB Rl B A% B 1 B2 )

The English name of certain companies referred in this
financial statements represent management’s best effort
at translating the Chinese names of these companies as
no English names have been registered.

AP BEIRR S T AR RE X B
RERBREBETXEZHBEMS
WTRRZE AR L EELTEME S
R AT
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BABIEAN ESEINARETTRERN)

42. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b)

For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE-_Z-NF+-A=+—HLLFE

Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated

financial statements, the Directors were of the view that

the following significant related party transactions were

carried out in the normal course of business of the Group
during the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013:

Sales of goods

— Jinxi Fenggang

— Oriental Sheet Piling

Sales of utilities

— Jin Lan Nonferrous
Metals

Purchase of raw materials

— Jinxi Fenggang
— Zhongxing Iron Min

HEEY

— T2
— Oriental Sheet Piling

—SHAELB

BERME

— P2
— R BEE
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42.

RBAXS (&)

(b)

BRARAGFHMERRTFERE
G REBE-_ZT-—NER-FT
—=F+t=H=+—HBIEEE
N EERBUTHEABE

HRBTINARE R E X E
R -

2014 2013

=F-mF  —F-=F

- 1,696

48,178 -

48,178 1,696

23,160 16,676

4,133 -

- 8,136

4,133 8,136




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 381 #& 3R & Mi &

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2014

(BABEAN MESBINARBTIREN) BE-T-HNF+-_A=tT—HILEFE

42. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 42. BHMAERS (&)

(o) Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated b) BREASHIUBREFTERR
financial statements, the Directors were of the view that SN RBE_ZE—NNERK_-Z
the following significant related party transactions were — =%+ _A=+—HBLFE
carried out in the normal course of business of the Group A EER AT R E A R
during the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013: ARGTIRALEE B EEKB
(continued) TERHET - (&)

() Key management compensation (i) ETEEEAEHE

ITEEBABBERITR
FHITES - BEBRS

Key management includes executive and non-
executive directors. The compensation paid or

gt - Eag
payable to key management for employee services TEH:W@E\H.I ZEEA
is shown below: SMEemT ¢
2014 2013

—F-mE  ZT=F

Salaries and other short-term &4 & H fih 55 HA(E 2 12 7

employee benefits 9,128 10,316
Post-employment benefits ey 64 60
Share-based payments BERSREST 504 3,814

9,696 14,190
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended 31 December 2014

(BRBEAN AESEINARBTIAEN) BE-_TNF+-A=t—HLFE

42. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 42.

(c) The following were the related party balances of the
Group as at 31 December 2014 and 2013:

Amounts due from related parties

Non-Current

— Foshan Jin Lan (Note 39(b))

Current

— Jinxi Fenggang

—Mr. Han Li

— Jinxi Fenggang (trade balance)

—Jin Lan Nonferrous Metals
(trade balance)

& Wi RS 77 5RIR
FEnE
— RIS (MEE39(0))

ik

— PR

—BNkHE

— R (B REHR)

—SHEELE
(BS4EH)

As at 31 December 2014, the ageing of trade balances

due from related parties were within three months.
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B RS (&)
© RZFE-HNER-FT-—=F
TZA=Z+ R AREHH
eIy K ERIA T
2014 2013
—F-mE  ZFT=F
171,749 -
- 160
2,000 -
- 4,836
4,994 -
6,994 4,996
178,743 4,996

RoE—mE+ - A=+
B MR B B
BA=EARN -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 381 #& 3R & Mi &

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2014

(BABEAN MESBINARBTIREN) BE-T-HNF+-_A=tT—HILEFE

42. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 42.

(c) The following were the related party balances of the
Group as at 31December 2014 and 2013: (continued)

Amounts due to related parties
Non-Current

Borrowing from related parties
— Mr. Li Hejun (i)
— Foshan Jin Lan (j) (Note 39b)

Current

Borrowing from related parties
— Jingtang Guangzhi
Investment (iii)
— Ruiyuan Investment (iv)

Others
— Oriental Sheet Piling
— Jinxi Fenggang
— Foshan Jin Lan

& Y RS 0 5K0R
e

A 7 fE X
— B A (i)
—#BIL4RE () (FFE39b)

ik
AR 77 5K

— REREEEE (i)

— IR E (v)

Hth
— Oriental Sheet Piling
— T L
—EILEHE

RBAXS (&)

© RZE—HENFER_ZT—Z=F
+=—A=+—8 AEEKH
Bt R0 « (4B)

2014 2013
—F-mE  ZT=F

51,859 51,859
195,260 37,404
247,119 89,263

51,118 53,333

49,100 128,000
100,218 181,333

2,000 =
1,995 =
383 383
4,378 383
104,596 181,716
351,715 270,979
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &8 R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2014

(BRBEAN AESEINARETIREN) BE-_T-NF+-_A=t—HLFE

42. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Except for the related party balances disclosed in (i) to (iv)
below, others were unsecured, interest-free and without fixed
terms of repayments.

(i) During the year ended 31 December 2014, Beijing Jinxi
Investment, a subsidiary of the Group, provided a loan
to Foshan Jin Lan amounting to RMB 172 million which
was secured by Foshan Jin Lan’s minority interest in
Jinxi Jinlan, another subsidiary of the Group, interest
bearing at 8% per annum and repayable in full in year
2016. On the other hand, back in year 2011, Foshan
Jin Lan provided a loan to Jinxi Jinlan of RMB 37 million
which was unsecured, interest-free, and repayable
by year 2016. In addition, during year 2014, Foshan
Jin Lan further provided a loan to Jinxi Jinlan of RMB
172 million which was unsecured, interest-free and
repayable in year 2016. Beijing Jinxi Investment’s loan
interest receivable from Foshan Jin Lan amounting to
approximately RMB 14 million as at 31 December 2014
had been offset against Foshan Jin Lan’s loans provided
to Jinxi Jinlan pursuant to an agreement.

(i)  The borrowing from Mr. Li Hejun was unsecured,
interest-free and had a repayable term of 30 years.

(i)  The borrowing from Jingtang Guangzhi investment
was unsecured, interest bearing at a rate of 6.00% per
annum and repayable in year 2015.

(iv)  The borrowing from Ruiyuan Investment was unsecured,
of which RMB 49 million bore interest at a rate of 15.00%
per annum, and RMB 79 million bore interest at a rate
of 18.00% per annum and was repaid during the year
ended 31 December 2014.
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42.

RBAXS (&)

BRI (1) 2 (iv) TR EB BV B 77 S RSN -
Hipg mEEA - 28 BEEEEE
Hj o

(i 2T —FE+-_A=+—H
LEFE  AEENHBARIER
PRI E ML SR IREERLY
ARBEAT2MBT0 0 L E R A
LWEERERSH (AEENS
—MBAR]) M DHIRE RS
e - REME8%TEBA
REZT—RFEHEE - 5—FH
| BPE—_T——%F  fBlus
HAEASHEERERARE
37008 T * ZE R AEEM -
BERER-Z—/NFEE - It
O RZT—IF - HLSEE
—FRAEASHIREERARE
1.721870  ZERAEKR 2
BRERZZT—"FEE - RE
— % - ERETERER =T
—mFE+=A=+—BREKGHL
SENERF S HAREA,400
BruhlemmEas @R
BERATHKE o

(i) FEEEERHERZEFSEE
B RE=TFHERY -

i)y REESRERHNERSE
- AFEFZEE.00%:18 - I
ANR_T—hFEE-

(iv) WREERENERAERR -
Heh AR ¥ 4,900 8 7T AEF| =R
15.00%5T 2 * i AR 7,9008
TCPASE R 2 18.00% =12 B A &
22— NWF+-_A=+—H1t
FEANBEE -
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2014

(BABEAN MESBINARBTIREN) BE-T-HNF+-_A=tT—HILEFE

43

POST BALANCE SHEET DATE EVENTS

As stated in the announcement of the Company dated 10
March 2015, during the period from January 2015 to February
2015, the Company purchased a total of US$ 12,400,000 in
principal amount of the 2015 Senior Notes and a total of US$
3,250,000 in principal amount of the 2017 Senior Notes via
open market.

On 9 February 2015, the Company commenced the offer
to repurchase for cash any and all of its outstanding 2015
Senior Notes and 2017 Senior Notes. The offer expired
on 9 March 2015. A total of US$ 125,933,000 in principal
amount of the 2015 Senior Notes and US$ 65,067,000
in principal amount of the 2017 Senior Notes had been
repurchased and cancelled by the Company. Following
the completion of the repurchase, the outstanding
aggregate principal amount of the 2015 Senior Notes is
US$ 351,850,000 and the outstanding aggregate principal
amount of the 2017 Senior Notes is US$ 139,268,000.

43.

HERREHE

BUMARBBPE-_T—RAF=A+
BezRAgmmm  —2—hF— A==
Z-AF-AILEE - AAREAR
F%E B E AN 8% & 12,400,000
ETN_ZE—RAFELZEBERASE
%8 /3,250,000 T —F — L F (&8
KR o

RZZFE—RAF_ANAB ' X2FEH
REREMBAREE-_S—RFEL
ERET+FELAZEBENESE
BEH ZEHNR _ZE—HFE=AN
BEH - RARIEHEEKEHASR
A $#£125933,000k 2 —E—F
FELEEERA S 4 %65067,000
FELZ_ZT—tFEBEZE - REK
Bh% — T AFELZEAEE
N4 4858 4 351,850,000 £ T =&
—tFREEBRREERSLER
139,268,000 3T °
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Five-year Financial Information & & & # & %l

A summary of the consolidated income statement and of the
consolidated assets, liabilities and non-controlling interests of the

Group for the last five financial years is as set out below:

Consolidated Income Statement

Revenue

Profit before income tax
Income tax expense

Profit for the year

Profit attributable to :

Owners of
the Company

Non-controlling interests

LN

BT BT
S B
AT
AR
N
fE%
I

AEBHREFTAEAMBFEENE HABR
REWEE BENFZEGEESMEH

ST

XN

Year ended 31 December

BEt-—A=t—-HLEE

Consolidated Assets, Liabilities and Non-controlling Interests

Total assets
Total liabilities

Non-controlling interests

BEE
BamE
ISR e S

Audited

RERZ
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
“E-mFE —2—=Ff —Z——-F T——F ZZT-ZTF
(RMB’000) (RMB’000) (RMB’000) (RMB’000) (RMB’000)
(AR¥TRr) (ARETT) (AREFRT) (AREFTR) (ARETIT)
28,495,498 32,516,937 36,122,358 38,596,633 30,135,718
245,080 249,341 326,056 1,931,812 1,613,481
(178,600) (186,313) (179,579) (514,023) (428,030)
66,480 63,028 146,477 1,417,789 1,185,451
66,715 101,609 126,062 1,241,893 1,062,838
(235) (38,581) 20,415 175,896 122,613
66,480 63,028 146,477 1,417,789 1,185,451

AHFEE - BEEIEEH EEs
As at 31 December
R+=—HA=+—H

Audited

RERZ
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
“E-mFE —Z2—=Ff —ZT-——-F —T——F ZZT-ZTF
(RMB’000) (RMB’000) (RMB’000) (RMB’000) (RMB’000)
(AR¥TRr) (ARETRT) (ARETRT) (ARETR) (ARETIT)
23,743,408 23,750,600 24,751,983 22,929,993 20,742,095
(13,971,562)  (14,039,698) (15,196,967) (13,418,643) (12,222,321)
(514,789) (519,698) (513,247) (647,730) (450,012)
9,257,057 9,191,204 9,041,769 8,863,620 8,069,762
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